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ERRATUM

Page 190, second line, insert, after * subsection (3),”, the words:
“ after the expiration of one month from the commencement of
this Act,”.






MEMORANDA RESPECTING APPEALS FROM JUDGMENTS OF
THE SUPREME COURT OF CANADA TO THE JUDICIAL
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SUPREME COURT REPORTS.

Attorney-General for British Columbia v. The Canadian Pacific Ry.
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Attorney-General for Canada v. Attorney-General for Alberta. ([1927]
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to appeal in forma pauperis refused, 28th November, 1927.
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14th July, 1927.
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706). Appeal dismissed with costs, 18th January, 1927,
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Appeal dismissed, 17th June, 1927.
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Gale v. Thomas. ([1927] S.C.R. 314). Leave to appeal refused, 3rd
May, 1927.

Gordon MacKay & Co., Ltd. v. Capital Trust Corp. Ltd. ([1927]
S.C.R. 374). Leave to appeal granted, 27th July, 1927.
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Luscar Collieries Ltd. v. McDonald. ([1927] S.C.R. 460). Appeal dis-
missed, 28th July, 1927.
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S.C.R. 583). Leave to appeal granted, 27th July, 1927.

Montreal, City of, v. Bélec. ([1927] S.C.R. 535). Leave to appeal
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Montreal LH. & P. Cons. v. City of Westmount. ([1926] S.C.R. 515).
Leave to appeal refused, 15th November, 1926.

McLeod v. Minmister of Customs and Ezcise. ([1926] S.C.R. 457).
Leave to appeal refused, 8th July, 1926.

Ontario Jockey Club v. McBride. ([1927] S.C.R. 84). Appeal
allowed with costs, 18th July, 1927.
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HORACE B. FORMAN (PLAINTIFF)....... APPELLANT;
AND

THE UNION TRUST COMPANY, LIM- RESPONDENT

ITED (DEFENDANT) ............... ’

ON APPEAL FROM THE APPELLATE DIVISION OF THE SUPREME
A )
"2 COURT OF ONTARIO

Evidence—Letter signed intended to embody terms of deposit of money
—Inadmissibility of parol evidence to contradict, vary or ezplain—
Euvidence received without objection at trial put aside by appellate
court.

Plaintiff deposited with defendant $20,000 to be held and paid out on
certain terms. At an interview between plaintif and defendant’s
mansger there was drafted in the latter’s handwriting and signed by
plaintiff the following letter from plaintif to defendant, which was
intended to embody plaintifi’s full instructions to defendant: “ There
will be paid to you * * * $20,000 * * * This payment is in
connection with the Hayes-Lorrain Syndicate. You will please hold
these funds until such time as you are instructed by [G.] that it is
proper for you to pay same out and you will pay same to su
persons, firms or corporations as [G.] may direct and this shall be
your sufficient authority.” The moneys were (as found by the
court) paid out by defendant according to G.’s directions.

Held, that parol evidence was not admissible to show a stipulation,
alleged by plaintiffi but denied by defendant, that, as a term of the
deposit, the moneys were not to be paid out by defendant unless
the sum of $50,000 should be received by the defendant under the
provisions of an earlier document known as the “Hayes-Lorralin
Syndicate agreement.” The reference in the letter to the Hayes-
Lorrain Syndicate, on its face, merely identified the matter for
which the money was to be held and used, and did not cover such
a stipulation as alleged by plaintiff; and extrinsic evidence of the
intention of the parties in making it was not admissible.

*PresENT :—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ. .

32789—1
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The rule of law that extrinsic evidence is not, in general, admissible to
contradict, vary or explain written instruments must be enforced in
cases that fairly come within it.

Although the plaintifi's evidence of the antecedent conversation, at said
interview, as to the terms of his deposit was received without objec-
tion and acted upon by the trial judge, the appellate court, upon
being satisfied that a writing had been agreed to which was meant
to embody those terms, rightly put that evidence aside and decided
the case upon the evidence properly admissible. (Jacker v. Inter-
national Cable Co., 5 T.LR,, 13).

APPEAL by the plaintiff from the judgment of the Ap-
pellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario (1)
allowing an appeal from the judgment of Kelly J. in favour
of the plaintiff (2).

The plaintiff’s claim was to recover the sum of $20,000
and interest for moneys alleged to have been paid to the
defendant upon certain trusts, and alleged to have been
paid out by the defendant otherwise than in accordance
with the said trusts. The defendant denied any indebted-
ness to the plaintiff, stating that the moneys were paid out
in accordance with the plaintiff’s instructions. The ma-
terial facts of the case are sufficiently stated in the judg-
ment now reported.

The appeal was dismissed with costs.

J. A. Worrell K.C. and R. H. Sankey for the appellant.
W. N. Tilley K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

AngLIN C.J.C.—The plaintiff sues to recover a sum of
$20,000 deposited by him with the defendant. The deposit
of the money and that it was held on some terms is com-
mon ground. The plaintiff complains that the moneys
were wrongfully paid out by the defendants in contraven-
tion of the terms of deposit.

One of the two terms alleged by the plaintiff is denied
by the defendant. The existence of the other is common
ground and the question is as to its fulfilment, the de-
fendant maintaining and the plaintiff denying that it was
in fact observed.

(1) 20 Ont. W.N. 448, (2) 28 Ont. W.N. 331
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The learned trial judge, Kelly J., upheld the plaintiff’s
contention on both grounds (1). The Appellate Division
unanimously accepted the view put forward by the de-
fendant on both points (2).

The terms of deposit alleged by the plaintiff were

(a) that the moneys were not to be paid out by the de-
fendant “ unless the full $50,000 (referred to in the
Hayes-Lorrain Syndicate agreement) was actually
paid into the Trust Company; and

(b) then not to pay it out except on instructions by
Mr. Gallagher and to whom Mr. Gallagher might
direct, all for the purposes of the Hayes-Lorrain
agreement.”

Whether the existence of term (a), which was not observed,
is established by evidence legally admissible is one ques-
tion; and, if not, whether term (b) was complied with is
the other. A decision of either in the plaintiff’s favour
would. mean the allowance of his appeal.

It may be as well to say at once that consideration of
the evidence has fully satisfied us that on the second ques-
tion the conclusion reached by the Appellate Division,
that payment was made by the defendant with Gallagher’s
approval, is right and cannot be disturbed. It is true that
Forman did not advise Gallagher of the fact that he bhad
made his (Gallagher’s) approval a condition of the Trust
Company’s payment out of the $20,000 and also that he
did not authorize Gallagher to give such approval; but
~ Lang (the defendant company’s trust manager) communi-
cated these instructions to Gallagher on the 23rd of May
—both he and Gallagher say so—and Gallagher with
knowledge of them undoubtedly authorized the payment
over to the vendors by the Trust Company of all the
moneys held by it in connection with the purchase of the
properties in question. The Trust Company was fully
justified in concluding that such payments were sanc-
tioned by Gallagher and had no reason to suspect that
such sanction had not been authorized by the plaintiff.

The question whether the Trust Company held the plain-

tif’s money subject to the condition that before payment
of it out $50,000 should be actually in its hands in pay-

(1) 28 Ont. W.N,, 331 (2) 29 Ont. W.N,, 48,
32789—1%
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ment of subscriptions under the Hayes-Lorrain Syndicate
agreement must now be considered.

The arrangement for the deposit with the defendant
company of the $20,000 was made at an interview on the
22nd of May, 1923, between Mr. Lang and the plaintiff,
no other person being present. There is direct conflict
between them as to the $50,000 stipulation, the plaintiff
deposing that it was distinctly made by him and assented
to by Lang and the latter that nothing of the kind took
place. Both are, however, agreed that Lang during the
interview expressed the desire that the plaintiff’s instruc-
tions as to the deposit should be put in writing, and that
the plaintiff acceded to this request. On this point the
plaintiff says:—

Mr. Lang stated that he understood me perfectly in the matter but
would prefer to have it in writing over my signature so he called in a
typist and dictated what is known as my letter of instruction to the
Trust Company of May 22.

Q. Is that the letter signed by you?—A. No, I do not think this is
it; it looks like my signature, but I thought it was typed; he called 'in}
somebody who typed it, I am almost sure. '

Q. That is your signature?—A. It appears to be my signature, yes.

And on cross-examination he said:—

Q. I also understood you to say that as soon as you started to men-
tion conditions upon which your money might be paid out, Mr. Lang
at once said: “We must have written authority from you, Mr. For~
man ”?—A. Yes; written authority over my signature.

Q. And this letter (Exhibit 14) was then signed by you?—A. Yes.

Lang explicitly denied that there was any allusion by the
plaintiff at the interview of the 22nd of May to the Hayes-
Lorrain Syndicate agreement or to the retention of his
money by the Trust Company until it should have re-
ceived $50,000 under that agreement. His account of the
interview, so far as material, is as follows:—

Q. I want you to come to this interview which the plaintiff had
with you on the 22nd of May, 1923, and I would like your account of
that interview in as much detail as you can give it to me?—A. Well, Mr.
Forman came into the office without any introduction at all, and told
me who he was, and that he wanted to give us some money.

Q. Yes?—A. I am pretty sure that I told him that we had title
deeds there in connection with these mining claims he talked about,
which were being held by us against payment.

Q. Of the purchase price?—A. I do not recollect that I told him the
purchase price; I cannot be sure of that.

Q. Yes?—A. The next thing, as I recollect it, was his mention of
Mr. Gallagher’s name, and the greater part of that interview consisted
of him telling me about Mr. Gallagher, and asking me what I knew
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about him, and his statement that he was going to leave it entirely to
. Mr. Gallagher, and whatever Mr. Gallagher did was going to be all right.
Following that I told him if he wanted to give us any money he should
give us instructions in writing as to what we were to do with it. Hig
agreed to that, and I pulled a sheet of paper out of my drawer and pro-
ceeded to take down his instructions.

Q. Had he or had he not before this time outlined his instructions
—before the paper was produced?—A. The first part of the conversation
was very general as far as I know. We did not get down {to business
until I pulled this paper out of my desk and started to write down what
he wanted me to do. So far as that letter was concerned, I wrote it, it
is in my handwriting. 4

Q. That is the letter of May 22nd, 1923, which has been put in as
Exhibit 147—A. Yes.

Q. Yes?—A. That letter, I would say, was really at Mr. Forman’s
dictation; he did not dictate the words I should use—I did that myself
because I was writing it—but he undoubtedly told me what he wanted
put in that letter, and that is the way it was written.

Q. Was there some discussion during the drafting of that letter as
to the various points which it mentions?—A. I do not think so; the
letter was written without any difficulty at all as to instructions.

Q. Was the letter signed, the first draft of it, or were several drafts
required?—A. It was signed immediately without any change.

Q. Did the interview continue after the signing of the letter for some
time, or did it end shortly afterwards?—A. I. would not be sure, but the
interview was short, in any case; it did not last very long.

Q. About how long?—A. Not more than ten to fifteen minutes at
the outside.

Q. Have you given me your account of the interview as fully as you
can?—A. Except this, that most of our talk was about Mr. Gallagher,
in my office, and his reliance upon Mr. Gallagher; I cannot emphasize
that too much,

Q. Was that mentioned once or more than once?—A. Mentioned
repeatedly.

Q. Mr. Forman has said that the interview was opened by his pro-
ducing a copy of the syndicate agreement, as he calls it, and that you
glanced at that agreement and told him it was unnecessary for you to
read it, because the Trust Company had a copy. What do you say to
that?—A. I cannot recollect that at all.

Q. You have no recollection as to that conversation taking place?
—A. Absolutely not, none at all.

* % %

Mr. Thomson: As I understood Mr. Forman’s evidence he said
that he told you clearly and in a way not capable of being misunder-
stood by you that he was paying this sum of $20,000, or the additional
sum of $15,000—I have forgotten which—under the syndicate agreement?
—A. No, that is not my recollection of it at all.

*  x  x

His Lordship: Give us his instructions as you say he gave them to
you?—A., His instructions were that he was to give us this money and
we were to pay it out when Mr. Gallagher said it was all right to do it.

Mr. Thomson: Q. And Mr. Forman said very definitely that in
addition to the stipulations which are covered by the document, Exhibit
14, he made a further stipulation not covered by the document, to this

1926

e
ForMAN

UNiON
Trusr Co.

Anghn

CJC.



1926

A
ForMaAN

v.
UnioN
Trust Co.

Anglin
CJC.

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

effect: “My money is not to be paid out until $50,000 has been sub-
scribed to the syndicate agreement.” What do you say as to that?—A.
I say that he is absolutely mistaken about that, that it is not correct.

Q. At any rate I suppose you endeavoured to cover in the writing

(Exhibit 14) and to cover accurately Mr. Forman’s instructions to you?
—A. Undoubtedly so.

Q. Do you think you did?—A. Yes.
The letter-written by Lang in his own hand, and not by a
typist as Forman thought, reads as follows:—
UnioN Trust COMPANY,
ToRONTO.

The Union Trust Company, Limited,
Toronto, Ont.

DeAr Sms,—There will be paid to you in the course of a few days a
total of $20,000 sent for my account from Bioren & Co., of Philadelphia.
This payment is in connection with the Hayes-Lorrain Syndicate. You
will please hold these funds until such time as you are instructed by
Mr. Ziba Gallagher that it is proper for you to pay same out and you
will pay same to such persons, firms or corporations as Mr. Ziba Gal-
lagher may direct and this will be your sufficient authority.

Dated May 22, 1923.
HORACE B. FORMAN, Jr.,
Haverford, Pa., US.A.
Witness: D. W. Lang.

Kindly send draft for the premium on these funds for my credit at
Bank of Montreal, Gananogue, Ont.
HORACE B. FORMAN, Jr.

Both Forman and Lang agree that this letter was intended
to embody the plaintiff’s full instructions to the Trust
Company as to the terms on which the latter should accept
and hold the $20,000. As to the disputed term the plain-
tiff says he understood it to be covered by the sentence:
“ This payment is in connection with the Hayes-Lorrain
Syndicate.” Lang says this reference was merely to
identify the matter for which the money was to be held
and used. The reference does not er facie import what
the plaintiff says he understood it to cover; its apparent
significance is what Lang attributes to it. Extrinsic evi-
dence of the intention of the parties in making it is not
admissible.

Moreover, if, as the plaintiff suggests, it was meant
thereby to recognize the existence of the so-called syndi-
cate agreement and to subject the holding of the plaintiff’s
money by the defendant to its terms, it must be borne in
mind that the 30 days during which, under that agree-
ment, the Trust Company was to hold the plaintiff’s
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money had already expired and there is no hint of any
other period having been substituted, so that, if the $50,000
were not paid to the Trust Company it might have been
obliged to hold the plaintiff’s money indefinitely. This
syndicate agreement had not been executed by anybody
except the plaintiff and by him only as to his original
85,000 subscription. When he agreed to put up the extra
815,000 he entered into an arrangement with Kemmerer,
one of the vendors to the syndicate, that he should become
interested with him (Kemmerer) in the transaction and
bargained for a share of Kemmerer’s promotion stock.

Gallagher, who had been apprised of these facts on the:

morning of the 22nd of May, then understood that the
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syndicate agreement had been abandoned and was no -

longer to be taken account of. These considerations, how-
ever, rather bear upon the question whether the story told
of the interview of the 22nd of May by the plaintiff or
that told by Lang is the more probable and would scarcely
suffice to outweigh the explicit finding of the learned trial
judge that Forman’s testimony rather than Lang’s was
entitled to credence.

But it seems clear that any parol evidence of the con-
versation during which the letter of the 22nd of May,
1923, was written is not admissible to add to or vary the
instructions which it contains. That letter, according to
the plaintiff’s own story, having been written to formu-
late the terms and conditions of the Trust Company’s au-
thority in regard to the $20,000 deposit, it was, to quote
the language of Judge Taylor (Taylor on Evidence, 11th
ed., p. 776) : “ intended finally to embody the entire agree-
ment between the parties.” The admission of parol evi-
dence in such a case would be fraught with all the dangers
to obviate which it has been established as a rule of law
that extrinsic evidence is not, in general, admissible to
contradict, vary or explain written instruments. (Best
on Evidence, 10th ed., p. 208). This salutary rule affords
the best, often the only, protection against mistakes arising
from treacherous memory, and courts must enforce it in
cases that fairly come within it. The consequences of
allowing it to be frittered away would be deplorable.

Although Mr. Forman’s evidence of the antecedant con-
versation as to the terms of his deposit was received with-
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1926 out objection and acted upon by the trial judge, the Court

FOI;J:N of Appeal, upon being satisfied that a writing had been
Urnox agreed to which was meant to embody those terms, rightly

TeusrCo. put that evidence aside and decided the case upon the
Anglin €vidence properly admissible. Jacker v. International
CJC.  Cable Co. (1).

For these reasons the appeal fails and will be dismissed
with costs.
Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellant: Worrell, Gwynne & Beatty.

Solicitors for the respondent: Tilley, Johnston, Thomson
& Parmenter.
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ON APPEAL FROM THE APPELLATE DIVISION OF THE SUPREME
COURT OF ONTARIO

Fire insurance—Renewal—Description of property—Failure to disclose
change in description—Misrepresentation—Character of occupancy—
Vacancy—Materiality—Statutory conditions—Ontario Insurance Act,
RS0, 1914, c. 183.

The effect of the renewal of a policy of fire insurance is that the
property is insured subject to the terms and conditions of the policy,
and the description of the property in the policy operates with relation
to the date of renewal; and if, as the property then stands, it does
not answer the description in the policy, there is a misdescription,
which, if it be material and to the prejudice of the insurer, will, where

*PreseNT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
(1) (1888) 5 T.L.R. 13.
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the policy is subject to such statutory conditions as were provided in
The Ontario Insurance Act, R.S.0., 1914, c. 183, disentitle the insured
to recover.

MacGillivray on Insurance, p. 298, and In re Wilson and Scottish Ins.
Corp. Ltd. ([1920] 2 Ch. 28) referred to.

A change material to the risk was held to have occurred in the descrip-
tion of premises with regard to their occupancy. The Court referred
to evidence going to establish materiality, but also indicated, referring
to Western Assurance Co. v. Harrison (33 Can. S.C.R. 473), that a
representation may be held material although no evidence of material-
ity be given at the trial except the proof of the representation.

Where the property insured is described as occupied in a particular man-
ner, and occupation in that manner is material to the risk, the insur-
ance does not attach to the risk if the premises, at the date of the
contract, be not, and have not subsequently been, so occupied. Farr
v. Motor Traders Mutual Ins. Soc. Ltd. ([1920] 3 K.B. 669) referred
to.

A change in the property, from occupation as a residential store to
vacancy, not being notified to the insurer, and being material, as
found, was held to avoid a policy in question within the intent and
meaning of no. 2 of the statutory conditions in R.S.0., 1914, c. 183.

A policy of fire insurance, dated 5th January, 1923, was on a building
described as “ occupied as general store and dwelling.” The tenant
had been notified by the insured to quit on 1st January, and began
to move out on 2nd January and completed moving on 5th or 6th
January, and the building ceased to be occupied as described. It
was held that, either the property at the time of the policy did not
answer to the description, or it must have been known to the insured
that the building was in process of being vacated, and would immedi-
ately cease to be occupied as described, and this, having regard to
the evidence and findings, constituted, if not a misdescription, a mis-
representation of, or omission to communicate, a material circum-
stance, or a change material to the risk, by reason of which, under
nos. 1 and 2 of the statutory conditions in R.S.0., 1914, c. 183, the
policy was avoided.

Judgment of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario
(58 Ont. L.R. 351) which, reversing judgment of Riddell J. (58 Ont.
L.R. 351), held plaintiff entitled to recover on certain fire insurance
policies, reversed.

APPEAL by the defendants from the judgment of the
Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario (1)
which, reversing judgment of Riddell J. (2), held the
plaintiff entitled to recover against the defendants under
certain policies of fire insurance. The material facts of
the cases are sufficiently stated in the judgment now re-
ported. The appeals were allowed. :

(1) (1926) 58 Ont. L.R. 351. (2) (1925) 58 Omt. L.R. 351.
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D. L. McCarthy K.C. and W. R. West for the appel-
lants.

Peter White K.C. and W. F. MacPhie for the respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

NewcoMmBE J.—These two cases were tried together.
The plaintiff (respondent) brought separate actions against
the two Insurance Companies, defendants (appellants),
to recover upon two policies of fire insurance which these
companies had issued to him upon buildings, of which he
was the proprietor, situate at the settlement of Karlton
in Northern Ontario. There was a storehouse 25 by 36
feet with three rooms in the top fitted for living purposes,
attached to which, in the rear, was a small dwelling 25 feet
square. These had been occupied as a store and dwelling,
but, in 1916, when the plaintiff acquired the property, he
constructed a building, 78 by 33 feet, known in the case as
the new store, which was attached to and communicated
with the storehouse on the north side of the latter, and these
buildings, as a group, are, as will presently be seen, de-
scribed in the policies as the new building “and addi-
tions.” The policies were thus intended to cover the same
property, but the descriptions do not precisely correspond,
and it will be convenient to consider each case separately.
Both policies were, however, subject to the Ontario statu-
tory conditions, which are printed on the back. These are
identical, and the first and second of them are expressed
in the following terms:—

1. If any person insures property, and causes the same to be described
otherwise than as it really is to the prejudice of the company, or mis-
represents or omits to communicate any circumstance which is material
to be made known to the company, in order to enable it to judge of the

risk it undertakes, such insurance shall be of no force in respect to the
property in regard to’ which the misrepresentation or omission is made.

2. Any change material to the risk, and within the control or knowl-
edge of the assured, shall avoid the policy as to the part affected thereby
unless the change is promptly notified in writing to the company or its
local agent; and the company when so notified may return the unearned
portion, if any, of the premium which has been paid for the unexpired
period and cancel the policy, or may demand in writing an additional
premium, which the assured shall, if he desires the continuance of the
policy forthwith pay to the company; and if he neglects to make such
payment forthwith after receiving such demand, the policy shall be no
longer in force.
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THE SUN CASE 1926

N )
Sun

The original policy was dated 14th January, 1919, and 1ygyrance
it was renewed each year down to and inclusive of 14th OF:)’ICE
January, 1923, the date of the last renewal. It stipulates  Ror
that the insured, the plaintiff, is insured against direct 10sS Gyaromx
or damage by fire during the year for the actual cash value Assurance

of the property at the time of the loss, not exceeding $4,000, v,

On the two story frame building 33 x 78 and additions thereto attached, Roy
with metal roofing, occupied as Residential Store, situate on the North Newc—tm.lbe J
West corner of lot No. 6 in the 3rd concession of the Township of Arm- —_
strong in the District of Temiskaming, Province of Ontario.

The buildings were totally destroyed by fire on 27th Febru-
ary, 1923. These buildings were wooden structures and
the two older ones, the storehouse and dwelling, had wooden
roofs, but the new store had a zinc roof. It was a building
of two stories, with living quarters in the upper story,
where the plaintiff lived while he carried on business there,
and in which his tenant, Poirier, who succeeded him in the
business, subsequently lived. The plaintiff occupied the
premises until 1921, carrying on business as a general mer-
chant, when he leased to Poirier for three years from 1st
April, 1921. Poirier leased the dwelling at the rear of the
storehouse to Boileau, who occupied it as his dwelling. Sub-
sequently, Poirier having failed in business, his lease be-
came void, and the plaintiff, in the autumn of 1922, noti-
fied him to quit, and arranged with Boileau that the latter
was to remain in possession of the dwelling and pay rent
to the plaintiff. Boileau did remain, and, although tem-
porarily absent, was in occupation of the dwelling as the
plaintiff’s tenant at the time of the fire. Poirier moved
out and quitted the premises on 5th or 6th January, 1923,
and from that time until the fire, the buildings were un-
occupied, except for Boileau’s occupation of the small
dwelling in the rear, subject however to the facts now to
be stated. Sometime after Poirier gave up the premises,
the plaintiff, as he says, decided to re-open his business in
the new store. He lived at North Bay, and, on 28th Janu-
ary, he visited the premises, going there and returning to
North Bay on that day. Subsequently, on 26th February,
he returned to Earlton with two carpenters whom he left
there with instructions to clear up, wash the floors, and
build a wood shed. They took in a stove, stove pipe, spring
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1026 mattress and blankets from another building belonging to

Ssun  the plaintiff at Earlton. The plaintiff remained with them,

INSUF;’:I"C’;CE helping them with their work, for the day. The two men

slept upstairs in the new store that night, and, on the night

of the 27th, they slept downstairs, in the same building, to

g‘;m‘;g be near the stove, as the weather was cold. It was during

Co.  that night that the fire occurred. The plaintiff testifies

Boy that it was his intention to return on 1st March, as it is
NeweombeJ suggested, then to re-open the shop. _

—_— It was, as I have stated, on 14th January that the policy

was renewed. The effect of the renewal, as I interpret it,

is that the new store, with metal roofing, occupied as a

residential store, and the other two buildings, being the

“ additions thereto attached,” were insured subject to the

terms and conditions of the policy; this description must

be held to operate with relation to the date of renewal;

but it is certain that the building was not then occupied

as a store, whatever may be the meaning of the qualifica-

tion introduced by the word “ residential,” and this fact

must be considered having regard to the first statutory

condition quoted above.
In In re Wilson and Scottish Insurance Corporation, Lim-
ited (1), it was held by Astbury J., as appears to be accur-

ately stated in the head note, that

The renewal of a fire policy is impliedly made on the basis that the state-
ments in the original proposal are still accurate.

This was a case where, in 1915, a motor car had been in-
sured for its full value on a proposal stating the present
value at £250. The policy was renewed from year to year
and the car was burned in June, 1919, when it was found
worth £400, and the question was whether the insured was
entitled to indemnity upon the latter estimate of value.
Counsel for the corporation argued that each renewal was
a fresh insurance, re-incorporating the original statements
in the proposal, and made on the basis of their continued
accuracy at the-date of renewal. He cited MacGillivray
on Insurance, p. 298, and Pim v. Reid (2). The learned
judge said in his judgment:

There is no decision directly applicable, but I cannot help thinking that

on renewing the policy on November 8, 1918, the insured must be deemed
to have continued or repeated his “ estimate of present value” at £250.

v.
Roy

(1) [19207 2 Ch. 28. (2) (1843) 6 Man. & G. 1, at p. 25.



S.C.R. SUPREME COURT OF CANADA

The actual decision in Pim v. Reid (1), is not in point, but Cresswell
J. said: “No fresh proposal appears, therefore, to be expressly required
on either side at the end of the first year; but it may then be very
material for the company to know of any change in the extent of the
risk, to enable them to determine whether or not they will continue the
insurance.

Mr. MacGillivray, in the passage referred to in his valu-
able work, says:

In fire policies and similar risks, where the insurers may decline to
renew the policy at the expiration of the original period, each renewal is
made on the faith of the continued truth of the original representations,
and if there has been any change, that must be disclosed when the renewal
premium is tendered.

The view thus expressed appears, in my judgment, to be
sound and reasonable, and I have no hesitation in accept-
ing it. It is true that the effect of the misdescription may
be limited by the first condition to which I have referred,
but, if the findings of the learned trial judge be accepted,
the misdescription is material, and to the prejudice of the
company. He finds that:

The plaintifi knew January 6 at the latest that the property was no
longer a “residential store”: he may have contemplated reoccupying it
as a “residential store,” but he did nothing in that direction for some 8
weeks, and he had not in faet reoccupied it as such at the time of the
fire. This was a change material to the risk, increasing the risk, on prin-
ciple and authority, evidence and common sense.

These findings, it must be remembered, relate to buildings
in a frontier settlement; they seem, according to the evi-
dence in the case, to rest upon reason and experience, and
I should be reluctant to disturb them. Witnesses were
called who were skilled in the business of insurance, an
agent, an adjuster and appraiser, an inspector of agencies
and the manager of two insurance companies. These
gentlemen testified, having regard to their knowledge and
experience, that vacancy was a condition material to a fire
risk; that the risk was thereby increased. It was shown
that three of the insurance companies, including the Sun
(defendant), would not take unoccupied risks in the north
country. Another witness, who is an adjuster, extends
that statement generally to the insurance companies in the
north country. None of this evidence was contradicted,
although the plaintiff was offered an adjournment to make
inquiries. The testimony of these witnesses is, it may be

(1) (1843) 6 Man. & G. 1, at p. 25.
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1926 remarked, not confined to mere matter of opinion. More-
suv  over I would direct attention to the fact that it was held
INS?;ACIECE by this court in Western Assurance Co. v. Harrison (1),
Bey that a representation was material, although no evidence of
- materiality was given at the trial, except the proof of the

GUARDIAN .
Assurance representation.

Co. .
Bog There are many cases referred to in the factums,

and more 1n the books, with regard to the effect of words
Newcombed, . . . . . .
—  forming part of the description in a fire policy and in-
tended to describe, sometimes in the present and some-
times in the future tense, the user of the premises, but
there is none inconsistent with the view, the reasonableness
of which commends itself, that, where the property is de-
scribed as occupied in a particular manner, and occupation
in that manner is material to the risk, the insurance is not
attached to the risk if the premises, at the date of the con-
tract, be not, and have not subsequently been, so occupied.
See Farr v. Motor Traders Mutual Insurance Society, Ltd.

(2).

Moreover, by the second statutory condition, to which
the learned trial judge gave effect, it is declared that any
change material to the risk, and within the control or know-
ledge of the assured, shall void the policy as to the part
affected thereby, unless the change be promptly notified
in writing to the company or its local agent. The change,
from occupation as a residential store to vacancy, not being
notified, and being material as found, therefore voids the
policy within the intent and meaning of this condition. In
this particular there appears to be an error of fact in the
judgment of the Appellate Division, in that the change is
described as occurring after the renewal, whereas, from the
time of the renewal until the fire, there had been no occu-
pation of any sort, except by the two carpenters on 26th
and 27th February.

This appeal must therefore be allowed.

(1) (1903) 33 Can. S.C.R. 473. (2) [1920] 3 K.B. 669.
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THE GUARDIAN CASE 1926

In this case the policy is dated 5th January, 1923, and by ooy o
it the property, as described in the body of the policy, is OFf)ICE
insured in the sum of $2,000: Roy

On the two story 33 x 78 frame building and additions attached GUA;)-IAN
thereto with metal roofing, occupied as General Store and dwelling, situate ASSURANCE
on the North West corner of lot No. 6, in the 3rd concession of the Town- Co.
ship of Armstrong, Dist. of Temiskaming, Ont. Marked risk on diagram. ﬁ)(',y

Warranted that no paints, oils or varnishes or other inflammable
liquids (coal oil excepted), kept therein except in hermetically closed NewcombeJ
packages, bulk not broken. -_—

It is a condition of this insurance and for which the premium has
been reduced, that the property hereby insured is detached or is con-
tained in a building detached not less than 40 feet, from any other build-
ing or shed and further that the building is and will be continually occu-
pied during the currency of this policy for dwelling purposes above the
ground floor.

Conditions nos. 1 and 2 and the evidence and findings are
the same as in the Sun case already considered. The
building which is prominent in the description, and the
only one described by that name, is “the two-story
38 by 78 frame building,” or new store, which, up to the
date of the policy, had been occupied as a general store
and dwelling by Poirier, or his trustee in bankruptecy, or
his wife, who had bought the bankrupt stock from the trus-
tee. It was the smaller of the two buildings described as
additions, and which was situated at the rear of the addi-
tion known as the storehouse, that Boileau occupied as a
dwelling. There were in this small building five rooms in
all, two or three on the ground floor and the others on the
upper floor. I do not think that the description admits of
any interpretation other than that the building required
by the condition to be continually occupied for dwelling
purposes above the ground floor is the new store; a differ-
ent meaning is not only incompatible with the text, but,
in my view, too improbable to be seriously considered.
Now it is not proved whether Poirier completed his mov-
ing on 5th or 6th of January, but it is certain that, from
one or the other of these dates, there was, during the cur-
rency of the policy, no occupation of the new store for
dwelling purposes above the ground floor, except in so far
as the fact that the two carpenters slept there on the night
before the fire constituted such an occupation for that

night. The following day they moved down with their
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1926 effects, because they found the place too cold, and so left
Sun the upper story unoccupied. Neither, it may be added,
INS?;‘.IACI;CE was there any occupation of any part of the new store for
B any purpose, except that of the carpenters, such as it was.

— There was thus a breach of the stipulation, but if this be
E;;*:,*‘;;‘;’;a a condition within the meaning of the Ontario Insurance
80- Act, as distinguished from a limitation of the risk, a ques-
_R'gY tion which was not discussed, it is ineffective by the pro-
NewcombelJ, Visions of the statute, and therefore I shall put my decision

upon the short ground which I am going to state.

Poirier’s lease, according to the terms of it, became void
by his bankruptey. The plaintiff had notified him to quit
on 1lst January. He had made his arrangements for quit-
ting; the moving began on 2nd January, and was com-
pleted on the 5th or 6th. In these circumstances, either
the property at the time of the policy did not answer to
the deseription, or it must have been known to the insured
that the building described as “ occupied as general store
and dwelling ” was in process of being vacated, and would
immediately cease to be so occupied. This, having regard
to the evidence and findings to which I have already re-
ferred, constituted, if not a misdescription, a misrepresen-
tation of, or omission to communicate, a material circum-
stance, or a change material to the risk, by reason of which,
under statutory conditions 1 and 2, the policy was avoided.

This appeal should therefore likewise be allowed.

Appeals allowed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellants: McCarthy & McCarthy.
Solicitor for the respondent: W. F. MacPhie.
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ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR MANITOBA

Appeal to Supreme Court of Canada—Jurisdiction—Title to land—Action
to set aside tax sale—Seed Grain Act, Municipal Act, Assessment Act,
Man. (R.S.M. 1913, cc. 178, 133, 134).

Plaintifi sued to set aside a tax sale of its land by defendant municipality
(in Manitoba), claiming that it was illegal because made for default
in payment of notes given to the municipality by the plaintiff’s tenant
for moneys advanced to the tenant for seed grain, and for the cost
of a well bored for the tenant, on the land. The advances for seed
grain and the cost of the well amounted to $530. The land was worth
over $2,000. Plaintifi’'s action was begun after one year from the
day of the sale. The action was dismissed by Mathers CJK.B. (35
Man. R. 331) whose judgment was affirmed by the Court of Appeal

for Manitoba (35 Man. R. 551). Plaintiff (whose application for

leave to appeal was refused by the Court of Appeal) appealed de
plano to the Supreme Court of Canada, and defendants moved to
quash the appeal for want of jurisdiction.

Held, that the motion to quash the appeal should be refused; whether
plaintiff still retained its right to redeem, and whether, through the
effect of the “ curative ” section of the Assessment Act (Man.) it was
precluded from obtaining the relief sought, were questions to be con-
sidered and were properly matters in controversy; the application
to the case of the relevant sections of the Municipal Act and the
Assessment Act was a point in dispute; it was therefore apparent
that, as a result of the litigation, when all questions raised on both
sides had been considered and according as the respective contentions
were held well or ill founded, plaintiff’s title might be affirmed or
denied to lands the value of which exceeded the amount required to
found jurisdiction for appeal.

Idington J. held that the right of appeal depended on whether or not
the right of redemption still existed, and as this was not settled on
the facts before the court the motion should be enlarged to be dis-
posed of on the argument of the appeal.

MOTION by the respondents to quash, for want of
jurisdiction, the plaintiff’s appeal to this Court from the

*PreseNT:—Anglin CJ.C. and Idington, Duff, Mignault, Newcombe
and Rinfret JJ. '
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judgment of the Court of Appeal for Manitoba (1) affirm-
ing the judgment of Mathers C.J.K.B. (2) dismissing the
plaintiff’s action to set aside a tax sale by defendant muni-
cipality of certain lands. The facts of the case are suffi-
ciently stated in the judgments now reported. The motion
was dismissed with costs.

D. H. Laird K.C. for the motion.
E. F. Newcombe contra.

The judgment of the majority of the court (Anglin
CJ.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rinfret JJ.)
was delivered by

RinFrET J.—This is a motion to quash for want of juris-
diction. The plaintiff’s statement of claim alleges that, in
May, 1919, it was the legal owner of certain lands and
entered into an agreement of sale of these lands to certain
parties named Edward McGee and Fred McGee, who took
possession; that Fred McGee subsequently executed a
quit-claim to the plaintiff of his interest, and that Edward
McGue continued to occupy as tenant of the plaintiff; that
the defendant municipality, without the consent of the
plaintiff, advanced seed grain to the said Edward McGee
and, at his request, bored a well upon the lands in question,
for all of which it took from him promissory notes in
settlement; that the defendant municipality never gave
notice to the plaintiff of the advances but, on default of
payment of the notes, made a claim upon the plaintiff for
the amount thereof, for which the lands were sold at a tax
sale to the defendant Joyal.

The plaintiff claimed that this sale was illegal and asked
that it be declared null and void and set aside. The action
was dismissed (2). This was affirmed in appeal (1). The
plaintiff applied to the Court of Appeal for leave to appeal
to the Supreme Court of Canada. The application was
refused. The plaintiff thereupon proceeded to appeal de
plano, and security was allowed by a judge of the Court of

(1) 35 Man. R. 551; [1926] 2 (2) 35 Man. R. 331; [1925] 3
W.W.R. 51 W.W.R. 695.
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Appeal, who however said that his order “ shall not be con- 1926
strued as giving leave to appeal ” or “ affecting in any way Hovarrox
the question of the jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of L"N'I’JT(S"BP
Canada.” URALMUN.

The respondents now move to quash on the ground that or Ricmor,
the case is not appealable. AND JOTAL.

They argue that the only question involved in the case Riniret J.
is whether T

the amount required to redeem is some $530 less than the amount certi-
fied as arrears of taxes to the Distriect Registrar who is now dealing with
the application of Joyal for a certificate of title.

This sum of $530 represents the advances for the seed grain
and the well repudiated by the plaintiff.

We do not think the litigation is so limited.

The tax sale took place on the 27th October, 1922. The
action was begun on the 3rd January, 1924, or after the
expiration of one year from the day of the sale.

The lands in question are proven to be worth well over
$2,000.

Plaintiff asserts its ownership of these lands and claims
to have been illegally divested of its title by the alleged
illegal proceedings of the municipality.

Joyal, the tax purchaser, resists the plaintiff’s claim and
submits his rights to the court.

As a consequence, it may be that the plaintiff still retains
the right to redeem; or it may be that, through the effect
of the so-called curative section of the Assessment Act,
plaintiff is now precluded from obtaining the relief sought
by it; but these are questions which will have to be con-
sidered and they are properly matters in controversy. The
application to the case at bar of the relevant sections of
the Municipal Act and the Assessment Act is one of the
points in dispute.

For the present, therefore, it is apparent that, as a result
of this litigation, when all questions raised on both sides
have been considered and according as the respective con-
tentions are held well or ill founded, plaintiff’s title may
be affirmed or denied to lands the value of which clearly
exceeds the amount required to found jurisdiction for
appeal to this court.

We think, for these reasons, that the motion fails and
should be dismissed with costs.

32789—23



20

1926

A
HouaaTON
Laxp Corp.

Lo,

.
Rurar. Munw.
or RIcHoT,
AND JOYAL.

Idington J.

1926

*Oct. 29.
*Dec. 1.

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

IpingTON J.—Assuming the lands have been sold and the
possibility of redemption thereof by payment of the tax
has passed, I agree with my brother Rinfret J. in the con-
clusion he has reached that the title of the land is in ques-
tion and, therefore, as that seems to be worth over two thou-
sand dollars, that there would be no doubt of our jurisdic-
tion to hear the appeal. If, however, the time for redemp-
tion has not elapsed and it is still possible for the appel-
lant to redeem the land for $800 or $900, or any sum less
than $2,000, I can see no right to appeal here. In such a
case the title to land is not necessarily involved, it is the
damage done by casting a cloud upon the title and this does
not, in itself, I think, give jurisdiction to come here.

As the evidence, in my view, does not conclusively estab-
lish either of the alternatives I have put, I would prefer
the motion to be enlarged to be disposed of on the argu-
ment of the appeal.

Motion dismissed with costs.
Solicitor for the appellant: Eric Browne-Wilkinson.

Solicitors for the respondent The Rural Municipality of
Richot: Munson, Allan, Laird, Davis, Haffner & Hob-
kirk.

Solicitor for the respondent Joseph Joyal: C. M. Boswell.

TIDEWATER SHIPBUILDERS LIM- AppE )
ITED (PLAINTIFF) .....ccovveunennnn PPELLANT;
) AND
SOCIETE NAPHTES TRANSPORTS

RESPONDENT.
(DEFENDANT) +.ivvivniencnnienennns

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF KING’'S BENCH, APPEAL SIDE,
PROVINCE OF QUEBEC

Lease and hire of work—Work by contract—Fized price—Cancellation at

will of owner—Indemnity of the workman—Damages—Art. 1691 C.C.

Article 1691 of the Civil Code of Quebec gives the owner the right to
cancel at his own will a “contract for the construction of a building
or other works at a fixed price, although the work has been begun,

*Present:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
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on indemnifying the workman for all his actual expenses and labour,
and paying damages according to the circumstances of the case.”

Held that the obligation to indemnify the workman for all his actual
expenses and labour, to wit, to pay him for the work done, is abso-
lute; and the liability for damages depends on the circumstances of
each particular case. But the workman cannot demand, as damages,
payment in full as if the work had been entirely performed.

APPEAL from the decision of the Court of King’s Bench,
appeal side, province of Quebec, maintaining in part an
appeal to that court by the respondents and dismissing a
cross-appeal by the appellants.

The material facts of the case are sufficiently stated in
the judgment now reported.

C. A. Barnard K.C. and W. F. Chipman K.C. for the
appellant.

A. R. McMaster K.C. and L. J. Béique K.C. for the
respondents. '

The judgment of the court was delivered by

MievavrT J—This is an appeal from a judgment of the
Court of King’s Bench, province of Quebec, modifying, by
reducing the amount awarded, a judgment of the Superior
Court which had granted the present appellant $35,000,
under the contract to which I will presently refer. At the
same time, the Superior Court rejected a claim of the appel-
lant for $25,000, as damages for loss of profit, and as to
this claim its judgment was upheld. The appellant now
appeals to this court on both points.

The material facts of the case are as follows.

In 1920, the respondent had a ship under construction
at Three Rivers by the Three Rivers Shipyards, Limited.
This company went into liquidation before the work was
finished, and the respondent then entered into an agree-
ment with the appellant to complete the construction of
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the ship. This agreement, signed by the respondent in

December, 1920, and by the appellant in March, 1921, con-
tained the following covenants:—

Whereas the company (the respondent) are the owners of a ship
commonly known as an oil tanker of approximately 6,500 tons deadweight
now partially constructed in the yard of the Three Rivers Shipyards Com-
pany, Three Rivers, Quebec, and through their representative have mutu-
ally agreed with the shipbuilders (the appellant) to complete this vessel
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in accordance with the plans and specifications to be furnished to them
by the company, and deliver to them at the port of Three Rivers fully
equipped and ready for sea.

Now therefore this agreement witnesseth:

That the shipbuilders on the execution of this agreement will pro-
ceed under the-supervision and instruction of the company’s represen-
tatives to engage the necessary men and secure the necessary materials to
complete and launch the ship at the yard of The Three Rivers Shipyards,
Limited, and take the hull to the works of the shipbuilders, install
machinery and complete and equip the ship ready for sea according to
the plans and specifications and under the supervision and direction of
the company’s representative on the following terms and conditions:—

1. That the company’s representative will arrange at the company’s
expense for the use of the facilities of Three Rivers Shipyards, Limited
for the aforesaid purpose.

2. That the shipbuilders will engage all necessary men and order all
necessary material rates of wages and prices to be made for all materials
and deliveries to be approved from time to time by the company’s rep-
resentative.

3. That the company will furnish through their representative all the
necessary plans and specifications for the completion of the work.

4. That all materials purchased for the ship will be billed to the
company or their representative duly marked for use on this ship.

5. That the company’s representative will make the necessary arrange-
ments for prompt payment of wages of the men engaged in the work, and
all material, machinery and supplies of every kind.

6. That the shipbuilders will furnish, on completion of the vessel,
builder’s certificate, and secure the certificate of classification societies,
and in the event of the registration of the ship in Canada, the necessary
certificate from the Canadian Government.

7. That the shipbuilders will, after the ship is launched and delivered
at their shipyard, install engines, boilers and all auxiliary machinery
which are to be furnished by the company from the boiler-room bulkhead
up to the tail-shaft, and supply and install the necessary piping and
valves to connect to the hull piping, sea-suctions, and discharges, all
according to the specifications, for the sum of $65,000 in Canadian cur-
rency to be paid before the ship leaves the yards of the shipbuilders.

8. That in addition to this amount of $65,000 the shipbuilders will
be paid by the company before the final delivery of the ship, as their
recompense for superintending the construction and completion of the ves-
sel, the sum of $35,000 in Canadian currency if the total cost of the ship,
exclusive of this recompense of $35,000, but inclusive of the $65,000 pay-
able under paragraph 7 and all expense for launching ways, trial trip,
builders risk insurance, is $700,000 or more, and for every $10,000 less than
$700,000 which the completion of the ship costs, the shipbuilders will
receive an additional recompense of $3,000, so that, for the purposes of
illustration, if the completion, exclusive of this recompense, costs finally
$690,000 the shipbuilders will receive $38,000. If the completion costs
$680,000 they will receive $41,000, and so on in proportion, but if the
completion costs $650,000 or less, exclusive of this recompense, the ship-~
builders will receive the sum of $50,000 as their recompense.

9. Further, it is mutually agreed and understood that for any work
done in connection with the construction of the ship, exclusive of the
installation of boilers, engines and auxiliary machinery, etc., between the
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boiler-room bulkhead and the tail shaft, which is done at the works of
the shipbuilders, and which is not covered by paragraph 7, the company
will pay the actual cost to the shipbuilders of all material and labour,
plus an overhead allowance of 65 per cent on labour, the labour contem-
plated to embrace workmen and the necessary foreman, but will not
include anything for the services of the manager, shipyard superintendent
or machine shop superintendent, or chief accountant, time-keepers or
clerks of the company.

It being understood and agreed that:

The intention of the foregoing agreement is that the company through
their representative will pay in addition to the $65,000 for the work and
material covered by paragraph 7, all expenses of every kind for material,
labour and overhead, as herein defined, incurred in completing the vessel
ready for sea, plus the allowance for recompense of from $35,000 according
to the total cost of the work of completion from the date of this contract
but not including any expenses incurred prior to this date, and all to be
paid for before the ship is finally handed over by the shipbuilders to the
company’s representative.

The appellant completed, at the shipyards of the Three
Rivers Shipyards, Limited, the construction of the hull of
the ship, which was launched on the 8th of June, 1921. There
remained the installation therein of the engines, boilers
and auxiliary machinery under clause 7, which was to be
done at the appellant’s shipyards about a mile up the St.
Maurice river. On June 6, 1921, the respondent served
a notarial protest on the appellant alleging that there was
pot in the channel of the St. Maurice river a sufficient depth
of water to bring the ship up to the appellant’s shipyards
for the installation of the machinery, and to remove it from
- there after such installation, and that the appellant had
failed in its obligation to have the channel dredged, and
therefore the respondent, reserving the right to demand the
cancellation of the contract, notified the appellant that it
would itself proceed to have the boilers, engines, and ma-
chinery installed, after launching, at the wharf in the St.
Lawrence river of The Three Rivers Shipyards, Limited.

The respondent followed up its protest by bringing an
action before the Superior Court asking for the cancella-
tion of the above agreement on the ground that the appel-
lant had failed to fulfil its contractual obligations. The
appellant then instituted an action against the respondent
at Three Rivers, accompanied by a conservatory seizure of
the ship, claiming payment of two items, to wit the $35,000
mentioned in paragraph 8 of the agreement, and $25,000
for loss of profit under its undertaking to install the boil-
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ers, engines and machinery. The trial of both actions,
which had been consolidated, took place at Three Rivers.
We were informed by the parties that at the argument on
the first action, the one asking for cancellation, the appel-
lant admitted that under art. 1691 of the civil code the re-
spondent was entitled to cancel the agreement, and this
point of view was accepted by the learned trial judge who
pronounced the agreement duly cancelled. The appellant
states that it acquiesced in the judgment in this action
and paid the costs. In the second action, the learned trial
judge awarded the appellant the $35,000, but rejected the
claim for $25,000 for want of proper proof. Both parties
appealed from this judgment to the Court of King’s Bench.
The latter court affirmed the judgment of the Superior
Court in so far as the claim for $25,000 was concerned, but
modified it in regard to the item of $35,000, which it re-
duced to $12,000, the respondent in its factum having ex-
pressed its willingness to pay the latter sum. The appel-
lant now comes before this court asking that the judgment
of the Superior Court be restored as to the award of $35,000,
but reversed in respect of the other item of its demand.

The only judgment before us is that rendered in the
appellant’s action claiming $35,000, under clause 8 of the
agreement and $25,000 damages for loss of profit under
clause 7.

The appellant in its factum as well as in its argument
before us, endeavoured to take the position that art. 1691
C.C. did not apply to the agreement in question, or, if it
did, it was only with respect to the installing of the boilers,
engines and machinery. Had the appellant taken that
position before the trial court, it is likely that the learned
trial judge would have made a finding on the question
whether the appellant had fulfilled its contractual obliga-
tions, and whether the respondent had valid cause for can~
celling the contract. The admission of the appellant that
the case came within the scope of art. 1691 C.C., while to
some extent an admission of law rather than of fact, no
doubt influenced the course of the trial and the judgment.
I am not disposed therefore to deal with the litigation on
any other basis. Much of the evidence adduced at the
trial is irrelevant on an issue governed by art. 1691 C.C.
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The respondent, on the other hand, led considerable evi- 1926

dence to show that the contract had become impossible of Twewares
performance for the reasons alleged in its protest, i.e., that Bsnlf,f‘;s
the ship, for lack of sufficient depth in the channel of the
St. Maurice, could not be brought to the appellant’s ship- Soctith
yards for installation of the boilers, engines and machinery, ng;gﬁis.
or removed therefrom after the work was done. The testi-  —
mony on this point is contradictory, and I am not satis- M"gf‘j*”'
fied that the respondent, which had the onus of establish-
ing it, has shewn beyond doubt that performance of the
contract had become impossible within the meaning of art.
1202 C.C. Moreover, the most that could be said is that,
if the performance of the contract became impossible, it
was through no fault of the appellant, which clearly could
not be expected to dredge the bed of a navigable stream,
and therefore the respondent would be bound to the extent
of the benefit received by it. I prefer therefore to rest
nothing on the alleged impossibility of performance, but I
will view the case as being one calling for the application
of art. 1691 C.C.

This article gives the owner the right to cancel at his
own will a contract for the construction of a building or
other works at a fixed price, although the work has been
begun,
on indemnifying the workman for all his actual expenses and labour, and
paying damages according to the circumstances of the case.

The obligation to indemnify the workman for all his
actual expenses and labour, to wit, to pay him for the work
done, is absolute. Liability for damages depends on the
circumstances of each particular case. The workman is
certainly entitled to payment for the work actually done
and money expended by him, and the circumstances of the
case may also, as a matter of justice, give him the right to
claim damages.

It would be quite impossible, in my opinion, to say that
the workman can demand, as damages, payment in full
as if the work had been entirely performed, for the owner
may have cancelled the contract because such payment
would be beyond his means. Article 1794 of the Code

Napoléon allows the owner to cancel the contract
en dédommageant lentrepreneur de toutes ses dépenses, de tous ses
travaux el de tout ce qu’il aurait pu gagner dans cette entreprise;
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it does not mention other damages. The codifiers in their
report make no special mention of art. 1691 C.C., being
content to say that

the ar’gicles numbered from 78 to 84 (art. 1691 to 1697 C.C.), while they
express the existing law, coincide substantially with the articles of the
Code Napoléon cited under them.

The coincidence, in so far as art. 1691 C.C. is concerned, is
certainly not very marked, and, in my opinion, while the
French code has laid down a definite rule as to the basis of
assessment of damages, our code has done so only in regard
to “ actual expenses and labour.”

Pothier, Louage, no. 440, Bugnet ed., vol. 4, pp. 147, 148,
to whom the codifiers refer under art. 1691 C.C., says:

Par exemple, si j’ai fait marché avec un entrepreneur pour la cons-
truction d’un bétiment, et que, depuis le marché conclu et arrété entre
nous, je lui déclare que je ne veux plus bitir, et que je demande en consé-
quence la résolution du marché, l'entrepreneur ne peut pas sopposer
absolument & la résolution du marché, et prétendre que je doive lui
payer le prix entier du marché, aux offres qu’il fait de remplir son obliga-
tion, et de construire le batiment porté au devis; car il a pu me survenir,
depuis la conclusion de notre marché, de bonnes raisons pour ne pas
bétir, dont je ne suis pas obligé de rendre compte; il a pu me survenir
des pertes dans mes biens, qui me mettent hors d’état de faire la dépense
que je m’étais proposée. Mais st je dois étre re¢cu & demander la résolu-
tion du marché, ce ne peut tre qu'a la charge de dédommager l'entre-
preneur, §'il souffre quelque dommage de son inexécution; puta, si avant
que je lui eusse déclaré mon changement de volonté, il avait déja fait
emplette de quelques matériaux qu’il sera obligé de revendre & perte;
§'il avait déja loué des ouvriers qui lui deviennent inutiles. On doit
aussi comprendre, dans les dommages et intéréts de l'entrepreneur, le
profit qu’il aurait pu faire sur d’autres marchés que celui dont on demande
la résolution lui a fait refuser.

Pothier’s reference to claims which may be considered
under the head of damages, is clearly only by way of ex-
amples. Our code, as I have said, is definite merely with
regard to “ actual expenses and labour,” but I think it may
be stated that Pothier’s refusal to allow the contractor to
claim

le prix entier du marché aux offres qu’il fait de remplir de sa part son
obligation

holds good under the true construction of art. 1691 C.C.

Coming now to the appellant’s claim of $35,000 under
clause 8 of the agreement, it is therein expressly stated that
this sum is to be paid to it

as their recompense for superintending the construction and completion
of the vessel.
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stipulated for installation of engines, boilers and machinery
and the supplying and installation of the necessary piping
and valves, may be assimilated to what Pothier calls “le
prix entier du marché.” In my opinion, only the part of
this “ recompense "’ which corresponds to the actual ““ super-
intendence ”’ can be allowed either as damages or as “ actual
expenses or labour,” and I think it comes better under the
heading of “ damages,” for, under reserve of the question
of the “ sea chest ” to which I will presently refer, it is not
contended that all actual expenses and sums spent for
labour or materials were not paid by the respondent.

I do not think the judgment of the Superior Court can
be restored, for it awarded to the appellant the whole of
the sum payable for superintending the construction until
full completion of the vessel. There is however room for a
difference of opinion whether an allowance of approximately
one-third of the $35,000 is sufficient compensation for dam-
ages suffered by the appellant by reason of the cancella-
tion of the contract under art. 1691 C.C. The question,
however, whether any damages at all should be granted,
and, if so, what should be their amount, are questions to
be determined by the court under this article. The Court
of King’s Bench came to the conclusion that the appellant
was entitled to damages, and granted it the sum of $12,000,
and this court does not interfere with the quantum of such
damages unless a wrong principle has been followed by the
court in assessing them. This has not been shewn. I
therefore do not feel justified in increasing the award with
respect to these damages.

I may add that I do not find the proof satisfactory as to
the portion of the “ recompense ” which can be said to cor-
respond to the superintendence actually exercised. The
appellant’s witnesses say that the expenditure up to the
launching amounted to $350,000, and that ten per cent of
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this would be a fair compensation. This is not the proper
test when dealing with an express contract stating for what
superintendence the $35,000 is to be paid.

Both courts, including Mr. Justice Tellier who dissented,
were of the opinion that the appellant had not sufficiently
proved its claim for $25,000 for loss of the profit it would
have made in installing the boilers, engines and machinery
under clause 7 of the contract. In that I agree, but as to
such a claim, it would suffice to say that the profit which
the workman would have made, had the contract gone on
to completion, is not, under art. 1691 C.C., the proper basis
for the assessment of his damages. That, I have already
stated, is clearly the effect of the article.

The appellant also claims that it is entitled to $2,896.70,
which it expended in building a “ sea chest ”’ in connection
with the carrying out of clause 7 of the contract. The “ sea
chest ”’ was delivered to the respondent but was never paid:
for.

This the respondent does not deny, but its objection is
that this amount was not specifically claimed in the action.
The appellant admitted that in the argument before the
Superior Court these expenses were overlooked. It seems
to me that as this “sea chest” was really made and de-
livered to the respondent, it would be only fair to add the
amount of the expenditure to the $12,000 granted by the
Court of King’s Bench.

With this variation, I would dismiss the appeal with
costs. :

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitor for the appellant: C. A. Barnard.
Solicitors for the respondent: Béique & Bissonnette.
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NaME oF “ WINNIPEG FINANCIAL
CORPORATION ” (PLAINTIFF)
'~ AND
LOUNT ENGINEERING COMPANY
LIMITED, C. T. LOUNT, JOHN L.
LYON (DEFENDANTS).

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR MANITOBA

Surety—Promissory note endorsed by surety for certain purpose and on
certain terms, known to creditor—Surety’s rights—Creditor dealing
with note—General hypothecation of note by creditor to bank—Inad-
missibility of extrinsic evidence as to meaning and effect of hypothe-
cation—Alteration of surely’s position—Inapplicability of s. 26 (r) of
King’s Bench Act, Man. (R8.M., 1913, c. 46)—S8urety’s obligation un~
dertaken on terms that note be used only for advances by a bank
and for advances to a certain required amount—N on-fulfilment of
terms—Release of surety—Creditor’s obligation as to application of
payments.

Plaintiff took a promissory note as collateral security for advances by
him to L. Co., which note had been endorsed by defendant G. As
found by the court, G. had endorsed the note on the terms and con-
ditions, known to plaintiff, that it would be delivered as collateral
gecurity to a bank for a loan to be made by the bank to L. Co. of
810,000, in five advances of $2,000 each, to be used for payment of
agreed upon instalments to L. Co’s. creditors, and that repayment
was to be secured by an assignment to the bank of whatever govern-
ment ditehing contracts L. Co. might secure in 1923. Plaintiff hypo-
thecated the note to his bank, by a general hypothecation in the
bank’s usual form, as collateral to his own account with his bank.

Held, that the case, on the evidence, if not falling within the class of
“those in which there is an agreement to constitute, for a particu-
lar purpose, the relation of principal and surety, to which agree-
“ment the creditor is a party,” at least fell within the class of “ those
in which there is a similar agreement between the principal and
surety only, to which the creditor is a stranger.”” In a case of the
latter class the surety has against the debtor the rights of a surety,
and the creditor receiving notice of his claim to those rights, is not
at liberty to do anything to their prejudice. (Duncan, Foz, & Co.
v. North & South Wales Bank, 6 App. Cas. 1 at pp. 11, 12).

Held, further, that the effect of the plaintiff’s hypothecation to his bank
was to expose G. to be held liable to the bank, as holder in due course,

*PresenT :—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ. ’
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to the extent of his ex facie obligation under his endorsement, not
merely for whatever indebtedness of L. Co. he had undertaken to
guarantee, but for any indebtedness of plaintiff to the bank; and this
obvious alteration in G.s position involved a substantial extension
of his responsibility which released him from liability to the plaintiff.
The principle of Archer v. Hudson, 7 Beav. 551, and other cases cited,
applied.

Plaintiff’s unsupported testimony by which he sought to modify or restrict
the plain meaning and effect of his general hypothecation to the bank,
was wholly inadmissible and ineffectual. (Forman v. Union Trust Co.
[1927] SCR. 1).

S. 26 (r) of The King’s Bench Act, Man. (providing that “ giving time to
a principal debtor, or dealing with or altering the security held by the
principal creditor, shall not of itself discharge a surety or guarantor
* * *7) did not apply. The security held by the creditor to which
the enactment refers is not the obligation either of the debtor or of
the surety, nor the instrument evidencing such obligation, but some
other security held by the creditor for its performance. Were the
charge against the plaintiff was not that of having dealt in an unauthor-
ized manner with any such security, but rather that he had so dealt
with the very instrument evidencing the surety’s contractual obliga-
tion itself.

Held, further, that the facts, known to plaintiff, that G. endorsed the
note only for use as collateral to a bank, and would not have endorsed
it had he known it was to be used for advances to be made by plain-
tiff, & money lender, vitiated G.s consent and prevented any obliga-
tion arising on his part in favour of the plaintiff. Smith v. Wheat-
croft, @ Ch. D. 223, at p. 230, and other authorities, cited.

Held, further, that as G. endcrsed the note for the sole purpose of being
used for a loan of $10,000 to be made in five advances of $2,000 each
to L. Co., which advances were necessary to earry out an arrange-
ment with creditors, the plaintiff, who knew these facts, by refusing
and failing (as found by the court) to advance the final $2,000
promised, declined to fulfil an essential condition of G.'s undertaking
of his obligation of guarantor, and thereby discharged him from his
liability. (Burton v. Gray, 8 Ch. App. 932; Whitcher v. Hall, 5 B. &
C. 269, at p. 275).

The burden of proving that the note was to be a general continuing col-
lateral security, as alleged by plaintiff, was on him. (In re Boys, L.R.
10, Eq. 467; Tatam v. Haslar, 23 Q.B.D. 345, at p. 348).

Further, the court was inclined to hold that, assuming that plaintiff could
claim against G. for the $8,000 advanced on the note, the claim was
satisfied, partly by certain payments, by his appropriation of which
the plaintiff was bound, and partly by a payment on a Government
contract obtained by L. Co. and assigned to plaintiff. Though, as
against L. Co., plaintiff might have a right to apply the payment re-
ceived on the Government contract first against other moneys ad-
vanced to L. Co. to enable it to carry out that contract, yet he had
no such right as against G. who was entitled to have his stipulation
as to Government contract moneys (see first paragraph supra) carried
out. (Newton v. Chorlton, 10 Hare, 646, at p. 653). Failure to apply
these moneys as stipulated for by the surety would amount to a varia-
tion in the contract which would release him. (Can. Bank of Com-
merce v. Swanson, 33 Man. R. 127; Pearl v. Deacon, 1 DeG. & J.,
461).
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APPEAL by the defendant Gordon from the judgment
of the Court of Appeal for Manitoba, which, reversing the
judgment of Galt J., held him liable to the plaintiff in the
sum of $11,401.03 and costs. The plaintiff’s claim against
the said defendant was as endorser, and guarantor of pay-
ment, of a promissory note held by the plaintiff, dated 8th
November, 1922, and delivered to the plaintiff on the 4th
December, 1922, made by the defendant the Lount Engi-
neering Co. Ltd., in favour of the defendant Lount, and
endorsed by him and by the defendant (appellant) Gordon
and by the defendant Lyon. The note was a demand note
for $10,000 payable at the Royal Bank of Canada, Winni-
peg, with interest at 8 per cent. per annum as well after as
before maturity. The facts of the case and the questions
in dispute are sufficiently stated in the judgment now re-
ported. The appeal was allowed.

E. Lafleur K.C. and E. D. Honeyman for the appellant.
W. L. Scott K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

AncLiN C.J.C.—The evidence presents this case as fall-
ing either within the first or the second of the three classes
of suretyship defined by Lord Chancellor Selborne in
Duncan, Fox & Co. v. North & South Wales Bank (1).
If not, as seems most probable, within the first class,
namely
those in which there is an agreement to constitute, for a particular pur-
pose, the relation of principal and surety, to which agreement the creditor
i¢ a party, ’
1t is, at least, within the second class, thus defined by His
Lordship;
those in which there is a similar agreement between the principal and
surety only, to which the creditor is a stranger.

Of a surety of the latter class the Lord Chancellor says
(p. 12) that he has against the debtor

the rights of a surety; and that the creditor receiving notice of his claim
to those rights, will not be at liberty to do anything to their prejudice.

The evidence establishes express notice to the respond-
ent of the appellant’s position as a surety and guarantor
for the Lount Engineering Company—the debtor—and of

(1) (1880) 6 App. Cas. 1, at p. 11.
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the terms and conditions on which that position was as-
sumed by him.

The law affecting the relations of creditor and surety is
materially modified in the Province of Manitoba by s. 26
(r) of The King’s Bench Act, R.S.M., 1913, c. 46:—

Giving time to a principal debtor, or dealing with or altering the
security held by the principal creditor shall not of itself discharge a surety
or guarantor; in such case a surety shall be entitled to set up such giving
of time or dealing with or alteration of the security as a defence, but it
shall be allowed only in so far as it shall be shown that the surety has
thereby been prejudiced. .
Because it introduces a new principle in derogation of the
ordinary legal rights of a surety this statute must be taken
to alter the law only in so far as its terms clearly express
legislative intent to do so. The security held by the credi-
tor to which the enactment refers is not the obligation
either of the debtor or of the surety nor the instrument
evidencing such obligation, but some other security held
by the creditor for its performance. Here the charge
against the respondent is not that of having dealt in an .
unauthorized manner with any such security, but rather
that he has so dealt with the very instrument evidencing
the surety’s contractual obligation itself. Except in then
case of merely giving time to the principal debtor, nothing
in the section under consideration interferes with the legal
effect of a variation in the contractual obligation either of
the debtor or of the surety effected without the surety’s
assent and any such change (not obviously unsubstantial)
resulting from the action of the creditor will still discharge
the surety in Manitoba as it does in other provinces where
English law prevails. Holme v. Brunskill (1).

It is common ground that the promissory note, on which
the appellant is sued as endorser and in respect to which
he held, to the knowledge, and probably by the agreement,
of the respondent, the position of a surety, was given to,
and taken by, the respondent as collateral security either
for a specific part (according to the appellant’s conten-
tion) or for the whole (according to the contention of the
respondent) of the indebtedness of the Lount Engineering
Company to the respondent. That note was, nevertheless,
hypothecated by the respondent to the Royal Bank of

(1) (1878) 3 Q.B.D. 495, at pp. 505-6.
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Canada, by a general hypothecation in the bank’s usual
form, as collateral to his own account with the bank.
The respondent admittedly had a large “line of credit”
with the Royal Bank which was, at times, drawn against
to its limit. The effect of the hypothecation was to
expose the appellant to be held liable to the bank, as
holder in due course, to the extent of his ex facte obliga-
tion under his endorsement, not merely for whatever
indebtedness of the Lount Engineering Company he
had undertaken to guarantee, but for any indebtedness
of the respondent to the bank, which might, of course, be
entirely disconnected with the Lount Engineering Com-
pany. The unsupported testimony of the respondent by
which he sought to modify or restrict the plain meaning
and effect of this general hypothecation to the bank was
wholly inadmissible and ineffectual. Forman v. Union
Trust Co. (1). This obvious alteration in the surety’s
position involved a substantial extension of his responsi-
bility which, in our opinion, released him from liability to
the respondent. Such a case is not within s. 26 (r) of the
Manitoba King’s Bench Act, R.S.M. 1913, c. 46. The
principle of the following decisions applies: Archer v.
Hudson (2); Pybus v. Gibb (3); Finch v. Jukes (4);
Newton v. Chorlton (5). See too Bank of Montreal v.
Normandin (6).

While this appeal might be disposed of on the short
ground above stated, we think it proper to rest our judg-
ment for the appellant as well on other grounds subjoined.

Other variations in the contract of the principal debtor
—(1) by charging bonuses on advances which made the
rates of interest exorbitant—well over 100 per cent. per
annum on an eight months’ basis of credit in the case of
the first advance and over 75 per cent. in the case of the
two later advances (‘ payment accordingly ”; vide infra)
—and (2) providing for interest at 20 per cent. on the notes
finally taken to cover the balances due by the company,
are also invoked by the appellant as grounds for release.

(1) [1927]1 SCR. 1. (4) [1877] W.N. 211.

(2) (1844) 7 Beav. 551, at pp. (5) (1853) 10 Hare, 646, at pp.
561-4. 652-3.

(3) (1856) 6 E. & B, 902, at p. (6) [1925] S.C.R. 587.
914.
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But no specified rate of interest to be paid by the principal
debtor on its borrowings would seem to have been stipu-
lated for by the surety; and the 20 per cent. rate on the
last notes taken does not appear to have been pleaded as
a ground for discharge. We accordingly do not treat these
variations, if they be such, as entitling the appellant to
relief. Yet, while they may not serve as specific grounds
of defence, these excessive interest charges imposed by
the respondent make very clear the materiality to the ap-
pellant of his understanding (hereinafter dealt with) that
he was guaranteeing the repayment of advances to be
made by a bank and not by a note-shaving money-lender.

The respondent’s testimony is unsatisfactory and can-
not be relied upon when in conflict with that of other wit-
nesses. This seems to have been the view of the learned
trial judge; upon it he rejected the respondent’s story as
to the purpose for which the note in suit was taken by
him; and a careful study of the record discloses that that
view of Galt J. was fully justified.

While some of the testimony of the defence witnesses,
Lount, Lyon, Williams and Gordon, detailing conversa-
tions between themselves in the absence of the plaintiff,
may have been improperly received, there is enough ad-
missible evidence to establish that the appellant Gordon
endorsed the $10,000 note sued on upon the distinct under-
standing

(a) that it would be delivered as collateral security
to a bank for advances to be made by the bank to the
Lount Engineering Company;
~ (b) that it was to be collateral security only for a
loan of $10,000, to be made in five advances of $2,000
each, to the Lount Engineering Company, and to be
used for the payment of agreed upon instalments to its
creditors;

(¢) that repayment of these advances was to be se-
cured by an assignment to the bank of whatever ditch-
ing contracts the debtor company might secure during
the year 1923 from the Manitoba Government.

The respondent denies knowledge that the obligation
undertaken by the appellant was subject to these terms
and insists that the note sued on was handed to him by
Lount, secretary of the Engineering Company, as a gen-
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eral and continuing collateral security for any indebted-
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ness which that company might incur to him and that he Goroon
took the note without notice of any restriction affecting > .

Lount’s right so to use it.

(a) That both the appellant Gordon and his solicitor
- McWilliams were insistent with Lount that the note should
be used to enable the company to borrow from a bank and
that studied and successful efforts were made by Lount to
conceal from Dr. Gordon that advances to the Lount En-
gineering Company were to be obtained not from a bank,
but from the respondent, is made very clear in the evi-
-dence.

Lount says that Hebblewhite knew that his interest in
the matter was being concealed from Dr. Gordon—that he
told Hebblewhite that “ we could not get Mr. McWilliams
to recommend that Dr. Gordon go on the note unless the
money were to be procured from the bank.” This is, of
course, denied by the respondent. The note now sued
upon bears stamped above the endorsements of Lount, Lyon
and Gordon the words: “ Pay to the order of the Winnipeg
Financial Corporation ” (the respondent’s business name)
and below these endorsements, but above a second set of
the same signatures, the words stamped: “I hereby waive
protest, notice of protest and presentation of the within
note and guarantee payment of the same.” The respond-
ent swore that both these stampings were put on the back
of the note when he drew it up, according, he says, to his
usual custom. His evidence when first given was rather
in the nature of an inference from that custom than of an:
act of remembrance; but, when recalled in rebuttal he
swore he positively remembered this fact; whereupon the
learned trial judge significantly observed that he had be-
come more explicit. It is abundantly proved that the first,
or upper, stamping was not on the note when endorsed by
Dr. Gordon, whereas the second, or lower, stamping was
then upon it; and, in view of the respondent’s evidence
as to his “policy ” of putting these stampings on all his
notes when preparing them for signature, these incidents
are most significant and strongly corroborative of Lount’s
statement that the respondent was fully cognizant of—
indeed they suggest that he actively connived in—the con-
cealment from Dr. Gordon of the fact that Hebblewhite
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1927 was to be given the $10,000 note as collateral for advances
Gorox  to be made by him to the company. There can be no
Hemnn  doubt that Hebblewhite was fully aware, when he took the

ware.  $10,000 note, that Dr. Gordon had endorsed it only for use

Anglin s collateral at a bank and that he would not have en-

CJC.  dorsed it had he known that it was to be used for advances

" to be made by Hebblewhite. The identity, in the sense
of the character, of the person to whom he was to contract
an obligation as endorser was so material as an induce-
ment to Dr. Gordon that mistake as to it vitiated his con-
sent and prevented any obligation arising on his part in
favour of Hebblewhite. Smith v. Wheatcroft (1); Said v.
Butt (2); Pothier, Traité des Obligations, s. 19; Gordon
v. Street (3); Cundy v. Lindsay (4). If such a mistake
as to person so induced will preclude an effective consent
in the case of an ordinary contract, a fortiori must it do so
in the case of a contract strictissimi juris, as is that of
guarantee. Owen v. Homan (5).

(b) The sole purpose of the giving of the $10,000 note
as collateral security was, to the knowledge of the respond-
ent, to enable the Lount Engineering Company to carry
out an agreement made with its creditors, whose claims
aggregated some $50,000, whereby they agreed in consider-
ation of the receipt of certain instalments, aggregating
$2,000 monthly for five months, not to enforce the balances
of their claims for a year. To carry out this arrangement .
$10,000 was necessary; no smaller sum would suffice. All
this was fully explained by Lount to the respondent, who,
at first, asked for a collateral note of $15,000 or $20,000,
but, when told that Dr. Gordon would not endorse for
more than $10,000, agreed to accept a note for the latter
sum, telling Lount, not that he would have to take a
smaller advance, but “ that he would have to pay accord-
ingly.” And “ accordingly ” bonuses of $2,500 on the first
advance of $4,000 and of $1,000 apiece on each of the two
later advances of $2,000 were charged. The burden of
proving that the $10,000 note was to be a general continu-

1) (1878) 9 Ch. D., 223, at p. (3) [1899] 2 Q.B. 641, at p. 647.
230.
2) [19201 3 K.B. 497. (4) (1878) 3 App. Cas. 459.

(5) (1851) 3 Mac. & G., 378, at pp. 396-9.
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ing collateral security was on the plaintiff: Inre Boys (1);
Tatam v. Haslar (2).

Lount deposes:—

* * * T spoke to Mr. Hebblewhite about getting the money, and he
demanded that in addition to the order for any works which we might
procure from, the Provincial Government, that I get a collateral note
signed by the other directors, as a further security for this loan.

Q. Did Mr. Hebblewhite, prior to the date of Exhibit No. 1, ask you
to obtain from your co-defendant directors a collateral note for some
$15,000 or $20,0007—A. When I went to Mr. Hebblewhite for the money
he said that he would like a note of that size. I told him that it would
be utterly impossible to get it, and he suggested $10,000, and I then
endeavoured to get it.

Q. What did you say to him? Did you tell him how much money
you wanted?—A. Yes. We had a table prepared—in fact we had taken
it up with the creditors, and got letters from them, stating that on receipt
of a proportion of it—the indebtedness of the company to them—which
would amount to about $10,000, that they would withhold any action
until the fall of 1923. I told Mr. Hebblewhite I thought that it would
be impossible to get such a note. However, he insisted that he could
not make the loan without it.

Q. You say that you told him as to the amount of money which you
required for the purpose of satisfying the creditors of the defendant com-
pany, and that Mr. Hebblewhite insisted that you should get a note for
the $10,000 that you required, endorsed by the other two directors of the
company, Mr. John N. Lyon and Dr. C. W. Gordon, and you told him
that you thought that it would be impossible to get such a note?—A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell him why?—A. I pointed out that they were not re-
ceiving any good—benefit—from the proposition, and, further, that Mr.
McWilliams was very much averse to Dr. Gordon going on * * * I
pointed out to Mr. Hebblewhite that Mr. R. F. McWilliams, who was
acting for Dr. Gordon, seemed very much averse to the doctor going on
any further with any guarantees whatever. However, I couldn’t get the
loan without this and, finally, after preparing a statement showing how
we were going to spend the money, Mr. McWilliams authorized Dr. Gor-
don to take such a step.

* * *

Q. You had some discussion with Mr. Hebblewhite as to how the
loan he was making should be returned?—A. Yes. It was to be made in
five monthly payments of $2,000 each for four months, with the under-
standing that it be renewed for a like amount.

Q. You say that you had some discussion with Mr. Hebblewhite as
to how the loan he was making was to be returned—repaid—and it was
to be made in five monthly payments of $2,000 each, for four months,
with the understanding that it be renewed for a like amount?—A. Yes,
for a like period. That would bring it into the operating period of the
dredge, from which we expected to pay it back. We expected a large
“Government contract.

(1) (1870) L.R., 10 Eq., 467. (2) (1839) 23 Q.B.D., 345, at p.

348.
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His LorosHIr: The $10,000 to be advanced?—A. Yes. Q. Not all at
once?—A. Of $2,000 per month, and that would extend the time of repay-
ment into the operating period of the summer months of the machine,
and we expected to get a large ditching contract from the Government,
out of which we were going to pay this money back, and the contractors
are paid in (by) monthly instalments by the Government.

Mr. HoneEyMaN: Did you explain to Mr. Hebblewhite out of what
fund the advance could be repaid?—A. Yes. It was to be repaid out
of the ditching work.

Q. I show you Exhibit No. 36. You signed that document, I under-
stand?—A. Yes.

Q. That is a letter addressed to the Winnipeg Financial Corporation,
dated the first of December, 1922, which reads as follows:

“We hereby agree, upon being awarded a contract, or contracts, from
the Manitoba Government, to give you an order on them, authorizing the
Government to pay direct to you, all estimates for work performed. We
agree to make this order read that it shall remain in force until cancelled
by you, or the account is liquidated.

“We further certify that we have received a letter from each creditor,
stating that upon receipt of certain small payments, which have been
arranged, the balance will be carried until dates ranging from October
1, to November 30, 1923.”

His LorpsHIP: It was not carried out that way, because you got $4,000
on the note?—A. That was arranged because we had arranged to pay the
creditors that payment in November on negotiations direct as to these
small payments, and we were able (sic) to do it, and, consequently, we
were made two payments, and two more (payments) were carried out,
and the fifth was not made.

His Lorpsuir: There were some other monthly payments?—A. Yes.

Mr. HoneyMman: Q. How did you come to sign Exhibit No, 36,
which I have just read to you?—A. Well, we had agreed to do that; the
negotiations were practically through, and I gave Mr. Hebblewhite that
letter.

* * *

The Wirness: I told Mr. McWilliams that I would be getting the
money through a bank.

Mr. HongyMan: Q. Mr. Lyon was there?—A. Yes; I didn’t say any-
thing about the Winnipeg Financial Corporation.

His LorpsErp: He didn’t know anything about the Winnipeg Financial
Corporation?—A. No; he knew nothing.

Mr. Honeyman: Q. Did you tell Mr. McWilliams how the repay-
ment of the moneys was to be secured to the lender?—A. On the Gov-
ernment contract for ditching, which we expected to get.

Q. Did you tell him what amount had been arranged for—what
amount?—A., Yes, $10,000, $2,000 a month,

Q. And that was to be repayable how?—A. That was to be repaid out
of the ditching work.

Q. On what terms, and at what times?—A. Well, in eight months
from the time that the payments were made, so that it would go into
the payments that we would be receiving,

His Lorosu1p: Q. These notes were to be at what length of time?—A.
Four months, and renewable for four months.

Mr. HoNEYMAN: You say that you didn’t say anything of Mr. Hebble-
white?—A. No, certainly I did not.
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Q. Why?—A. Well, I didn’t think the loan would go through and
the company needed it very badly, I concealed that fact.

Q. Mr. Lyon was present when you met Mr. McWilliams, and when
you told him that?—A. Yes.

His Lorosurr: Did he know anything about Mr. Hebblewhite?—A. I
think not, my lord.

* * *

Mr. HoneEyMAN: Q. Under what terms did you give that $10,000 note
to Mr. Hebblewhite?—A. As a collateral security to the advances that he
was to make. He was to advance $10,000 at the rate of $2,000 a month.
He had at that time received an order, or assignment, of any work that
we might get, or any contract we might get, and I gave a note for $6,500
I think, and received the first two months (advances) in advance.

His Lorpsarr: He was to advance the whole $10,000?7—A. Yes.

Mr. HoneyMAN: In January what happened?—A. Mr. Hebblewhite
made the next advance of $2,000. ’

Q. And took a note for $3,0007—A. Yes.

Q. That note is already in?—A. Yes.

Q. In February what happened?—A. He made a further advance of
$2,000. .

. Through the note which is already filed, for $3,0007—A. Yes.

. In March what happened?—A. He stated——

. You saw Mr. Hebblewhite in March?—A. Yes.

. What for?—A. To get the $2,000 to hold the final promise to the
creditors.

Q. About what time in March was it?—A. I can’t say that definitely.
I presume it was around the first, as usual, though.

Q. What did he say then?—A. He said that he didn’t have suffi-
cient security to make the advance, and he couldn’t do so.

Q. What did you say to that?—A. I pointed out that it was disastrous
to us; that we had entered into an arrangement, and certainly we would
be in a very bad shape if we didn’t make the final payment to our credit~

ors

OHOLL

Q. What did he say?—A. Well, he had to have further security, or
another note from Dr. Gordon, and I knew that that was utterly impossible
to get it.

* * *

Q. When you were negotiating with Mr. Hebblewhite in the Fall of
1922 for the loan of $10,000, was there a discussion respecting other ad-
vances which he might have to make?—A. No. We believed that that
contract would put us on our feet.

Q. Was there a discussion in the Fall of 1922, when the note in ques-
tion, Exhibit No. 1, was being arranged, concerning your building con-
tract, a building contract of the company, in the spring of 1923?7—A. Do
you mean the houses?

Q. Yes—A. No. .

Q. You heard what Mr. Hebblewhite said in respect of the note,
Exhibit No. 1, being given to him as a collateral continuing security for
all advances to be made by the company to him?—A. Yes.

Q. What do you say as to that?—A. There was no question of a con-
tinuing security. We were getting a loan of 810,000, which, as far as I
was concerned, was to be the final loan. .

Q. What would you say as to Mr. Hebblewhite's statement that he
did not agree to loan any specified sum at all to you when you left the
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collateral note with you (him), and that he would only do what financing
he could at the bank on it?—-A. I don’t recollect that statement. We went
ahead on the basis of getting $10,000 to hold off our creditors.

* * .

Q. Did you ever get the last $2,000 upon the $10,000 advance from Mr.
Hebblewhite, upon the security of the collateral note?—A. Not on the
original security, no.

Q. Have you had any discussion with Mr. Hebblewhite subsequent
to the handing over of Exhibit No. 1, the collateral note for $10,000, as
to its being used for security for other advances?—A. No.

Q. When did you first learn that Mr. Hebblewhite was claiming that
this note in question (Ex. No. 1) was given as security for all advances
made the company?——A. After this action was started.

Q. Up to that time what had you thought?—A. I hadn’t thought
anything about it. It was put up originally for the one guarantee.

Q. For the one guarantee of what?—A. $10,000.

Q. Of which how much was advanced?—A. $8,000.

* * *

Q. How did you come to sign Exhibit No. 13?—A. According to the
agreement that we made with Mr. Hebblewhite when he advanced us the *
$10,000, or agreed to advance it.

Q. That is, in accordance with the letter of December 1, you mean,
is it?—A. Yes (Ex. No. 36). Yes. We had given a letter at the time
we got, or about the time we got, the advance, that assignment of any
contracts that we got.

Q. Exhibit No. 36 is the letter that you refer to?—A. Yes.

* * »

Q. In the fall of 1922, when you were discussing the collateral note
with Mr. Hebblewhite, what outstanding accounts were there in connec-
tion with building accounts?—A. There were no outstanding accounts in
connection with houses.

Q. What did you tell Mr, Hebblewhite about building in the summer
of 1923?—A. I have no recollection of discussing housing operations at
all. We were counting on the ditching work

Q. How did you know that there was going to be a ditch built—did
you tell Mr. Hebblewhite?—A. Oh, yes, we knew it. It was in the papers
as well that this work was coming up.

Q. And you were anticipating getting it?—A. Yes; we certainly did.

Q. If you had got it, what building would you have done in 1923?—
A. The ditching contract was very large and it would have taken up
every moment I had. It was “some size.”

While the respondent, on every opportunity and al-
though not at all responsively to the question put to him,
interjects the statement that the $10,000 note was given
and taken as continuing collateral to the general indebt-
edness of the Lount Engineering Company to himself, not
a little corroboration of Mr. Lount’s evidence to the con-
trary, and as to the actual bargain made, is to be found in
the following passages from Hebblewhite’s testimony:—

Mr. HoNeyMaN: Q. The only sum which Lount wanted you to
advance, when he came to you in the fall of 1922, was the $10,000 which
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he required to pay off his past due debts with certain creditors. Isn’t that
80? And isn’t that correct?—A. That was all for the moment, yes. Q.
You didn’t discuss advancing any further sums either, did you, at that
time?—A. I can’t just remember. I think there was some little discussion
at that time, and I think the housing scheme was discussed at that time.
I am not sure about that, of course.

Q. You advanced $8,000?—A. Yes.

Q. In December, January and February of 1922, 1923, that is, is it
not?—A. Yes.

Q. And you say that Mr. Lount came to you in March and asked
you for the final $2,000, did he not?—A. Yes—he couldn’t. There was
no such arrangement made, and I couldn’t undertake to guarantee to give
him the money, when I had to look to the bank for the money.

Q. Didn't he ask you for $2,000 in March?—A. Yes; he asked me
for 82,000 in March, and I refused to give it to him.

* * *

His LorpsHIP: I would like to know what the bargain was first of

all. A man doesn’t hand over a note for $10,000 you know, without there

being some arrangement about it?

Mr. Taomson: Q. What was the arrangement—what was your
arrangement with regard to the matter?—A. The arrangement was, when
Mr. Lount told me that he could not induce one of the endorsers, Dr.
Gordon, to endorse a note for $15000 or $20,000, but thought that he
could arrange for a note for $10,000 and when he made that statement
to me I informed him that he would have to pay accordingly. And he
subsequently brought in a note for $10,000, with interest at eight per cent
(8%) signed (Exhibit No. 1) by the defendant company, by himself per-
sonally, and endorsed by Mr. John N, Lyon * * *

Q. Why was it—the note in question—made for $10,000?7—A. Because
Lount couldn’t obtain a note for any larger amount endorsed by the in-
dividual endorsers.

* * *

His Lorpsuip: They (the advances mentioned) were for the purposes
of meeting the outstanding debts of the company at that time?—A. Yes,
to pay the pressing creditors of the company, and the money was used
for that purpose.

Q. The $4,000 was part of that?—A. Yes, that was part of it. That
was the first advance I made, and Mr. Lount pointed out to me that
he would require about $2,000 a month. Why he wanted it in that way
I, of course, did not know. It was satisfactory to him anyway.

* * *

Q. You say that in December, 1922, or November, 1922, when you
were first approached by the defendant company for the loan out of
which this transaction grew, there was no money owing to you by the
defendant company, that all previous transactions had been cleaned up?
—A. Yes.

Q. And Lount approached you for a loan for a certain purpose, did
he not?—A. Yes.

Q. He wanted money for the purpose of keeping the creditors quiet
until next year, did he not?—A. Yes,

Q. And he required for that purpose, he told you, $10,000?—A. Yes.

Q. And he arranged with his creditors that certain sums be paid to
them monthly?—A. Yes.
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Q. And the total monthly payments to his creditors, in order to
keep them quiet, totalled $2,000?—A. That was his statement to me, yes.
Q. He told you how he hoped to repay the $10,000 loan, which he
required?—A. From the profits of their business, which he hoped to be
able to do.
Q. During the year, or summer of 1923, the ensuing summer?—A. Yes.
* * *

Q. When did you arrange that the $2,000 monthly advances which
you were asking for, and which you did eventually get them to make
from time to time, were to be repaid?—A. It was to be repaid from any
contracts which they undertook; there was no definite time set for that
—there couldn’t be any, but Mr. Lount made the statement to the man-
ager of the bank that he hoped to clean up all the notes under discount
at the bank by the fall of 1923.

Q. It was specifically mentioned at that time that there would be at
least one renewal?—A. No. Oh no. There was no such arrangement
made in regard to one renewal at all, in regard to the payment of the
notes. Mr. Lount understood that in regard to certain charges which
were being made, that there would be no further charges in the next
renewal.

Q. Mr. Lount told you that he understood, that he believed, that
they had fairly definite arrangements made whereby they would get large
ditching contracts in the summer of 1923, did he not?—A. He didn’t put
it as broadly as that. He hoped to get a contract in February, 1923, from
the Provincial Government, which he did not get.

Q. And it was evidently out of the profits that he would make out
of the ditching that he hoped to pay you, he told you?—A. Not only that,
but any other contracts, any contracts from any other source from Whlch
they made their money.

Q. There was no sum mentioned in the discussion about the ditching
contracts, when you were discussing the amount of the loan of $10,000.—
A. Nothing beyond the fact that he hoped to get this Government con-
tract in February, 1923, which he did not get.

Q. And you were going to be paid out of that?—A. If he got the
contract—why not?

Q. You took an assignment of his company’s contracts with the Pro-
vincial Government at that time, did you not?—A. I did.

Q. Did you not take an agreement to assign?—A. I did not. He gave
me a letter, I think, stating that he would give me an assignment of any
contracts that he got.

Q. Before you got the note, Exhibit No. 1, which has been put in
evidence here, you took this letter from the defendant company, did you
not?—A. Before making any advances to the defendant company I wished -
some assurance from them that I would get the orders, or the assignment
against the work, and I wanted something definite on file.

* * *

Q. And you got it, the letter, before you got Exhibit No. 1 the note
in question here, did you not?—A. Yes—I am not sure of that, of course.
That was immaterial, anyway. All that I wanted was a letter and I
wanted that assurance from Lount first, and I didn’t care when I got lt
but I was going to get it before I made any advances.

* * *
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Mr. HoneyMaN: You have already told us, I think, that you got
Exhibit No. 1 on the 4th of December, 1922.—A. Yes. I received Ex-
hibit No. 1 on the 4th day of December, 1922.

His LorpsaIP: They must have put through an arrangement earlier,
because it is dated the 8th of November, and your negotiations must
have been going on all that time?

The Wrirness: Yes. They began in November, and it was then that
he was afraid that he could not obtain Dr. Gordon’s endorsement to the
note, and that caused the delay, I understand.

Q. You drew the note on or about the 8th of November, I think,
1922—its date, I suppose, did you?—A. Yes.

Q. You gave it to Lount for what purpose?—A. For the purpose of
-obtaining the endorsement of Mr. John N. Lyon and Dr. Gordon.

Q. You asked him to get the endorsement of Dr. Gordon and Mr,
Lyon to the note previously to that?—A. Yes. Mr. Lount first suggested
obtaining these endorsers, and I told him if he couldn’t do any better
that would be satisfactory.

Q. Of course you knew that this note, Exhibit No. 1, would be
endorsed as an accommodation note, endorsed as such by the two men men-
tioned—Dr. C. W. Gordon and John N. Lyon——?—A. It would be
endorsed as a collateral note, and a continuing security, absolutely.

Q. You knew that it was an accommodation note that you were ask-
ing Dr. Gordon and Mr. Lyon for?—A. No. They were directors of the
-defendant company, and they were interested in the defendant company.

Q. And that was the only way that they were interested? They
didn’t owe any $10,000 to the Lount Engineering Co., did they?—A. Oh
no, not that I know of.

Q. They were loaning their names. Isn’t that what you thought?—
A. They were endorsing the note.

* * *

Q. You were not taking much risk when you got Dr. Gordon’s
endorsement? We may figure that you were not?—A. I hoped not. I
was taking the note as good security, endorsed by Dr. Gordon.

* * *

Q. And in January you advanced $2,000 to the defendant company
pursuant to the arrangement you made with Mr. Lount for these monthly
advances, did you not?—A. Yes.

* * *
Q. And that was a four months’ note, was it not?—A. Yes.
* * *

Q. I say you knew Mr. Lount wanted $10,000 with which to hold
off his creditors, and you promised them, the defendant company, that?
You knew that he wanted that amount of money in order to keep his
creditors quiet?—A. He told me that, yes. This was at the beginning of
the negotiations.

Q. And, consequently, $1,000, or $2,000, or $3,000, or $4,000, would
be of no use whatever?—A. Oh, I don’t know about that. He didn’t tell
me that, but apparently it would not suit his purposes.

* * *

Q. It might have been possible that you would not be able to advance
him any more than $4,000?7—A. That is it exactly; I didn’t know that I
could give him more than the $4,000.
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Q. You want us to think that Mr. Lount would embark on that
enterprise, try to get $10,000 in one month, and only get $4,000 the next,
and run the chances of being put out of business, and not be able to
pay his creditors?—A. That was exactly the risk that he would take.

Q. Did you say that you promised to get on that $10,000 note ($10,000
on that note (?))? Did you tell him that?—A. No. I told him that
I would do my best to obtain the money, to obtain what money I could
against this advance of $10,000 note given as collateral security.

Q. How much did you get?—A. Well, he got, altogether, up to and
including April, 8$11,500.

Q. In March what?—A. $8,000.

Q. When he applied to you, what?—A. It was $8,000.

Q. You told him that he could not get any more?—A. He asked me,
I think, for an additional $2,000, and I said no, Lount, and that was all
that there was to it.

* * *

Q. You told him that you would do what you could on the collateral
note?—A. I told him that I would do the best I could with the collateral
note with the Royal Bank of Canada, and I didn’t know what that would
be.

Q. You didn’t do what you could, not what you could, because you
didn’t approach the bank for any more money when he approached you
for that extra $2,0007—A. I was quite determined I would not, and
there was no contract or agreement to that effect and if there were I should
have lived up to it.

x * *

Q. In your examination for discovery were you asked this question:

“All you had in mind, in other words, at the time, was advancing
of moneys to pay off his creditors, and accounts that were overdue?—A.
Yes as against his collateral note.”

That is correct?—A. Yes, that is correct. I was not mterested in anything
else at that time. There was only that to finance, as I have explained to
you.

Q. Now question No. 371:

“ And is the purpose for which you took the collateral note as you
say ?—A. Oh, I required security before I would make these advances,
and he gave me that collateral note as security.”

Q. That is correct?—A. Yes.

In his examination-in-chief the plaintiff divided his total
advances to the Lount Engineering Company, aggregating
$32,547, into three groups:—

Mr. TaoMson: Q. The first group of loans amounted to $8,000 in
connection with the note, Exhibit No. 1, alone. Is that correct?—A. Yes.
Q. And the next group of loans amounted to $15,545.507—A. Yes.

Q. All in connection with notes on the housing scheme?—A. Yes,
orders taken in connection with the housing scheme.

Q. And the third group of loans was in connection with Exhibit No
1, and the assignment, Exhibit No. 13. Is that correct?—A. Yes, clear
enough.

Q. First $8,000, and then $15545.50, and then $8,000 added?—A. Yes.
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The last figure, $8,000, should be $8,912.71. He had said
a little earlier:—
Q. What was the security for the $155457—A. The orders against

the mortgage loans which were being placed on houses which Lount, or
the defendant company, was building.

On careful consideration of all the relevant admissible
testimony the only reasonable conclusion is that the plain-
tiff took the $10,000 note (which, when endorsed by Dr.
Gordon, he regarded as “ good security ”’) as collateral se-
curity only for five advances of $2,000 each to be made
monthly and which he definitely agreed to make and that
he well knew and understood that Dr. Gordon’s endorse-
ment had been obtained on that basis and none other—
save that Dr. Gordon also understood that the arrange-
ment would be made with a bank and not with such a
lender as Hebblewhite. The evidence fully warranted the
findings to that effect made by the trial judge, and, with
respect, they should not have been disturbed.

The evidence also fully supports the finding by the trial
judge that only $8,000 was advanced against the note in
question and that the respondent refused early in March,
when it was due, to make the final advance of $2,000. The
finding of the learned judge who delivered the judgment
of the Court of Appeal that this balance was in fact ad-
vanced during March and April rests upon a misunder-
standing of the first question and answer in the following
passage from Lount’s evidence:—

His Lorpsuir: Did you get the last $2,000 in some other way?—A.
Yes. We had by that time found that we were not going to get the con-
tract that we had been counting on, and I had started my houses, and
I went to Mr. Hebblewhite and got money from him, both to carry on

the houses and to pay off these creditors, and I used the money for both
purposes.

Q. In that way you got your final $2,000?7—A. Yes for a period of
time. The first money I got in March was not all used to pay the credit-
ors with.

Mr. HoneyMaN: The money which you got in March was advanced
upon what?—A. On an order on the mortgage loan upon the houses I was
building.

Q. That is the houses you were building in your own name?—A. Oh,
yes.

Q. And that is the $1,000 in this exhibit which the plaintiff says that
he advanced, the $1,000 on the 7th of March, 1923?7—A, Yes.

Q. And that would be the $1,000 that you got by giving the order
upon the houses which you were building personally, was it?—A. Yes.
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What the witness clearly meant was that he had obtained
by other means the last $2,000 needed to pay the March
instalment to the creditors and not that the respondent
had advanced that $2,000 on the security of the collateral
$10,000 note. Lount’s evidence, on the contrary, is that
Hebblewhite positively and distinctly refused to make
that final advance and that in fact he never advanced
more than $8,000 against the $10,000 note. The money
actually lent in March and April is included in the $15,545
which was all secured by orders against the mortgages
under the housing scheme.

By refusing to advance the final $2,000 promised against
the $10,000 collateral note the respondent declined to fulfil
an essential condition of the appellant’s undertaking of
his .obligation as guarantor and thereby discharged him
from his liability. Burton v. Gray (1); Whitcher v. Hall
(2).

(c¢) Without going at all fully into this phase of the
case, we incline to think that the learned trial judge was
also right in finding that any claim of the plaintiff, assum- -
ing him entitled to hold the defendant Gordon for repay-
ment of the $8,000 advanced against the note sued on, was
fully satisfied. Kinnaird v. Webster (3).

A Manitoba Government contract—the only one ob-
tained by the Lount Engineering Company—was duly as-
signed to the plaintiff in September, 1923, as promised in
the letter of December 1st, 1922, and from it he received
$5,762.08. He alleges that he made advances amounting
to $8,912.71 to the company to enable it to carry out this
contract and asserts the right to repayment of these ad-
vances before crediting the $5,762.08 of receipts against
the earlier advances of $8,000 guaranteed by the note sued
on. Against the Lount Engineering Company he may
have such a right, but not, we think, against the appellant.
As between him and the respondent the stipulation agreed
to that the proceeds of any Manitoba Government con-
tract assigned by the company to the respondent should
be applied to the repayment of the advances made as
against the note endorsed by the appellant was never in
any way departed from or qualified. The appellant is en-

(1) (1873) 8 Ch. App. 932. (2) (1826) 5 B. & C., 269, at p. 275.
(3) (1878) 10 Ch. D, 139.
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titled to have it carried out. Newton v. Chorlton (1).
Failure to apply these moneys as stipulated for by the
surety would amount to a variation in the contract which
would release him. Canadian Bank of Commerce v. Swan-
son (2); Pearl v. Deacon (3).

Having voluntarily appropriated three other payments
aggregating $4,648.40—$2,738.40, $1,000, $900—of the
Lount Engineering Company’s moneys toward payment of
the notes taken for advances made against the $10,000 note
now in suit, the plaintiff should not be heard to say that
such appropriations were a mere matter of book-keeping
and were not meant tc extinguish pro tanto the liability for
which alone the $10,000 note was collateral.

As to the item of $2,738.40 the plaintiff asserts that that
was in fact paid out of the proceeds of another loan or ad-
‘vance made by him to the company and that he got no
benefit from it and on this ground the Court of Appeal held
him not bound to give credit for that sum. But the evi-
dence shows that such other loan was in itself fully repaid
to the plaintiff by the receipt of moneys from the Lount
Engineering Company. This fact, or its significance, would
seem to have escaped the attention of the Court of Appeal.
The plaintiff is in our opinion bound by the appropriation
of the three amounts above specified towards satisfaction
of the $8,000 of the Lount Engineering Company’s indebt-
edness secured by the $10,000 collateral note. The fact,
though not strictly relevant, may also be noted that the
advances made in March and April were fully repaid by the
proceeds of housing-scheme orders.

For these reasons we are, with great respect, of the
opinion that this appeal should be allowed with costs here

and in the Court of Appeal and that the judgment of the .

learned trial judge, in so far as it dismisses the action with
costs as against the defendant Gordon (who alone ap-
pealed to this court), should be restored.

: Appeal allowed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellant: McWilliams, Gunn & Honey-
man. ,

Solicitors for the respondent: Thomson, Thomson &

" Thomson.

(1) (1853) 10 Hare, 646, at p. 653. (2) (1923) 33 Man. R. 127.
(3) (1857) 1 DeG. & J., 461.
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DAME MARY W. MARSHALL (Perr- |
APPELLANT;
TIONER) .« i etetiuentaeennnen caanens j
AND
ALDERIC A. FOURNELLE (DEFEND-

RESPONDENT.
T ) P

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF KING'S BENCH, APPEAL SIDE,
PROVINCE OF QUEBEC
Habeas corpus—Minor child in care of third person—Rights of parents—

Child 14 years of age—Right to choose where to live—Lack of re-
straint—Interest of the child—Judicial discretion.

In the other circumstances of the case as found by the trial judge, the court
declined to interfere with his order refusing a writ of habeas corpus
to a mother asking for the possession of her daughter, when the lat-
ter, then being past 14 years and 8 months of age and not without
adequate intelligence to make a reasonable choice, expressed her
desire to remain with the respondent with whom she had been living
happily for seven years.

Judgment of the Court of King’s Bench (Q.R. 40 K.B. 391) aff.

APPEAL from the decision of the Court of King’s

Bench, appeal side, province of Quebec (1), affirming the

judgment of Bruneau J. at the trial and refusing a writ of

habeas corpus issued at the request of the appellant, the
mother, asking for the possession of her minor daughter
from the respondent.

The findings of facts by the trial judge are fully stated
in the judgment now reported.

J. F. R. Wilkes for the appellant.
Auguste Lemieux K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

NewcoMmBE J.—It was upon the following considérants
that Bruneau J., the learned judge of the Superior Court
who heard the application, based his order quashing the
writ of habeas corpus, which had been obtained by the
appellant, the mother of the girl, Violet Marshall:—
Considérant que ladite Violet Catherine Marshall est 8gée de 14 ans et
quelle préfére demeurer chez l'intimé que chez sa mére, la requérante,
pour le motif que celle-ci I'a battue et qu'elle craint le méme traitement
en retournant avec elle;

Considérant que ladite Violet Catherine Marshall a été placée chea

Vintimé du consentement_de la requérante il y a plusieurs années; que
le choix de ladite Violet “Catherine Marshall est volontaire, libre, et n’a

*Present:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
(1) (1926) Q.R. 40 K.B. 391.
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été aucunement influencé par l'intimé ou son épouse; qu’au contraire, 1926
ces derniers ont rappelé & ladite Violet Catherine Marshall les devoirs T
MagsHALL

qu’elle avait envers sa mére; qu’elle persiste néanmoins & vouloir demeurer 0.
chez I'intimé ou elle est traitée parfaitement bien sous tous rapports; FOURNELLE.

Considérant que ladite Violet Catherine Marshall ne parait pas agir —_—
par caprice mais par un sentiment que l'on peut estimer &tre légitime; Newcombel.

Considérant qu'il n’y a pas lieu, dans l'intérét méme de ladite Violet I
Catherine Marshall, d’intervenir dans le choix qu’elle a fait de demeurer
chez lintimé;

Proceeding upon the assumption that the evidence dis-
closes such restraint of the girl by the respondent as
would, if the case were proved in other particulars, justify
relief by habeas corpus, it must be observed that there is
contradiction in regard to some of the material facts; but
it is certain that there is in the record evidence which, if
believed, justifies the findings, and these have not been
disturbed upon appeal; moreover the learned judge had
the parties before him and heard them and their witnesses,
including the girl, viva voce, and therefore had a better
opportunity than we to appreciate the weight which ought
to be given to their testimony, and also to judge of the in-
telligence of the girl and of her capacity to choose. She
was then past 14 years and 8 months of age, and a perusal
of her testimony indicates that she was not without ade-
quate intelligence to make a reasonable choice. See

Stevenson v. Florant (1), affirmed on appeal by the Judi-
" cial Committee. _

That the learned judge had a judicial discretion, to be
_exercised having due regard to the facts of the case, is ad-
mitted. The appellant’s case is that he used this discre-
tion improvidently, but that has not been established;
and, considering the girl’s age, now within a few months
of 16 years; her desire to remain with the respondent,
with whom she has been living happily for seven years,
and the other circumstances of the case, we are not satis-
fied that we would consult the true welfare of the girl by
compelling her return to her mother. The Queen v.
Gyndall (2).

The appeal should therefore be dismissed.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellant: Holt & Wilkes.
Solicitors for the respondent: Robillard, Julien & Allard.

(1) [1925] S.C.R. 532, at p. 544. (2) [1893] 2 Q.B.D. 253.
32780—4 -
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STANDARD TRUSTS COMPANY (PrAIN-
TIFF) o ve ot tenneannnaenneennnnnnns

AND
MUNICIPALITY OF HIRAM AND R
W. A. LAMROCK (DEFENDANTS). .. ESPONDENTS.

ON APPEAL FROM THE APPELLATE DIVISION OF THE SUPREME
COURT OF ALBERTA

}APPELLANT ;

Assessment and taxes—Sale for unpaid tares—Defects in—Person inter-

ested—Absence of notice to—Effect of curative section 44a, Tax Re-
covery Act, 1919,

A sale and transfer of land for unpaid taxes under the Alberta Taz Re-
covery Act of 1919, even though made prior to January 1st, 1924, can
be successfully attacked on the ground that the notice required by
s. 42, (amended by 1921, c. 25, 5. 13) had not been sent to a “ person
interested ” in the land (in this case a mortgagee), as the curative pro-
vision in that Act, s. 44a as enacted by 1923, c. 5, 8. 26¢, does not
then apply—The failure to give this notice is a defect so funda-
mental that it rendered the transfer ineffectual. The statute makes
the giving of such notice a condition precedent to the exercise of the
power to execute and deliver a transfer, and section 44a contains no
provision to cover the absence of the notice.

A “person interested ” in land sold for taxes has an absolute right to the
formal notice prescribed by the Act, even if that person had knowl-
edge, before the expiration of the delay for sending the notice, that
the land had been so sold. Toronto v. Russell, [19081 A.C. 493 dist.

Judgment of the Appellate Division (22 Alta. L.R. 148) reversed.

APPEAL from the decision of the Appellate Division of
the Supreme Court of Alberta (1), reversing the judgment
of Boyle J. at the trial and dismissing the appellant’s
action.

The judgment of the trial judge declared a sale of a
quarter section of land for taxes to be illegal and void and
directed the cancellation of the certificate of title issued to
the respondent Lamrock, who was the purchaser at the tax
sale. The sale was made for arrears of taxes for the year
1920 and took place on 29th October, 1921. The transfer
is dated 30th November, 1923, and registered 21st Janu-
ary, 1924, and the certificate of title was issued some time
afterwards. The consideration of the transfer was $75.35

(2). The respondents rely for the support of the sale and

*PresENT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.

(1)(1926) 22 Alta. L.R. 148; [1926]1 1 W.W.R. 561.

(2) Reporter's Note—Special leave to appeal to this court was
granted, 14th June, 1926,
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transfer upon The Tax Recovery Act of 1919, c. 20, and
The Tax Sale Relief Act, 1922, ¢. 53. The appellant’s in-
terest in the land sold is as mortgagee.

G. H. Steer for the appellant.—The giving of the notice
required by s. 42 of the Act of 1919 as amended by c. 25,
s. 13, 1921, was a condition precedent to the giving of any
transfer and the transfer given to the respondent Lamrock
was not given pursuant to the Act and therefore did not
cure the defects proved in the sale proceedings.

The transfer given to the respondent Lamrock did not
come within the terms of the curative section of The Tax
Recovery Act enacted as s. 26 (c) of c. 5 of the statutes of
Alberta, 1923.

The transfer not being the transfer referred to in the Act
did not have the curative effect set out in the section.

The cases relied on, Toronto v. Russell (1) and McCut-
cheon v. Minitonas (2), should be distinguished from this
case.

F. H. Chrysler K.C. for the respondents.—The appellant’s
claim is barred by the provisions of the section 14a of the
Tazx Sales Relief Act, 1922, as enacted by chapter 5, 1923, s.
25, and also by section 44a of The Tax Recovery Act (1919)
as enacted by chapter 5, s. 26, 1923.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

RinrFreET J—This appeal raises the question of the valid-
ity of a sale for arrears of taxes for the year 1920, held
under the provisions of The Tax Recovery Act (c. 20 of
the statutes of Alberta, 1919), by the respondent munici-
pality of Hiram. The other respondent, William A. Lam-
rock, was the purchaser at the tax sale.

The sale took place on the 29th October, 1921. The
transfer of the land sold was delivered to Lamrock on the
30th November, 1923, and was registered on the 21st Janu-
ary, 1924. A certificate of title was afterwards issued to
Lamrock by the Registrar of the Land Titles District.

The appellant held in the land an interest as mortgagee
under a memorandum dated March 17, 1919, and duly
registered March 27, 1919, It commenced on the 4th

(1) [1908]1 A.C. 493. (2) [1912] 3 W.W.R. 275.
3278943
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February, 1925, this action alleging failure to comply
with The Tax Recovery Act, claiming a declaration that
the sale was illegal and void and asking for an order re-
storing the title to the name of the former registered owner
with an endorsement thereon of the appellant’s mortgage.

This relief was granted by Boyle J., but his decision was
reversed by the Appellate Division (Beck J. dissenting).

Under The Tax Recovery Act (as amended by statute
of Alberta, ¢. 25 of 1921), the treasurer, assessor or col-
lector of the municipality, to whichever of whom the taxes
are payable, submits to the reeve or mayor, on or before
the fourteenth of August, in each year, a list in duplicate
of all lands liable to be sold for arrears of taxes, with the
amount set opposite each parcel of land.

The reeve or mayor forthwith authenticates each of such
lists by his signature and by the seal of the municipality,
if any. One of these lists is then deposited with the clerk
and the other is given to the treasurer with a warrant
thereto annexed under the hand of the mayor or reeve and
the seal of the municipality, if any, commanding him to levy
upon the lands mentioned in the lists for the arrears due.
And it is only after having received the list and warrant so
authenticated by the signature of the reeve or mayor and
the seal of the municipality that the treasurer may pro-
ceed to advertise and sell the lands.

In this case, the list was not signed by the reeve, and,
although it must be assumed from the record that the
municipality had a seal, the latter appeared neither on the
list, nor on the warrant.

The Act then provides that the list shall be published
for a certain period of time in local newspapers and in
The Alberta Gazette, together with a notice that the lands
will be offered for sale for arrears of taxes at the day, time
and place therein stated; and it is claimed that the adver-
tisements published failed in important particulars to com-
ply with certain sections of the Act or to follow the forms
by it required.

Finally, by ss. 35 and following, it is enacted that the
owner of any land which has been sold for non-payment of
arrears of taxes (or his heirs, executors and assigns) may
at any time, within one year from the date of the sale,
redeem such land by paying the amount of the arrears,
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with costs and certain other sums for penalty; and the Act
(as amended by s. 13 of ¢. 25 of 1921) says—and this is
important, because it is the only notice to which a mort-
gagee is entitled—that if the land has not been redeemed

at the expiration of nine months from the date of the sale,
the treasurer shall immediately send by registered mail to each person
shown by the records of the land titles office to have any interest in such
land a notice in form A in the schedule of this Act, or to the like effect,
and any such person shall be entitled to redeem the land as agent of the
owner of such land, as hereinbefore provided.

By the notice thus required to be sent, the recipient is

informed of the fact of the sale on account of non-payment
of taxes and he is advised that the year allowed for re-
demption will expire on a certain date. The notice con-
tains a complete description of the land and adds:—
If you wish to contest the legality of the sale of such lands, you should
immediately make application to the judge of the District Court of the
judicial district within which the land is situated, for an order staying
the issue of a certificate of title to the purchaser of such lands.

It is not proven that this notice was ever sent to the
appellant and it is admitted that the appellant never
received it.

Under The Tax Recovery Act, the notice in this case
should have been mailed by the treasurer on or about the
30th July, 1922.

However, on 28th March, 1922, and, therefore, long be-
fore the expiration of the period of redemption and more
than four months before this notice should have been sent,
the legislature passed an Act to provide for the “ Relief of
Owners of Lands sold at Tax Sales.” Under that Act, the
owner of any land, which in the year 1920 was sold for
non-payment of arrears of taxes, or any person in his
name, could redeem it at any time prior to the first day of
November, 1922, The procedure to be followed in the
exercise of the right of redemption was there given.

By the 15th section of that Act, in the case of any par-
cel of land which was not subdivided land and was sold
at a tax sale in the year 1921, the Lieutenant-Governor in
Council was given authority to name a date in the year

1923 (with a proviso not material here)
on which the right of redemption of such parcel shall expire, notwith-
standing anything in The Taz Recovery Act contained.

It is common ground that this section applied to the tax
sale here in question.
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Then follows section 16 whereby the Lieutenant-Gover-
nor in Council, when naming such a date, may, among
certain other things, give such directions as may seem
proper to him, with regard to notices and to the procedure
to be followed.

Under the authority of those sections, an Order in Coun-
cil was passed on the 18th September, 1922, and, for lands
sold in the year 1921, it extended the redemption period
until the twenty-first day of October, 1923. The Order in
Council was to take effect on and from the 6th September,
1922. This was later than the date (30th July of the
same year) when the treasurer ought to have mailed his
notice to the appellant. His failure to send it on or about
that date cannot therefore be excused on any ground de-
rived from the provisions of The Tax Sale Relief Act which,
in respect of tax sales having taken place in the year 1921,
by force of the Order in Council, came into operation only
on the 6th September, 1922.

There was in the Order in Council a further direction
that the procedure to be followed in the exercise of the right of redemp-
tion hereby given shall follow, as nearly as circumstances may permit,
the procedure set forth in the said The Tax Sale Relief Act, with the
change of the year 1921 for the year 1920, and of the year 1923 for the
year 1922,

Among the sections of The Tax Sale Relief Act applicable

to the redemption of lands sold for non-payment of taxes in
1920 was the following:—

9. In case notice as provided for in sec. 42 of The Tax Recovery Act
has not been sent out as provided for therein, the treasurer shall before
the first day of July, 1922, send out a notice in form A set out in the
schedule of this Aect, with respect to every parcel of land which is not
subdivided land, which was sold for taxes in the year 1920, and has not
been redeemed at the date of sending out such notice,

2. The said notice shall be sent by registered mail to each person
shown by the records of the land titles office to have had any interest in
such land at the time when notice in form A should have been sent out
under the provisions of section 42 of The Taxr Recovery Act.

The form of the notice, as set out in the schedule, is
similar to that already outlined and provided for under
section 42 of The Tax Recovery Act. The Order in Coun-
cil of the 30th September, 1922, does not in terms give
directions with regard to notices; but it seems a plaus-
ible contention that s. 9 is thereby made applicable
to the exercise of the right of redemption of lands
sold for taxes in the year 1921. The treasurer, however,
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made no attempt under s. 9 to remedy the failure to give
the notice which, under s. 42 of The Tax Recovery Act,
should have been mailed on or about the 30th July, 1922.

This is not without importance, for the respondent
argued with some force that the appellant became aware
of the sale for taxes several months before the expiration
of the time for redemption. In fact, the appellant knew
as early as May 5th, 1923 that the lands had been sold
at the 1921 tax sale and, on the 22nd of the same month,
it was informed by the treasurer of the amount necessary
to redeem. This, however, was in May, 1923. A month
or so still had to run before the expiration of the time for
sending the notice, under s. 9. The purpose of this notice
was not to warn the appellant of facts which he knew
already (as would appear from what transpired on the
dates of May 5th and May 22nd already alluded to). The
object of this notice was mainly to advise, on or before
the 1st July, 1923, any person entitled to redeem that the
time allowed for redemption would expire on the 3lst
October, 1923, and also to inform him that, if he wished to
contest the legality of the sale, he should apply to a judge
of the District Court for an order staying the issue of a
certificate of title to the purchaser of the lands. The
knowledge acquired by the appellant, through the corre-
spondence exchanged on the 5th and 22nd May, 1923, did
not include, these important particulars. The appellant
had an absolute right to the formal notice prescribed by
the Act. Under no legitimate inference can it be held to
have consented to dispense with such notice or to have
waived it. The facts are widely different from those in
Toronto v. Russell (1). In that case, moreover, their
Lordships of the Judicial Committee were dealing with the
debtor of the taxes and not, as here, with the mortgagee
of the land sold.

The courts are, as a general rule, anxious to uphold the
validity of municipal proceedings, if the circumstances
admit of such a result. But, in statutes for the enforce-
ment of taxes and which lead to the forfeiture of rights in
property, the steps prescribed are usually considered
essential and more particularly must provisions requiring
notices be held imperative. Their omission, as in this

(1) [1908] A.C. 493 at pp. 500-501.
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case, s fatal, in the absence of statutory declaration to the
contrary.

Apart from the effect of the curative section, we fully
concur, therefore, with the view of both the trial judge
and the appellate division that the defects proved were
sufficient to invalidate the sale.

But the judgment in appeal found these defects to have
been cured by s. 44a of The Tax Recovery Act as enacted
by s. 26¢ of ¢. 5 of 1923 and that is the point which remains
presently to be examined. (For the purposes of this case
at least, s. 14a of The Tax Sale Relief Act, introduced by
s. 25 of ¢. 5 of 1923, does not add anything to s. 44a and
need not be considered separately.)

Sec. 44a is as follows:—

44a. From and after the first day of January, one thousand nine hun-
dred and twenty-four, every sale of lands for arrears of taxes held under

" the provisions of this Act and every transfer issued pursuant to the pro-

visions hereof shall, notwithstanding any informality or defect in or preced-
ing such sale, be valid and binding to all intents and purposes except as
against the Crown; and every such transfer shall from and after the said
first day of January one thousand nine hundred and twenty-four, be con-
clusive evidence of the assessment and valid charge of the taxes on the
land therein described and that all the steps and formalities necessary
for a valid sale had been taken and observed as provided by this Act
in that behalf; and thereafter any such sale and transfer and any certifi-
cate of title issued pursuant to any such transfer shall only be questioned
on the following grounds or any of them and no other;

(a) that the sale was not conducted in a fair, open, and proper man-
ner; or

(b) that there were no taxes whatever in arrears for which the said
land could be sold; or

(¢) that the said land was not liable to be assessed for taxes.

The jurisprudence of this court is not lacking in prece-
dents to the effect that enactments, such as this, will be
given a construction which will cover defects so substan-
tial and fundamental as to render the proceedings abso-
lutely null and void, cnly if their language requires it.
McKay v. Crysler (1); O’Brien v. Cogswell (2); Whelan
v. Ryan (3); Heron v. Lalonde (4); Temple v. North
Vancouver (5) might be referred to. Nevertheless these
statutes, like all others, must receive their effect and, as
was said by their Lordships of the Judicial Committee
(Toronto v. Russell (6) ).

(1) (1879) 3 Can. S.C.R. 436. (4) (1916) 53 Can. S.C.R. 503.
(2) (1839) 17 Can. S.C.R. 420. (5) (1914) 6 W.W.R. 70.
(3) (1891) 20 Can. SCR. 65. (6) [19081 A.C. 493, at p. 501.
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since the main and obvious purpose and object of the legislature * * *
was to validate sales made for arrears of taxes in the carrying out of which the
requirements of the different statutes as to the mode in which they should
be conducted had not been observed, and to quiet the titles of those who
had purchased at such sales, the statute should, where its words permit,
be construed so as to effect that purpose and attain that object.

But a careful examination of s. 44a discloses that it does
not comprise in the word “sale” the whole of the pro-
ceedings taken under the statute up to and including the
delivery of the transfer. On the contrary, a clear distinc-
tion is there made between the “sale” and the subsequent
“ transfer,” which words are used to mean two separate
and successive operations.

It follows that “sale” here is used in the restricted
sense of the knocking down to the purchaser at the auction,
and not in its wider meaning comprising the whole trans-
action up to its completion when the treasurer has executed
and delivered to the purchaser a “transfer” of the land
sold. As a result, by force of s. 44a, any informality or
defect in or preceding the auction and knocking down to
the purchaser is cured and validated. This covers
the failure of the reeve to sign the list, the lack of
a seal on the list and on the warrant, the insuffi-
ciencies in the forms of advertisement required by the
Act, and, generally speaking, any of the proceedings con-
nected with the sale anterior to and in the course of the
auction and knocking down.

The section further enacts that, if the transfer is * issued
pursuant to the provisions” of the Act, it becomes con-
clusive evidence that the assessment and charge of taxes
were valid and that all steps and formalities necessary for
a valid sale have been taken and observed; and the
sale (i.e., auction and knocking down), the transfer itself
and the certificate of title can thereafter be questioned
only on any or all of the three grounds enumerated at
~ the end of the section, none of which—it may be men-
tioned—has any connection whatever with the transfer
proper.

This is equivalent to saying that once the actual trans-
fer has been properly and legally issued, the validity of
the assessment and charge of taxes and the regularity of
all the steps and formalities attending the tax sale may
no longer be challenged, unless either the auction was not

57
1926

L e
STANDARD
Trusts Co.
V.
MuNicI-
PALITY OF
Hiram.

Rinfret J.



58

1926

L e
STANDARD

Trusts Co.
v.
Municr-
PALITY OF
Hiram.

Rinfret J

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

“ conducted in a fair, open and proper manner,” or no
arrears of taxes were due or the land was not liable to be
assessed. But this provision is predicated upon the exist-
ence of an effectual transfer. It assumes the transfer to
have been executed otherwise pursuant to the power con-
ferred in the Act and obviously such requirement is essen-
tial to the applicability of the section.

The failure, in the present case, to give notice to the
mortgagee is a defect so fundamental that it rendered the
transfer ineffectual. The statute made that notice a con-
dition precedent to the exercise of the power to execute
and deliver a transfer and there is nothing in s. 44a to
cover the absence of such notice. This precludes the ap-
plication of the curative section.

The result is that the tax sale cannot stand, for it is
impossible to conceive that the statute contemplated a
sale which could not be completed by a valid transfer. It
is obvious that absence of this notice to the mortgagee
would be an absolute answer by the municipality to an
action for specific performance by the purchaser at the
tax sale. In this respect, the auction and the transfer may
not be disconnected and together they form the successive
and indispensable steps of a single conveyance or sale.
There are no provisions whereby the notice could now be
given to the mortgagee, even if it were found possible to
cancel the transfer alone and put the parties back where
they stood before it was executed.

The illegality of the transfer coupled with the impos-
sibility of its being remedied therefore entails the setting
aside of the whole tax sale.

Finally, section 21 of The Tax Sale Relief Act ought to
be mentioned, because it appeared to some extent to be
relied on by the respondent.

Here, the certificate of title was issued and s. 21 is to
the effect that all proceedings taken under the provisions
of The Tax Sale Relief Act with regard to the

obtaining of a certificate of title to lands, shall be good and valid, not-
withstanding any want of compliance with the procedure prescribed at
any period under the provisions of The Taz Recovery Act.

In this case, we think the failure to give notice to the
mortgagee was not merely a defect of procedure, but went
to the very root of the power to execute and deliver the
transfer.
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The appeal therefore ought to be allowed and the judg- 192

ment of the trial judge restored. STANDARD
. Trusts Co.
Appeal allowed with costs. Mt
Solicitors for the appellant: Macdonald, Weaver & Steer. *Hian.
Solicitors for the respondents: Auxier & Brennan. Rinfret J.
DOMINION TEXTILE COMPANY, LIM- A 1026
ITED (DEFENDANT) «..evvvn..... PPELLANTS  woot. 20.
*Dec. 1.
AND —
DAME MARY LUCY SKAIFE Er vir
(PLAINTIFF) ......oviinvvnvnnnn. e RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF KING'S BENCH, APPEAL SIDE,
PROVINCE OF QUEBEC

Practice and procedure—Pleadings—Inscription-in-law—W atercourses—
Dam raising level of water—Action for damages and demolition—
Defence alleging existence of dam for long period and act by owner
of removing obstructions—Materiality of these facts—Trial judge—
Demolition of a thing—Direction of the court—Art. 1066 C.C.—
Arts. 105, 108, 110, 191, 192 C.C.P.

The plaintifi respondent alleged in her statement of claim that she had
been, since 24th July, 1914, owner of a parcel of land situate in the
township of Magog and bounded on the west by lake Memphremagog;
that the defendant company had been for several years the owner of
certain dams and constructions at the outlet of the lake and by reason
of their illegal use and maintenance had been interfering with and
changing the “normal, usual and natural level” of the waters; that
the appellant had created a public nuisance and thus gradually had
damaged the respondent’s land; and the respondent claimed not only
to recover the loss so caused but also that the dam be demolished.
The appellant, among other allegations of its defence, pleaded in
paragraph 4 that the dam had existed since 1835 and at its present
elevation since 1882; and that in 1915 the dam was carried away
and replaced by a temporary structure erected in that year, which in
turn was succeeded by the present dam. in 1920 and 1921; and the
appellant pleaded further in paragraph 5 that the appellant’s auteurs,
far from having caused the waters to rise, had removed obstructions
from the outlet of the lake and enlarged the discharge, thereby prevent-
ing the water from reaching its normal height during freshets. The
respondent inscribed in law against these two paragraphs of the
defence, objecting that the facts therein alleged were irrelevant and
did not support the conclusions of the defence.

*PreseNt:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
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Held that the facts pleaded in these two paragraphs were not irrelevant
to the issues between the parties and their proof should not have
been excluded as immaterial, upon an inscription in law.

Held also that, under the Quebec “rules of pleading” (Arts. 105, 108,
110, 191, 192 C.C.P.), a paragraph of a defence is sufficient in law if
it allege a material fact, even although the proof of other facts, which
may be alleged in other paragraphs, be essential to justify the defend-
ant’s conclusion. Moreover a fact pleaded is not immaterial, although
it have relation only to the damages claimed, or a part of the dam-
ages, as distinguished from the right which the plaintiff alleges to
maintain the action. Mignault J. expressing no opinion.

Held, further, that, although by the terms of article 1066 C.C. a court
may order demolition of a thing to be effected by its officer, or
authorize the injured party to do it at the expense of the other, it
seems only consistent with justice, and no doubt is intended, that that
power shall be exercised by the court at its discretion. Mignault J.
expressing no opinion.

APPEAL (1) from the decision of the Court of King's
Bench, appeal side, province of Quebec, affirming the judg-
ment of Coderre J. and maintaining the respondent’s in-
scription in law against two paragraphs of the appellant’s
plea.

The material facts of the case and the questions at issue
are fully stated in the above head-note and in the judg-
ments now reported.

W. F. Chipman K.C. for the appellant.
A. Chase-Casgrain K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the majority of the court (Anglin C.J.C.
and.Duff, Newcombe and Rinfret JJ.) was delivered by

NewcomBe J.—The plaintiff (respondent), by her
declaration, filed 5th February, 1925, alleged that she had
been, since 14th July, 1914, owner of a parcel of land there-
in described, situate in the township of Magog, and bounded
on the west by lake Memphremagog; she made the follow-
ing allegations against the defendant (appellant) in pars.
2 and 3 of her declaration:

2. The defendant is, and has been for several years, the owner of
certain dams or constructions at the outlet of lake Memphremagog, and
by reason of its illegal use and maintenance of said dams and construe-

(1) Reporter’s Note—Jurisdiction of this court was affirmed by a
judgment of 2nd February, 1926, reported in [1926]1 S.C.R. 310; the court
holding that the judgment appealed from was a “final judgment” within
the meaning of par. ¢ of s. 2 of the Supreme Court Act.



8.C.R. SUPREME COURT OF CANADA 61

tions the defendant has for several years been interfering with and chang- 1926
ing the natural course and level of the waters in lake Memphremagog, DOM- ;N"ION

eausing the same to rise beyond their normal and usual height to the TexmiLe Co
detriment and loss of the plaintifi as hereinafter alleged. v ’

3. By reason of such illegal interference with the level of the waters  SKAIFE.
in lake Memphremagog, the defendant has not only caused the said waters New;;be I
to rise beyond their normal and usual height, but has caused said waters
to remain at a higher level for considerable periods beyond the normal,
usual and natural level of the said waters and were it not for the said
acts of the defendant the average level of the said waters would be much
lower.

The plaintiff proceeds to allege that, in consequence, a
considerable part of the margin of her property upon the
lake has been undermined and carried away by flooding,
or had been rendered useless by the overflow; that the
vegetation and a number of trees had been destroyed, and,
by par. 5, that these damages had been caused gradually
from day to day. The plaintiff moreover alleges by pars.
11 and 12 that:

11. As the dam constructed by the defendant at the discharge of
of the said lake Memphremagog, which causes the above mentioned change
in the level of the waters of the said lake, has been constructed by the
defendant and has been kept and maintained by the defendant for the
said discharge illegally and without right and constitutes a public nuis-
ance which causes damage and will continue to cause damage to the
plaintiff and to the plaintiff’s said property hereinabove mentioned because
the raising of the level of the said waters will continue to act as it has
been acting for these last years, the plaintiff is entitled to ask that the
defendant be enjoined from using the same dam and maintaining the
same and be ordered to demolish the same, or at least any part thereof
which causes or may be apt to cause a change in the level of the waters
of the said lake Memphremagog opposite the plaintiff’s said property.

12. Even if the defendant had the right to maintain and operate the °
said dam and raise the level of the said lake, as aforesaid, which the plain-
tiff denies, its exercise of such right would nevertheless in law be subject
to the condition of paying all damages caused to third parties by the
exercise thereof and the defendant would all the same be responsible
towards the plaintiff for the said damages.

The conclusions are for damages; demolition of the dam,
or such part thereof as may cause the flooding of which the
plaintiff complains, and, “ subsidiarily,” that the defendant
be enjoined from using the dam in such a way as to cause
flooding of the plaintiff’s land.

The defendant company, by its statement of defence,
denied these allegations and pleaded two paragraphs, 4 and
5, the sufficiency of which is now in controversy. These
paragraphs read as follows:
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4. That dams or constructions at the point in question have existed
since the year 1835, and have moreover existed at the same elevation
since the year 1882, the dam erected in that year having been carried
away in 1915. The said dam or construction was replaced by a temporary
dam erected in the same year which was replaced by the present dam in
the year 1920 and 1921, all of which dams or constructions had approxi-
mately the same elevation.

5. So far from having caused the waters in the said lake to rise
beyond their normal and usual height, defendant’s auteurs, by means
of removing certain obstructions from the outlet of the said lake, and
enlarging its sluice openings, prevented the waters in the said lake from
rising to their normal height at times of freshets.

By par. 9 of the defence, the defendant also pleaded pre-
scription of the damages alleged. The defendant, upon

these and other allegations, concluded for the dismissal of
the plaintiff’s action.

The plaintiff, by her reply, under reserve of her partial
inseription in law, to which I shall immediately refer,
prayed acte of the admission that the defendant had been
owner of the dam since April, 1923, alleging that, if

the defendant was not itself the owner of such dam prior to that date,
it is in the rights and obligations of its auteurs in connection therewith
and everything caused thereby,

and joined issue upon the other paragraphs of the defence,
submitting however that the facts alleged therein were
irrelevant. At the same time the plaintiff inscribed in law
against pars. 4 and 5 of the defence, objecting that the facts
therein alleged were irrelevant and did not support the con-
clusion of the defence, and in particular that, even if the
facts were as pleaded in par. 4 of the defence, they would
not justify the maintenance of the dam, as no such right
could be acquired by prescription, or by user for any num-
ber of years, and that the facts alleged in par. 5 of the
defence did not constitute a reason why the defendant
should be entitled to keep the waters of the lake at a higher
level than they would naturally reach at other times than
in freshets, nor to change the natural conditions of the lake.

At the hearing of the inscription in law before Coderre
J. of the Superior Court, the learned judge maintained the
inscription, and ordered pars. 4 and 5 of the defence to be
stricken out upon the considerant that the facts alleged did
not constitute in law

valid reasons in support of the defendant’s conclusions asking for dis-
missal of the plaintiff’s action;
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and, upon appeal to the Court of King’s Bench, this judg- 1926
ment was, for the same reason, affirmed. DoMINION
The pleadings are regulated by chapter XI of the Que- TEXTEE Co.
‘bec Code of Civil Procedure, under the caption “ General Skamwe.
rules of pleading,” by which it is provided (Arts. 105, 108 Newcombed
and 110) that —

in any proceeding it is sufficient that the facts and conclusions be con-
cisely, distinctly, and fairly stated, without any particular form being
necessary, and without entering into particulars of evidence or of argu-
ment; (that) the allegations are divided into paragraphs numbered con-
gecutively; and each paragraph must contain, as nearly as may be, only
one allegation, (and that) every fact which, if not alleged, is of a nature
to take the opposite party by surprise, or to raise an issue not arising
from the pleadings, must be expressly pleaded.

By arts. 191 and 192 C.C.P. it is provided, with regard to
inscription of law, that an issue of law may be raised, as
to the whole or part of the demand, whenever the facts
alleged, or some of them, do not give rise to the right
claimed; that the inscription must contain all the grounds
relied upon, and that no other ground can be alleged at the
hearing,.

I do not interpret the rules of pleading to mean that
every paragraph of a defence, separately numbered, must
in itself contain an allegation which, if proved, would
negative the cause of action as to which the paragraph is
pleaded; and, in the narrative form which is contemplated,
a paragraph is, I think, sufficient in law if it allege a ma-
terial fact, even although the proof of other facts, which
may be alleged in other paragraphs, be essential to justify
the defendant’s conclusion; moreover a fact pleaded is, I
should think, not immaterial, although it have relation
only to the damages claimed, or a part of the damages, as
distinguished from the right which the plaintiff alleges to
maintain the action. These rules are less exacting than
the corresponding rules of pleading in England and in the
other provinces, and they are remarkable for the absence
of the exception which the latter rules contain that no
denial or defence shall be necessary as to the damages
claimed or their amount.

Coming then to the two paragraphs of the defence which
are subject to objection upon the inscription in law, it
must be observed that they are not very artistically
pleaded and admit perhaps of some question as to their
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1926 intent and purpose, but that is not one of the grounds of
Do;;mN the inscription; they are subject to attack here for legal
T‘"’"ﬂj" Co. insufficiency, and each of them must be held good or bad

Skarre.  depending upon the enquiry as to whether it contain a

NewcombeJ material allegation. .

- It will have been perceived that, according to the
declaration the plaintiffs sue as riparian owners on lake
Mamphremagog to recover damages for the flooding of
their land for several years by the use and maintenance of
a dam at the outlet of the lake. They allege that their
land along the margin of the lake has been undermined
and flooded; that it has in consequence become unfit for
use, and that the vegetation and trees thereon have been
destroyed; the relief claimed is not only damages, but the
demolition of the dam. Now while it is true, as pointed
out by the Court of King’s Bench, that title to a servitude
cannot be acquired by possession, art. 549 of the Civil
Code, nevertheless I should think that long possession of
the dam by the defendant company and its auteurs, and
delay on the part of the plaintiff in the assertion of the
right claimed, are facts material for the consideration of
the court at the trial, as affecting the remedy if not the
right. The question of demolition is an important one.
It is claimed under art. 1066 of the Civil Code, but, al-
though by the terms of that article the court may order
demolition to be effected by its officer, or authorize the
injured party to do it at the expense of the other, it seems
only consistent with justice, and I have no doubt is in-
tended, that the power shall be exercised at discretion.
There can be no doubt as to the materiality of delay or
laches upon applications for injunctions; cases of acqui-
escence are numerous, and mandatory injunctions are not
infrequently refused because it would be oppressive to
grant them. In Claude v. Weir (1), the plaintiff claimed
as a lower riparian to have the defendant enjoined. The
court considering the circumstances of the case, refused to
grant an injunction, seeing that the effect of it would be
to destroy a principal industry of the locality. In Lid-

(1) [1888] M.LR. 4 Q.B. 197.
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stone v. Simpson (1), it was held by the Court of King’s 1926
Bench that a slight encrcachment on neighbouring land Dominiox
by a party who builds a house, made in good faith and T=™= Co.
with the knowledge of the owner of the land, and without Sxames.
objection on his part, would not give the latter a right t0 NewcombeJ
sue for demolition, his recourse being for indemnity, the
measure of which would be the value of the land so occu-
pied. There are other cases in the province to the like
effect, but it seems unnecessary to cite them, the principle
of the decisions having recently been considered and ap-
plied by the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council in
a Quebec case, Michaud v. Cité de Maisonneuve and Cité
de Montréal (2). In that case the plaintiff asserted a
claim to land in the city of Maisonneuve. There had
been some negotiations for a gift of the land to the city
for highway purposes, and the city had taken possession
and paved the land as part of the public way, with the
plaintiff’s full knowledge, and without any objection or
warning by him. The Court of King’s Bench of Quebec, on
its appeal side (3), affirming a judgment of the Superior
Court of the district of Montreal, had dismissed the plain-
tiff’s action. The judgment of the Board was delivered
by the Lord Chancellor, who, disposing of the case, said
that the principle to be followed was that which had been
applied in some well known English cases, and he men-
tioned Laird v. Birkenhead Railway Company (4); Eams-
den v. Dyson (5); he said that, under circumstances such
as were disclosed in that case a man would not be permit-
ted to assert his title to the land in question.
In Crawford v. The Protestant Hospital (6), Jetté J.,
having observed that the English and French law upon
the subject were alike, said that one of the questions he
had to answer was:—

Quel recours la loi reconnait-elle au voisin qui souffre préjudice de l'entre-
prise ou de la construction faite par le propriétaire sur son fonds?

and, in the course of his judgment,

Entrons maintenant dans I'étude des principes qui doivent nous guider,
afin d’en faire ensuite l'application aux faits de la cause. Puisés & une .

(1) (1907) Q.R. 16 K.B. 557. (4) (1859) 1 John. 500; 70 E.R.
(2) 11923] 3 D.L.R. 487. 519.
(3) (1919) Q. R. 30 K.B. 46. (5) (1865) L.R. 1 HL. 129.

(6) (1889) M.LR. 5 S.C. 70, at p. 73.
32789—~5
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source commune—le droit romain-—ces principes sont les mémes d'ailleurs,
en droit anglais qu’en droit frangais, et nous les trouvons aussi facilement
reconnaissables dans lensemble de la jurisprudence anglaise que dans les
textes précis de notre droit frangais.

This passage received the approbation of Sir Henry
Strong in Drysdale v. Dugas (1), which was an action to
recover damages for nuisance under the Quebec law. And,
in that connection, it may be useful, by way of illustration
or examples, to mention Attorney General v. Sheffield Gas
Consumers Co. (2); Attorney General v. Grand Junction
Canal Co. (3); Gaunt v. Fynney (4); Rogers v. Great
Northern Ry. Co. (5), all cases where mandatory injunc-
tions were refused on the ground of laches and acquiescence.

Now what is the case as alleged by the pleadings? It is
that the plaintiff became owner in July, 1914: that the
defendant company has, for several years, been the owner
of the dam, and that, for the same time, it has been inter-
fering with the water and raising the level, creating a pub-
lic nuisance, and thus gradually has damaged the plaintiff’s
land, and the plaintiff claimed therefore not only to recover
the loss so caused, but also that the dam be demolished.
The defendant, among other allegations of its defence,
says in par. 4, in effect, that the dam has existed since 1835,
and at its present elevation since 1882; that in 1915 the
dam was carried away, and replaced by a temporary
structure, erected in that year, which in turn was succeeded
by the present dam in 1920 and 1921. There is no allega-
tion or suggestion as to any protest or complaint by the
plaintiff’s auteurs, or by the plaintiff herself, previously
to this action, the declaration in which was filed on 5th
February, 1925. I have intended and endeavoured to say
nothing more than is necessary which might affect the
course of the trial, or the disposition of the case when it
comes to be heard. It will be for the trial judge to con-
sider all the facts as they may then appear, and to give
such effect to them as the justice of the case may require,
but for the reasons which I have stated, I do not consider
that proof of the facts alleged in the 4th paragraph of the

(1) (1895) 26 Can. S.C.R. 20 at (3) [1909] 2 Ch. D. 505, at p.
p. 23. 508.
(2) (1853) 3 DeG. M. & G. 304. (4) (1872) L.R. 8 Ch. Ap. 8.
(5) (1889) 63 J.P. 484.
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defence should be eﬁcluded as immaterial; and, if not, they 1926

are facts which may be pleaded. DoMINION
TexTiLe Co.

As to par. 5, the substantial fact pleaded is that the v.

defendant’s auteurs removed obstructions from the outlet AT
of the lake, and enlarged the discharge, thereby preventing Newcombel.
the water from reaching its normal height during freshets.
This is, in my view, an answer to the declaration in so far
as it applies to the raising of the level of the water in
times of freshet. The complaint is that the defendant, by
the works which it maintained, raised “ the normal, usual
and natural level.” The defence, as stated in par. 5, is, in
effect, that the defendant did not raise the level of the
water during freshets, but, on the contrary, that the level
was reduced. There is thus, although perhaps in an argu-
mentative form, a denial of the defendant’s responsibility
for the damage complained of for at least a part of the
period during which the damage is alleged to have been
gradually taking place, and therefore I think that this para-
graph must be maintained as against the reasons of insuffi-
ciency alleged.

I would allow the appeal with costs throughout.

MienavrT J—In this case I would allow the appeal and
set aside the judgments of the two courts below which
struck from the appellant’s plea to the respondent’s action
paragraphs 4 and 5 which are quoted in the judgment of
my brother Newcombe. In my opinion, the fundamental
question underlying the issue between the parties is: What
is the normal and natural level of the waters of lake Mem-
phremagog which the respondent says the appellant has
raised to her detriment? Evidence adduced under these
two paragraphs may be useful for the proper decision of
this question, and I cannot therefore say that they are irre-
levant to the issues.

I express no opinion as to the construction of art. 1066
of the civil code, nor with respect to the principles which
should govern the decision of this case. I would merely
leave these paragraphs in the plea, believing that the judge
at the trial will be in a better position to determine the
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materiality of any fact which it may be desired to put in
evidence.

The appellant is entitled to its costs here and below.
Appeal allowed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellant: Brown, Montgomery &
McMichael.

Solicitors for the respondent: Casgrain, McDougall, Stairs
& Casgrain.

HIS MAJESTY THE KING (REspPoND-

APPELLANT;
ENT) ........ } ’

AND

CANADA STEAMSHIP LINES, LIM-
ITED, AND ANOTHER (SUPPLIANTS)... [LESTONDENTS.

ON APPEAL FROM THE EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA

Crown—Navigation company—W harf—"“Slip” in bad condition—Accident
in landing passengers—Inspection by government employee—Failure
to make report—Liability of the Crown—Knowledge by the navigation
company—Joint liability—Practice and procedure—Printing of appeal
case—Failure to print exhibits in chronological order—No costs allowed
for preparing and printing case—Rule 12, Supreme Court Act—Ez-

chequer Court Act, s. 20c, as amended by 1917, c. 23, s. 2—Arts. 1106,
1117, 1118 C .C.

The respondents seek to recover from the Crown $65,744.61, being the
amount of claims paid out by them for personal injury and loss of
property sustained by passengers landing from the ss. Richeliew owing
to the collapse of the landing slip on a government wharf at L’Anse
Tadoussac on the 7th July, 1923. The wharf, built in 1910-12, had
been but little used. Early in 1923 the Canada Steamship Lines
applied to the Minister of Public Works to have it put in condition.
The minister assented and estimates for the cost were sanctioned late
in June or early in July, 1923. To the knowledge of the navigation
company, no substantial repairs to, and no thorough inspection of,
the wharf had been made. Without further notice to the govern-
ment, the steamboat Richelieu began to use the wharf in the latter
part of June. On the fourth trip, 4th July, amongst the passengers
disembarked at the wharf was one Brunet, a government engineer,
then on a trip of inspection for his department. DBrunet, seeing the
crowd disembarking, had some apprehension as to the safety of the
slip and made, the next day, a casual and perfunctory examination
of it. Before leaving Tadoussac that evening, Brunet, instead of

Peesent:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignaylt and Rinfret JJ, and
Middleton J. ad hoc,
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clearing up his suspicions by an immediate personal inspection, or at
least promptly reporting his fears to the Department of Public Works
at Quebec, or warning the officers of the steamship company of the
probable danger of using the slip in its then condition, merely asked
one Imbeau, not a permanent or regular employee of the government,
to examine the slip and to report to the department at Quebec the
result of his inspection. Imbeau’s report as to the bad condition of
the slip, dated 7th July, was not received at Quebec until the 9th of
July.

Held, reversing the judgment of the Exchequer Court of Canada
([1926] Exz. CR. 13), that the Crown was not under contractual
obligation to the Canada Steamship Lines to provide at L’Anse
Tadoussac a reasonably safe landing place for passengers, the
$2,000 per annum aceepted by the Crown “in payment of commuta-
tion of wharfage ” not being the equivalent of a rental for the use of
the government wharves between Quebec and Chicoutimi. '

Held, also, that Brunet, in allowing continued use of the wharf and slip
pending Imbeau’s report and in failing to give warning to the steam-
ship company, was guilty of negligence as an “officer or servant of
the Crown while acting within the scope of his duties or employment
upon a public work ” (The King v. Schrobounst ([19251 S.C.R. 458);
and his neglect entailed liability of the Crown for consequent injuries
in person and property sustained by passengers in attempting to land
on the slip.

Held, also, that the Canada Steamship Lines was also guilty of negligence,
in using the wharf and slip, without making an inspection of their
condition and without intimating its intention to use them to the
government from which it had demanded repairs that its officers knew
had not been made.

Held, therefore, that there was a “ common offence or quasi-offence” of
the steamship company and of the appellant resulting in a joint and
several obligation on their part to persons who sustained consequential
injury (art. 1106 C.C.), with the result that there must be an appor-
tionment of responsibility between these co-debtors (art. 1117 C.C.)
and that one of them, the steamship company, having paid the debt
in full, can recover from the other only the share and portion (in this
case one-third) for which, inter se, such other was liable (art. 1118
C.C.). With this right of recovery, subrogation has nothing to do.

Costs of preparing and printing the appeal case disallowed the appellant
on account of flagrant disregard of rule 12 of this court requiring ex-
hibits to be printed in chronological order.

APPEAL from the judgment of the Exchequer Court
of Canada (1) maintaining a petition of right against the
Crown with costs and referring the case to the registrar
of the Exchequer Court to enquire and report upon the
amount of damages sustained by the suppliants.

The material facts of the case and the questions at issue
are fully stated in the above head-note and in the judg-
ment now reported.

(1) [1926] Ex. C.R. 13.
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Léon Garneau K.C. for the appellant. The injuries to
the persons mentioned in the petition of right did not result
from the negligence of any officer or servant of the Crown
while acting within the scope of his duties or employment.

The Steamship company took possession of the wharf
and operated the slip in question without previously noti-
fying and warning the Crown of its intention so to do.

The Steamship company had applied to the Crown to
have certain improvements made to such wharf and was
aware that the Parliament of Canada had been asked to
vote certain money appropriations for the purpose of carry-
ing out such improvements, and before such appropria-
tions were voted and available, the Steamship company
proceeded, without warning to the Crown, to make use of
such wharf and slip.

The Steamship company, its officers, employees and
servants, before beginning to use such wharf, failed to
examine the slip thereof and failed to notify the Crown
of its possible dangerous condition.

The Steamship company caused such slip to be over-
loaded.

If the accident complained of was due to the wharf and
slip in question not being in a proper state of repair, there
was no duty on the Crown or on any Minister of the Crown
to keep same in repair for the failure of which a petition
of right lies against the Crown.

The facts complained of do not constitute a ground of
relief by way of petition of right against the Crown in vir-
tue of the provisions of the Exchequer Court Act.

The suppliants have no recourse against the Crown ex
contractu.

The passengers injured in the accident complained of
had no recourse in damages against the Crown.

The suppliants could not be subrogated in the alleged
claims of the injured passengers and such subrogations are
null and void.

The petition of right was founded on such subrogations
and no amendment should have been granted allowing
suppliants to change the nature of their petition and to
sue on a new basis of action which was outlawed and pre-
scribed.
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J. A. Mann K.C. and W. J. Chipman K.C. for -the re-
spondents. Even had there been no duty on the part of
the government engineers and their assistants and fore-
men to carefully examine the structure prior to the spring
of 1923, an onerous duty was thrown upon them immedi-
ately that it became known that heavy traffic was about
to use the wharf, but they all failed in the performance of
a duty palpably necessary to be performed.

The Crown was under contract to supply the Steamship
company with a safe landing for its passengers. The
necessary, immediate and foreseeable consequence of the
" failure to fulfil this obligation would be injury to those who
used the defective slip and consequent liability of the
Steamship company to its passengers.

Under section 19 of the Exchequer Court Act, liabil-
ity for breach of contract is not the only liability. The
subject may seek relief “in respect of any matter which
might in England be the subject of a suit or action against
the Crown.” It is submitted that in England there may
be an action against the Crown for tort in the circum-
~ stances of this case and that the prerogative of the Crown
does not apply where the Crown has undertaken duties of
a managing nature which are not political but which are
normally left to private enterprise. If there is an action
for tort, the responsibility will be determined according
to the law of the province in which the cause of action
arises.
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The Crown is liable under section 20¢ of the Exchequer .

Court Act. This is an express statutory liability accepted
by the Crown for the particular case of quasi-delict by an
employee in the course of his employment. The liability
once accepted, the provincial law becomes applicable. It
is submitted that the facts in this case show a series of
negligences by public servants engaged in public work
which were directly responsible for the accident upon
which this case is founded. That the expression “on any
public work ” has not a geographical but a functional sig-
nificance is settled by the case of The King v. Schro-
bounst (1).

(1) [1925] S.C.R. 458.
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The judgment of the court was delivered by

AnguiN C.J.C.—This action arises out of claims for
personal injury and loss of property sustained by passen-
gers landing from the ss. Richelieu, owned and operated
by the respondent Canada Steamship Lines, Ltd., owing
to the collapse of the landing slip on the government wharf
at L’Anse Tadoussac on the 7th of July, 1923. These
claims were settled by the respondent Canada Steamship
Lines and its insurers (and co-respondents), the Travel-
lers’ Insurance Co., and the amounts paid out by them,
respectively, they seek to recover from the Crown by peti-
tion of right. ,

The learned trial judge held the Crown liable to indem-
nify the respondents on the ground that it had undertaken
a contractual obligation to Canada Steamship Lines to
make reasonably safe and sufficient provision for the land-
ing of passengers from its steamboats, inter alia, at I'Anse
Tadoussac wharf.

Two main questions arise on this appeal: (a) whether
there was breach of a contractual obligation owed by the
Crown (appellant) to the respondent Canada Steamship
Lines in regard to the wharf at I’Anse Tadoussac entailing
liability for consequential damages to that company; and,
alternately, (b) whether the injuries suffered by the pas-

sengers from the Richelieu
resulted from the neglect of any officer or servant of the Crown while act-
ing within the scope of his duties or employment upon any public work

so as to entail liability of the Crown under s. 20 (¢) of the
Exchequer Court Act, as amended in 1917 (c. 23, s. 2).

In the event of liability under s. 20 (¢) being affirmed,
a further question emerges, namely, (c)whether there was
also negligence of the respondent Canada Steamship Lines
in connection with its use of the L’Anse Tadoussac wharf
sufficient to bring this case within the purview of arts.
1106 and 1118 C.C. Another phase of the appeal has to
do with the efficacy of subrogations taken by the respond-
ent, The Travellers’ Insurance Co., when making pay-
ments under its insurance contract with its co-respondent.

(a) In determining that the Crown was under a con-
tractual obligation to the Canada Steamship Lines to pro-
vide at L’Anse Tadoussac a reasonably safe landing place
for passengers from that company’s steamboats, the learned
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trial judge treated acceptance by the Crown from the com-
pany of a sum of $2,000 per annum for the use of the Gov-
ernment wharves between Quebec and Chicoutimi as im-
plying such an obligation. But, with respect, the learned
judge’s attention does not seem to have been directed to
the significance of the fact that by the Order in Council of
the 27th of February, 1917, which provided for the annual
payment of this amount of $2,000, it is stated to have been
agreed upon with Canada Steamship Lines, Ltd. “ as com-
mutation of wharfage,” i.e., of wharfage tolls, and in the
departmental letter of the 22nd of May, 1923, acknowledg-
ing the company’s cheque for $2,000 for the season of 1923,
it is also said to be “ in payment of commutation of wharf-
age.” This payment was, therefore, in no sense accepted
as the equivalent of a rental for the wharves or for their use
by the company, but was, as appears by the earlier Order
in Council of the 12th of December, 1906, merely a con-
venient method of collecting the wharfage tolls imposed by
statute for the use of the government wharves indicated,
which are undoubtedly  public works.” No contract, ex-
press or implied, is created with the Crown because an in-
dividual pays statutory tolls for the use of a public work
and the commutation of such tolls for a lump sum does not
imply any relations other than those which would ensue
upon payment of the appropriate tolls on each occasion
when the public work was used. The Queen v. McFar-
lan (1); The Queen v. McLeod (2). We are, therefore, of
the opinion that the judgment of the Exchequer Court can-
not be maintained on the ground on which it was put by
the learned trial judge.

(b) The government wharf at L’Anse Tadoussac was

built during the years 1910-1912. It appears to have been
but little used, except by small schooners and local craft,
until 1923, only an occasional call having been made at it
by the steamboats of Canada Steamship Lines, Ltd., prior
to that year. That company’s steamboats usually moored
at the other government wharf at L’Anse & I'eau. There
had never been a wharfinger in charge of the L’Anse Ta-
doussac wharf. So far as appears no substantial repairs
to, and no thorough inspection of, the L’Anse Tadoussac

(1) (1882) 7 Can. SC.R. 216 (2) (1883) 8 Can. SCR. 1.
32789—6

73
1926

Nt

Tae King
v.
CANADA
STEAMSHIP
Lines L.
Anglin
CJ.C.



74

1926

e and
Tae King
V.
CANADA
SrEAMSHIP
Lines Lrp.
Anglin
CcJC.

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

~wharf had been made from the time of its completion in

1912 until the 6th of July, 1923, the day preceding the
collapse of the slip, and there is room for doubt whether
the inspection then made was at all complete or thorough.

The wharf was equipped with a slip, or cale-mobile,
which was intended to provide for convenience of landing
at different tides. It was raised or lowered, when required,
by men of the crews of the vessels using the wharf and
was often left, we are told, for long periods with its lower
end submerged in the sea, or so submerged at high tide
and exposed at low tide to the air—conditions said to be
most favourable to rapid deterioration of the spruce tim-
bers or beams which formed its lateral supports. By means
of chains, attached to iron bands, or eyes, through which
the outer or lower ends of these lateral timbers (114 inches
by 5% inches) were inserted, and passed over pulleys, the
slip was raised or lowered by the use of winches placed
upon the wharf. '

Early in 1923 Canada Steamship Lines, Ltd., applied to
the Minister of Public Works to have this wharf put in
condition for use by its steamboat Richeliew which it was
then about to place on the Saguenay route. The draft of
this steamer was too great to permit of its berthing at
I’Anse 4 'eau wharf and rock conditions precluded further
dredging there. The work required to make the L’Anse
Tadoussac wharf suitable included dredging, the extension
of the face of the wharf and some general repairs. The
Minister assented to the company’s request, subject to es-
timates for the cost of the work being sanctioned by par-
liament. These estimates appear to have been passed late
in June or early in July, 1923—the precise date is not
given. Meantime, however, sufficient dredging had been
done to enable the Richelieu to effect a landing and, with-
out further notice to the government, that steamer began
to use the wharf in the latter part of June. She had made
landings at it on four trips prior to the date on which the
glip collapsed.

On the fourth trip, i.e., on the evening of the 4th of July,
when a large number of passengers disembarked at Ta-
doussac, there was amongst them one Brunet, a govern-
ment engineer, who was then on a trip of inspection for
his department. Brunet remarked the crowd disembark-
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ing and says that this aroused apprehension in his mind
(“ peur ) as to the safety of the slip, although he subse-
quently suggests that his doubts were rather as to the
sufficiency of the chains and hoisting apparatus to sustain
the weight. He made a casual and perfunctory examina-
tion of the wharf on the 5th of July and left Tadoussac
on that evening. His inspection apparently did not in-
clude any examination of the slip except as to the winches
and pulleys used in raising and lowering it, which he had
been told were defective. Before leaving Tadoussac he
called on one Imbeau, who, it is said, was engaged as a
foreman by the Department of Public Works whenever
government work was done at Tadoussac, but was not a
permanent or regular employee of the department. Brunet
requested Imbeau to examine the slip because, he says,
he had reasons for apprehension. Imbeau was told to re-
port to the department at Quebec the result of his inspec-
tion. Imbeau was not in the government’s pay when
requested to make this inspection, nor does it appear that
he was remunerated by the government for making it.

On the 4th of July Imbeau had noticed a plank broken
in the slip and repaired it, he says, gratuitously. He
seems to have then seen enough of the condition of the
slip to realize that it needed repair and should be care-
fully inspected. He confirms what Brunet says as to the
instructions given him on the 5th of July, adding that he
had advised Brunet “au commencement’ that the slip
-should be inspected “ comme il faut pour voir s’il avait du
mal lut ausst.” He made an inspection of the slip on the
6th and wrote out a report on the wharf and slip in the
evening which he dated the 7th, because it could not be
mailed until the following morning. That report reads as
follows:—

Tadoussac, 7 juillet, 1923.

Monsieur A. G. Sabourin,
Ingénieur de district.

Monsieur,—Vous trouverez ci-inclus un croquis des chissis de la
shed du quai de L’anse Tadoussac. M. Brunet est venu ici cette semaine
et il m’a demandé de bien vouloir lui envoyer ces mesures-la pour faire
faire des passes en fer pour portéger les vitres et il m’a demandé aussi de
regarder dans le quai si les lambourdes étaient pourries et je n’ai pas pu
y aller; il aurait enlevé les pavés.
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1926 J’ai visité le slip et j’ai trouvé qu'il était bien dangereux, le bois
—~ ' parait bien magané. Je vous envois les mesures et si vous préférez en
Tre King faire faire un autre avant qu’il arrive quelque accident, pour moi je le
Canapa trouve bien dangereux.
SteaMsHIP Longueur 36 pds, largeur 8 pds et 10 pouces.
Lines Ltp.
- Bien & vous,
Anglin
cJcC. (Signé) ARMAND IMBEAU.

This report was not received at Quebec until the 9th of
July. Notwithstanding the terms in which he reported,
Imbeau insists that he did not regard the slip as in a dan-
gerous condition even after his inspection of the 6th,
adding
Si j’avais eu vu le slip bien dangereuz, j’aurais pas attendu les ordres de
barrer le slip, je laurais barré de moi-méme; mais je n’ai pas fait
demander & monsieur Sabourin qu’il était bien dangereux, le slip et
Pappareil. Mais si je l'avais considéré bien dangereux, je l’aurais barré
de suite,

He says that when he stated in his report “je le trouve
bien dangereux,” he had reference to the hoisting appa-
ratus and the winches:—

Q.* * * Vous lui avez dit: je le trouve bien dangereux. Vous
lui avez dit ¢a dans votre lettre?

R. Oui, que je le trouve bien dangereux, en voulant parler de 'appareil
de montage et des winches, qu'il était bien dangereux.
It would seem that Imbeau was either incompetent or
careless or that his testimony is not dependable. He either
made an inadequate examination, or could not appreciate
the conditions disclosed. Any sufficient examination must
have revealed the imminent danger of collapse of the slip
due to the rottenness of the lateral supporting timbers.
Brunet vouches for Imbeau’s capacity; and I incline to
accept his opinion on that point. Was he merely careless,
or did he perceive the danger, although now unwilling to
admit having done so?

The cause of the collapse was undoubtedly the breaking
off of the lateral timbers or beams where they entered the
iron eyes and on subsequent examination they were found
by numerous witnesses to be very badly decayed, only the
outside shell having the appearance of firm wood—“le
dedans (quti) était tout pourri.” Towards the close of his
examination, however, in answer to a question by the trial
judge, Imbeau stated that he had examined the lateral
timbers at the places where they broke and that while, on
looking at the outside, decay was not apparent, on pick-
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ing into the wood with a knife it was found rotten inside
—that in his opinion at the time it was “ magané,”’ but
not so much decayed as it appeared to be after it was
broken. He adds:—

mais je voyais qu’il fallait qu'il fut renouvellé, le slip, en cas d’accidents,
parce que je trouvais qu’il pouvait venir & manquer, d’'une fois & l'autre.

Had Imbeau been in the employment of the government,
when he inspected the slip on the 6th of July, his failure
either to bar access to the slip or, if he had not authority
to do that, to advise the department by telegram of the
imminent danger, or at least to warn the responsible
officers of Canada Steamship Lines against making fur-
ther use of the slip until it had been put in a safe condi-
tion would have amounted to neglect

of an officer or servant of the Crown while acting in the scope of his
duties or employment upon a public work.

The evidence, however, does not sufficiently establish that
Imbeau was an officer or servant of the Crown within the
meaning of s. 20 (¢) of the Exchequer Court Act.

The case of Brunet is quite different. He was undoubt-
edly an officer or servant of the Crown. He came to Ta-
doussac in the discharge of his duties or employment. He
saw the use that was being made of the slip which after-
wards collapsed and immediately realized that its condi-
tion was dubious and had reason, as he says, to “ fear ” for
its safety. He was told by Imbeau that there should be
an inspection “ comme il faut ” of the slip because it might
be “ endommagé "—to see if it were not also in bad condi-
tion. Instead of clearing up his suspicions by an immedi-
ate personal inspection, or at least promptly reporting his
fears to Quebec, or warning the officers of the steamship
company of the probable danger of using the slip in its

then condition, he contented himself with asking Imbeau
" to make an inspection and to report the result in writing
to Quebec. In taking the risk of allowing the continued
use of the wharf pending such report and in failing to give
any warning to the officers of the steamship company
Brunet was in my opinion guilty of a dereliction of duty
amounting to negligence on his part as an

officer or servant of the Crown while acting within the scope of his duties
or employment upon a public work (The King v. Schrobounst (1)),

) (1) [1925] Can. S.C.R. 458.
34412—1
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1926 and his neglect entailed liability of the Crown for the con-
TeeKina sequent injuries in person and property sustained by the
Camaps  Passengers in attempting to land on the slip on the 7th of
Sreamsurr  July,
Lines Ltp. _
joglin (¢) But if there was neglect on the part of the govern-
CcJC. ment engineer Brunet in failing to take immediate action

for the protection of passengers who he knew would make
use of the slip for landing in the immediate future, how
should the conduct of the steamship company in imperil-
ling the lives and limbs of its passengers by sending them
ashore in crowds over such a slip be regarded? The steam-
ship company’s officers knew better than the servants of
the Crown for what number of passengers landing facili-
ties would be required at Tadoussac. In landing the pas-
sengers the steamboat officers might have restricted the
number allowed simultaneously on the slip or they might
have landed them by gangway directly on the wharf. Those
officers were familiar with the history of the wharf
and knew of its practical disuse for over ten years. They
knew, or had abundant means of knowing, that the alter-
nate submersion and exposure of the supporting timbers
of the slip would leave them in a doubtful state of preser-
vation. The sight of the disembarking crowd on the

. evening of the 4th of July should have awakened in the

minds of -those in charge of that operation, had they given
any thought to the safety of the landing, the same fear
with which the spectacle inspired Brunet—fear for the
safety of the slip—suspicion of its capacity to withstand:
the strain to which it was being subjected. With knowl-
edge that nothing had been done in the way of repairs,
without making any inspection of the condition of this
almost derelict wharf, without any inquiry as to whether
inspection of it had been made by government officers,
without even intimating its intention to do so to the gov-
ernment from which it had demanded repairs, that its
officers knew had not been made, and would not be made
until parliament should provide money therefor, the
steamship company proceeded to use the wharf and slip
as if assured that they were in good repair and arranged
for the landing of passengers, not one by one, or two by
two, but in droves—as many as 35 being on the gangway
together when the slip collapsed. If Brunet was negligent,
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this conduct of the steamship company’s officers savours
of recklessness.

It seems to follow that we have here a case of “ common
offence or quasi-offence’” of the respondent company and
of the appellant resulting in a joint and several obligation
on their part to persons who have sustained consequen-
tial injury (art. 1106 C.C.), with the result that there must
be an apportionment of responsibility between these co-
debtors (art. 1117 C.C.) and that one of them, the steam-
ship company, having paid the debt in full (for this pur-
pose the two respondents are identified, the insurance com-
pany claiming through and having no other or greater
rights than its insured) can recover from the other only
the share and portion for which, inter se, the other was
liable (art. 1118 C.C.). With this right of recovery—
and it is the respondents’ only right in this action—sub-
rogation has nothing to do. Indeed the limitation of art.
1118 C.C. is imposed

even though he (the claiming co-debtor) be specially subrogated in the
rights of the creditor.

The apportionment of responsibility presents some dif-
ficulty; it can at best be approximate. Giving to all the
circumstances such effect as careful consideration sug-
gests they are entitled to receive, justice will probably be
done as nearly as possible if the resultant damages be
borne in the proportion of two-thirds and one-third—two-
thirds by Canada Steamship Lines, Ltd., and one-third by
the Crown.

If the Crown is now prepared to admit that the total
recoverable claims of injured persons paid by the suppli-
ants amounted to the sum of $65,744.61, as finally asserted
by them at the trial, the reference directed in the judgment
of the Exchequer Court will be unnecessary, and judgm:nt
may be entered at once in favour of the suppliants for
one-third of that amount., Otherwise the judgment will
merely declare the rights of the parties and direct the
registrar of the Exchequer Court to proceed to enquire
and report as to the total amount which should be made
the subject of apportionment.

As to the right of the Insurance Company to share in

the suppliants’ recovery and, if that right exist, to what
34412—13
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extent, we are not in a position to pronounce judgment.

!
Tnn Kive The two companies are joint suppliants. There is no issue
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between them on the record and they were not separately
represented. Unless they can agree upon their respective
rights inter se as to the monies to be paid by the Crown,
upon the total amount due by it being finally ascertained
the appellant may pay the same into court to the joint
credit of the suppliants; and the Crown will thereupon be
fully discharged from liability to each of them. Either
suppliant may thereupon proceed, as it may be advised,
to obtain payment out to it of its proper share of the
money so to be deposited in court.

The appellant will have its costs of the appeal from the
respondents, except those of preparing and printing the
appeal case, which are disallowed on account of the flag-
rant disregard of rule 12 requiring exhibits to be printed
in chronological order.

Appeal allowed in part with costs.

Solicitor for the appellant: Léon Garneau.
Solicitor for the respondents: J. A. Mann.

J. GURDITTA ....... ..., APPELLANT;
AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING.............. RESPONDENT.
ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR BRITISH
COLUMBIA

Criminal law—Perjury—Ground of appeal—No evidence as to accused
having been a witness—Motion for leave to appeal to Supreme Court
of Canada under s. 1024a Cr. Code—Alleged conflict with decision in
Rex v. Drummond (1905) 10 Ont. L.R. 64/6—Production at the trial
of the judgment in the civil action.

The appellant having been found guilty of perjury committed in the trial
of a civil action, one of the grounds of appeal to the appellate court
was that there had been no evidence that the appellant was a witness
in a judicial proceeding. The conviction having been affirmed, the
appellant moved for leave to appeal to this court under s. 1024a Cr.
Code, on the ground that the judgment sought to be appealed from
conflicts with a judgment of an Ontario appellate court in a like case:
Rez v. Drummond 10 Ont. LR. 546.

*PgeseNt:—Anglin C.J.C. in chambers,
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Held that the decision in the Drummond Case did not conflict with the
judgment in this case: in the former case there was no record what-
ever produced, while in the present case the copy of the pleadings
made use of as a record by the trial judge was put in evidence. The
application for leave to appeal was dismissed.

Semble that, although production, at the trial, of the judgment disposing
of the civil action was not necessary, it would have been better
practice that it should be put in in order to complete the record.

MOTION for leave to appeal to the Supreme Court of
Canada, under section 1024q of the Criminal Code, from
the judgment of the Court of Appeal for British Columbia
(1) upholding the conviction of the appellant for perjury in
the trial of a civil action. The material facts of the case
are stated in the judgments now reported.

Smellie K.C. for the motion.

Ritchie K.C. contra.
December 14, 1926.
Axcuin C.J.C.—Motion for leave to appeal under s.
1024 (a) of the Criminal Code on the ground that the judg-
ment sought to be appealed from conflicts with a judg-
ment of the Ontario Appellate Division in a like case. In
the case at bar one of the grounds of appeal to the Appel-

late Division was that
there is no evidence that Gurditta was a witness in a judieial proceeding
when he made the assertion which is charged as a perjury.

The alleged perjury was committed in the trial of the civil
action of Brama v. Gurditta. At the trial of the perjury
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charge the clerk of assize proved from the entries in his

court record that Gurdiita had been sworn as a witness and
had given evidence on the trial of the civil action. The
court stenographer proved the evidence given by Gurditta
at that trial. Counsel for the Crown put in evidence, as
exhibit I, the record prepared for the use of the judge at
the trial pursuant to rule 454, consisting of a certified copy
of the endorsement upon the writ of summons and of the
statement of defence, being the whole of the pleadings.
The clerk of assize gave evidence that the case of Brama
v. Gurditta, in which this record was used, was tried at the
assize held before Mr. Justice Morrison on the 22nd of
February, 1926, on which date the indictment charges the

(1) 119271 1 W.W.R. 273,
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1927 perjury was committed. The judgment disposing of the
Guemrra  civil action does not appear to have been put in evidence.
Tas King, 1D the judgment of the Appellate Division in the present
Anglin proceeding Mr. Justice Martin, delivering the opinion of
cJc. the court, held, on the authority of Regina v. Scott (1),
T that it had been sufficiently established that Gurditta had
given the evidence on which the perjury charge rests in a
judicial proceeding, i.e., upon the trial before Mr. Justice
Morrison of the civil action of Brama v. Gurditta of which

the record was put in evidence.
This conclusion is said to conflict with the decision of
the Ontario Appellate Division in Rex v. Drummond (2),
followed in Rex v. Legros (3); Rex v. Farrell (4). As is
pointed out, however, by Osler J.A., in the Drummond Case
(2), at page 547, the only evidence there given was that
of the clerk of assize for the county of Brant who swore
that the defendant Drummond had been called as a witness
on Kennedy’s trial for murder and had been sworn by him
as clerk of assize; and he produced his record book con-
taining entries shewing that the defendant had given evi-
dence at Kennedy’s trial at which the alleged perjury was
committed. The only other evidence was that of the court
stenographer who related the evidence given by the accused

at the Kennedy trial.

Neither the indictment on which Drummond had been tried nor any
copy, or sworn copy of it, was produced.

The court held that there was no proper evidence of a fact
essential to the proof of the crime charged, viz., that there
had been a judicial proceeding in which the alleged perjury
was committed inasmuch as neither the indictment and
formal record of such proceeding or a certificate under s.
691 of the Criminal Code had been produced.

I am unable to find any conflict between the decision in
the Drummond Case (2) and the case now before me. In
the Drummond Case (2) there was no record whatever pro-
duced. Here the copy of the pleadings made use of as a
record by the trial judge was put in evidence. This suffices
to dispose of the application for leave under s. 1024 (a).

(1) (1877) L.R. 2 Q.BD. 415; 13 (3) (1908) 17 Ont. L.R. 427.
Cox C.C. 594; 36 L.T. 476. (4) (1909) 20 Ont. L.R. 182.
(2) (1905) 10 Ont. L.R. 546.
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I should perhaps add that, as at present advised, produc-
tion at the trial of the judgment disposing of the action
of Brama v. Gurditta was not necessary since the perjury
was complete when the evidence was given at the trial and
prosecution could have been instituted for it and conviction
had although no judgment had ever been rendered in the
civil action. Doubtless it would be better practice where
judgment has been pronounced that it should be put in in
order to complete the record.

Leave to appeal will accordingly be refused.

January 18, 1927.

AncLiN C.J.C.—The defendant renews his application
for leave to appeal under s. 1024 (a) of the Criminal Code,
relying upon other opinions which have been delivered by
judges of the Appellate Division since his former motion
for leave to appeal was refused. As the case now stands
three of the five members of the Appellate Division (Mar-
tin, Galliher, and McPhillips JJ.A.) are of the opinion that
it was sufficiently proven at the trial that the defendant
was a witness in a judicial proceeding when he gave the
evidence for the giving of which he has been convicted of
perjury. In the view of three members of the Appellate
Division (the Chief Justice, M. A. Macdonald and Me-
Phillips JJ.A.), if the proof was technically incomplete
because of the omission to adduce evidence of the writ of
summons which began the civil action in which the alleged
perjury was committed,
no substantial wrong or miscarriage of justice had actually occurred (s.
1014 (2)). .

I find nothing in the added opinions now before me to
bring this case within the purview of s. 1024 (a). The
Drummond Case (1) is again invoked by the applicant as
the judgment of another court of appeal which conflicts
with the judgment appealed from. My reasons for not re-
garding the case of Rex v. Drummond (1) as “ a like case”
I have already stated.

The motion will be refused.
Motion dismissed.

(1) 10 Ont. L.R. 546.
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THE ONTARIO JOCKEY CLUB LIM- } APPELLANT:
ITED (DEFENDANT) ................ ’
AND
SAMUEL McBRIDE (PLAINTIFF) ....... RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE APPELLATE DIVISION OF THE SUPREME
COURT OF ONTARIO

Company—Transfer of shores—By-law restricting right of transfer—
Alleged agreement of shareholder to observe provisions of by-law—
The Ontario Companies Act, 1907, ch. 84.

A company’s by-law purporting to disable any shareholder from trans-
ferring his shares to anyone not already a shareholder until the com-
pany had had an opportunity of finding a purchaser as in the by-law
provided, was held not to be within the company’s powers under
The Ontario Companies Act, as it stood in November, 1910, when
the by-law was passed. Canade National Fire Insur. Co. v. Hutch-
ings, [1918] A.C. 451, applied. It was further held that the transfer
of the share in question was not shown to be affected by arn under-
taking to observe the terms of the by-law; and the transferee was
entitled to have the share registered in his name. Idington J. dis-
sented.

Judgment of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario
(58 Ont. L.R. 97) affirmed in the result, Idington J. dissenting.

Semble, had the company established such an undertaking as aforesaid on
the part of the registered shareholder in respect of the share in ques-
ttion, the plaintiff, who claimed as transferee from a transferee of such
registered shareholder, might not (even apart from the principle of
Lord Strathcona 8.8. Co. v. Dominion Coal Co., [1926] A.C. 108)
have been able to force the company to register him as the holder
of the share,

APPEAL by the defendant company from the judg-
ment of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of
Ontario (1) which, reversing judgment of Lennox J (2),
upheld the plaintiff’s claim to be registered as a share-
holder of the defendant company. The facts of the case
are sufficiently stated in the judgments now reported.

W. Nesbitt K.C. and F. W. Fisher for the appellant.
H. J. Scott K.C. for the respondent.

*PresENT:—Anglin CJ.C. and Idington, Duffi, Mignault, Newcombe
and Rinfret JJ. :

(1) (1925) 58 Ont. L.R. 97. Leave to appeal to the Supreme Court of
Canada was granted by the Appellate Division. In this connec-
tion, see Ontario Jockey Club v. McBride [1926] S.C.R. 291.

(2) (1924) 26 Ont. W.N. 399.
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The judgment of the majority of the court (Anglin
C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rinfret JJ.)

was delivered by

Durr J.—On the 23rd of June, 1922, one Orpen professed
to sell to the plaintiff, who is the respondent in this ap-
peal, a share in the capital stock of the appellant club,
The Ontario Jockey Club Limited, which Orpen had pre-
- viously purchased from Mr. Charles Millar. The respond-
ent having applied to have the share registered in his
name, and the right to registration having been denied,
this action was brought to establish that right. Registra-
tion was refused on the ground that by by-law of the club
no. 37, passed on the 24th of November, 1910, Millar,
who was the registered owner of eight shares, was disabled
from transferring any one of his shares to Orpen or to the
respondent, neither of whom was a shareholder, until an
opportunity had first been given to the club to find a pur-
chaser for it. Other grounds of justification are now ad-
vanced for the action:of the club, which will have to be
discussed, but it is convenient first to take up the question
raised touching this by-law, which, if it was passed in a
valid exercise of the club’s powers, has unquestionably the
effect contended for.

The point seems to be concluded by the judgment of
their Lordships of the Judicial Committee delivered by
Lord Phillimore in Canada National Fire Insurance Co.
v. Hutchings (1). The provisions of the Canadian Com-
panies Act which were there examined and applied (R.S.C.
1906, c. 79, ss. 132 and 138), are not distinguishable from
the pertinent provisions of The Ontario Companies Act
as they stood at the time the by-law was passed; and it
seems to follow from their Lordships’ observations, at pp.
456 and 457, that s. 48 of The Ontario Companies Act of
1907, which was in force in November, 1910, by which the
shares of companies governed by it are made

transferable on the books of the company in such manner and subject
to such conditions and restrictions as by this Act, the special Act, the
Letters Patent or by-laws of the company may be prescribed,

must be read with s. 87, from which the power to make by-
laws in relation to the transfer of shares is derived, and

(1) [1918] A.C., 451.
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which is there defined as a “ power to regulate the transfer
of shares”; a power which, in their Lordships’ view as ex-
pressed on the pages mentioned, does not embrace author-
ity to pass “restrictive by-laws.” “ Regulation does not
mean restriction,” it is laid down; and a sentence is cited
from the judgment of MacMahon J. in In Re Imperial
Starch Co. (1), and adopted by their Lordships, which is
in these words:—

The statute gives the company power to pass by-laws regulating the

transfer of stock, that is, how and in what manner and with what for-
malities it is to be transferred.

This interpretation of language, almost identical with and
differing from that of the Ontario Act only in respects
quite immaterial, is, of course, binding on this court.

The appellant, however, advances the defence that Millar
had entered into an agreement by which he undertook to
observe the provisions of the by-law and by whiech, it is
said, the terms of the by-law became in effect enforceable
against him as the terms of a contract with the club. The
examination of this point necessitates a word or two upon
the history of the shares held by Millar at the time of his
agreement with Orpen.

The Jockey Club was originally incorporated on the
20th of April, 1881, with a capital of $20,000, divided into
200 shares at $100 each. In 1910, supplementary Letters
Patent were issued, increasing the capital from $20,000 to
$200,000, divided into 200 shares at $1,000 each. In
December, 1910, Mr. Millar received a stock certificate,
no. 37, for 2 shares in the Ontario Jockey Club, and on
the receipt of this certificate he s1gned an acknowledg-
ment in these words:—

I hereby acknowledge the receipt of Certificate No. 37, for two
shares of the Capital Stock of The Ontario Jockey Club, and I hereby
agree to accept the said shares, subject to the conditions contained in
By-law Number 37 of the Club, passed on the twenty-fourth day of
November, 1910; which require that before any Shareholder can transfer
a share to any person not already a shareholder of the Club, notice shall
first be given to the Club of the desire of such shareholder to sell his
share and the Club shall have the right to sell the same to a purchaser
at a price to be ascertained according to the provisions of said by-law,
or at any less price that may be fixed by the seller.

(1) (1905) 10 Ont. L.R. 22, at p. 25.
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Subsequently, in 1916, supplementary Letters Patent were
again issued, by which 400 shares of “ new stock,” of $1,000
each, were created, increasing the capital stock from
$200,000 to $600,000. Of these 400 shares, each share-
holder received two, for every share of the old stock held
by him. Millar, as the holder of two shares, was entitled
to, and received, four of the new issue. As affecting these
additional four shares, Millar gave no express undertaking
to observe the terms of the by-law. The stock certificates
were never delivered to him, but the shares were allotted
to him, and he became thereby the registered holder of
them. At a later period, Millar acquired two additional
shares by purchase, but the evidence tells us nothing as
to the history of them.

In sum, Millar, when he agreed with Orpen to sell him
one share, was the owner of two shares affected by his
undertaking above set out, and of four shares affected by
no undertaking, and also of two shares in relation to which
we are not clearly informed whether any undertaking had
or had not been given.

It follows that Millar, when he entered into his agree-
ment with Orpen, had four shares with which he was free
to deal, if the view above expressed is correct that the by-
law was invalid as such, unless, apart from the express
undertaking exacted by the club upon delivery of stock
certificates, there was some agreement by conduct of the
same or similar character affecting these four shares and
binding upon Millar. It is sufficient to say that there is
no evidence of facts from which such an agreement can
properly be inferred. The shares of the “new stock”
created by the supplementary Letters Patent in 1916
allotted to Millar were not created by a sub-division of the
existing shares, and there appears to be no satisfactory
ground for holding that Millar undertook by implication
in aceepting, in exercise of his plain rights, the additional
shares, to observe, in relation to these shares, the terms of
his undertaking as to the existing shares.

This is sufficient to dispose of the appeal. The Appel-
late Division proceeded on rather different grounds, which
it is unnecessary to discuss; but it ought, perhaps, to be
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judgment in Lord Strathcona 8.8. Co. v. Dominion Coal
Co. (1), had the appellant succeeded in establishing the
existence of an agreement on the part of Millar, as alleged,
the respondent (whose title, acquired from Millar through
Orpen, could, before registration, be only an equitable
one), would have found himself in difficulties in attempt-
ing to force the club to register a share transferred by
Millar in violation of his undertaking to the club.
The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Ipingron J. (dissenting).—This is an appeal by the On-
tario Jockey Club Limited from a judgment of the Second
Divisional Court of the Supreme Court of Ontario, dated
20th November, 1925 (2), and reversing the judgment of
the Honourable Mr. Justice Lennox at the trial (3).

By the judgment after the trial the plaintiff’s claim for
a declaration that he is a shareholder of the defendant,
the Ontario Jockey Club, and for other relief, was dis-
missed.

The appellant, the Ontario Jockey Club, was incorpor-
ated by Letters Patent under The Ontario Companies Act,
bearing date 29th April, 1881, with an authorized capital
of $20,000 divided into two hundred shares of $100 each.

On the 10th November, 1910, whilst the original charter
was still in force, and before any supplementary patent,
above referred to, had issued, by-law no. 37 was passed at
a meeting of the appellant’s committee, and ratified at the
annual general meeting, held 30th November, 1910.

The first two clauses of said by-law are as follows:—

(1) Save as hereinafter provided, no shares or interest in the Club
ghall at any time be transferred to any person not already a shareholder,
until the Club has had an opportunity to find a purchaser for such share
or interest as hereinafter provided. ’

(2) Any shareholder desiring to sell his share or shares (or any por-
tion thereof) shall give notice in writing to the Club that he desires to
sell and transfer the same, and such notice shall constitute the Club
such shareholder’s agent for the sale of such share or shares to any pur-
chaser at a price to be ascertained as hereinafter provided or at any
lower price that may be fixed by the shareholder desiring to sell.

The remaining four clauses are directed to specifying
how the price is to be determined and the consequential
results.

(1) 119261 A.C. 108; 42 T.LR. (2) 58 Ont. LR. 97.
86. (3) 26 Ont. W.N. 399.
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This by-law is claimed to have been within the powers
conferred by section 33 of The Ontario Companies Act as
it stood at the time of its incorporation and substantially
in all succeeding amendments of the said Act down to the
time of the passing of said by-law.
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appears in the first subsection of section 56 of the Revised
Statutes of Ontario in 1914, that any slight changes made
do not affect its force so far as the questions raised herein
are concerned. ,

And in pursuance thereof Mr. Charles Millar received
stock certificate no. 37, dated 13th December, 1910, for
two shares of the Ontario Jockey Club stock, and, at that
date, attached his signature to the following declaration
in the stock certificate book of said club:—

I hereby acknowledge the receipt of Certificate Number 37, for two
shares of the Capital Stock of The Ontario Jockey Club, and I hereby
agree to accept the said shares, subject to the conditions contained in
By-law Number 37 of the Club, passed on the twenty-fourth day of
November, 1910; which require that before any shareholder can transfer
a share to any person not already a shareholder of the Club, notice shall
first be given to the Club of the desire of such shareholder to sell his
share and the Club shall have the right to sell the same to a purchaser

at a price to be ascertained according to the provisions of said By-law,
or at any less price that may be fixed by the seller.

(Signed) C. MILLAR.

It is in respect of said stock, referred to in said certifi-
cate as no. 37, that this suit was instituted by respondent
to have an assignment thereof to him registered by the
appellant in entire disregard of the said by-law.

I infer that the by-law had been observed ever since its
passage, until the respondent had apparently bought or
agreed to buy said shares in appellant’s club.

The appellant is naturally anxious to know where it
stands in light of such pretension unexpectedly set up by
the respondent.

The respondent’s action was, on the trial, dismissed by
Mr. Justice Lennox by reason of failure to prove some step
in the case whereby he was not called upon to pass upon
the points of law now in question herein.

The Second Appellate Division for Ontario, having
heard the case, after an amendment of the pleadings and
relying on the authorities cited to them, allowed the
appeal.
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The recent decision of the Judicial Committee of the
Privy Council in appeal in the case of Lord Strathcona
Steamship Company Limited v. Dominion Coal Company
Limited (1), having reversed the decision therein, given a
year before in the court appealed from, rather decisively
I imagine, disposes of the cases relied upon in the latter
part of Mr. Justice Middleton’s judgment herein, written
on behalf of a unanimous court, from which this appeal
is brought.

There is only one feature about which I am now in
doubt herein, and that is the different attitude maintained
by the respective counsel for appellant and respondent
herein, in relation to the question of notice to the respond-
ent of the agreement to which Mr. Millar has subscribed
as set out in the copy thereof, above quoted by me, and of
the said by-law upon which same is founded.

In the appellant’s factum, at page 5 thereof, it is dis-
tinetly put forward as an admitted fact—subject to con-
ditions—whatever that may mean.

In respondent’s factum counsel stands out for the denial
of notice.

I suspect there has been some understanding between
counsel, followed by another misunderstanding, as it is of
some importance, to the appellant at least, to have this
appeal disposed of on the basis of knowledge or notice to
respondent of the sort of agreement Mr. Millar signed.

I, therefore, proceed to dispose of this case, so far as I
am concerned, upon the assumption of respondent having
had notice.

It has been, until I observed this discrepancy, as it were,
a matter of some concern to me, for I cannot understand
how a purchaser from one who had not only subseribed
to the agreement, I quote above, in the records of the
appellant, but whose certificate of title to the shares in
question has printed acrcss it such absolute notice of
assent thereto, and acceptance thereof, can manage to
escape notice, unless going it blind.

An investigation of the law relative to constructive
notice, might, in that event (but for the assumption I am
proceeding upon), have been, in all its bearings on such a
case, an unwelcome duty, for the case was not argued on all

(1) {1926] A.C. 108; 42 T.L.R. S6.
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its manifold bearings in this respect. As to the effect of
subsection 2 of section 3 of the Ontario Act having any
bearing on this case I am decidedly of the opinion that it
had none.

That subsection, which was a distinet amendment, could
not, or, at least in my opinion, should not, be interpreted
so as to act retrospectively on transactions which had
transpired before the amendment and therefore valid, un-
less, of course, the by-law was wholly void save so far as
made the basis of an agreement as it was in Millar’s case.

As I can dispose of this appeal on the grounds taken
above without passing on the original validity of said by-
law, quite independently of any contract, I do not defi-
nitely and finally express a decided opinion.

I may be permitted to say, however, that having, before
reaching said conclusion, read and considered the cases
cited as bearing on the question of the said validity, I
found a wide distinction possible between all of said cases
and this.

They all seemed to be by-laws or material which im-
posed an absolute veto independent of any other consider-
ation given to the protection of the shareholder or his
assignee.

This by-law is far from being quite so unreasonable. It
seems to have been a well considered scheme for protect-
ing appellant from being invaded with undesirable mem-
bers, and, at the same time, protecting the shareholder
from any loss he would be likely to suffer.

Of course I see two classes of cases impossible to pro-
vide for. For example, if a shareholder had a chance to
sell at a price giving him more profit than there had been
earned, and some gullible fellow was willing to run chances,
there would be a loss of that chance.

Another case is that of a shareholder having a desire to
give one of his family, or other friend, a gift; he may not
do it unless he convinces the appellant that his friend is
a good fellow and not to be shut out.

I am only making the wvarious suggestions as to the
absolute validity of the by-law without assent thereto on
the part of the shareholder at his acquisition of a share,
and have come to no definite opinion thereon. I have,
however, for the reasons above assigned, come to the con-
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clusion that this appeal should be allowed, but as to the
question of costs, perhaps no need to pass thereupon.

There may be cases such as I suggest above in which
the by-law might be held restrictive and hence ultra vires,
but so far as the provision for an option at the price the
shareholder wants, I do not think it more than a regula-
tion of which notice must be imputed to the buyer.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellant: Ludwig & Ballantyne.
Solicitors for the respondent: Mullar, Ferguson & Hunter. -

ONTARIO GRAVEL FREIGHTING A .
COMPANY, LTD. (DEFENDANT)..... PPELLANT;
AND ’
MATTHEWS STEAMSHIP COM- i
PANY, LIMITED (PLAINTIFF)..... RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE EXCHEQUER COURT OF CANADA,
TORONTO ADMIRALTY DISTRICT

Shipping—Collision in St. Clair River—Vessels approaching each other—
Duties as to passing and signalling—Rules of navigation in the Great
Lakes—Negligence—Contributory negligence—Last act of negligence
cause of collision—Evidence—Written statement used for purpose for
which it was not admissible—No substantial miscarriage of justice.

The steamship Y. owned by plaintiff, while going down the 8t. Clair
river at night, collided with a barge, in tow of a tug, both owned by
defendant, going up the river. The barge and tug were going up the
south channel formed by Russell Island, and were on the west, or their
port, side of the channel. The Y., when approaching the channel, and
before perceiving the tug or barge, altered her course somewhat to
port. The tug gave one blast indicating her course, and the Y. then
perceived that the tug was turning northeasterly to cross the channel
and the ¥Y.’s bow. The signal conflicted with the ¥’s intended course
and with the right of way which she had under R. 25 (Rules for the
Great Lakes, adopted by Order in Council, 4th February, 1916). The
Y. gave the danger signal. The tug returned the danger signal ‘and,
according to some witnesses, repeated the single blast, and the tug
proceeded at full speed across the channel. The Y. then manoeuvred
to get into starboard swing. It cleared the tug but struck the barge
a glancing blow with its port bow on the port quarter. The court

*PreseNt:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
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could not ascertain, on the evidence, whether the vessels were more or 1927

less than half a mile apart when the tug gave its first signal. 0::1:310
Held: Under all the circumstances, the neglect of the tug was the sole FGNVEL’

cause of the collision. Immediately before the tug and tow went to g;?ﬂ?q

starboard they were either in a position of safety or where a star- v.
board helm would have carried them clear of the Y’s course which MATTHEWS
was then capable of perception. If the tug’s signal were given before STEAMSHIP
the Y. came within half a mile, the Y. was relieved of the requirement C_E’TD'
in R. 25 to signal her intended course; indeed she could not have

done so without a breach of the rule forbidding a cross signal. On

the other hand, if the ¥. passed the half mile limit without signalling

her course, the tug was confronted with a situation wherein the down-

coming ship, which had the right of way, was on a course which would

lead her to, or to the eastward of, midchannel, at the meeting place;

and if, in the circumstances, the tug were in doubt about the ¥’s

course her proper signal was danger under R. 22, and she was not justified

in giving the starboard signal, which placed her and her tow, with their

broad spread, across the channel and in front of the Y. It might be

that the Y. was not required to signal, as it appeared that, by reason

of the confusion of the lights on the tug and tow, she was not aware

that they were in the channel until she received the tug’s signal; but,

assuming the Y. passed the half mile limit without notifying her

course, and thus broke the rule, that neglect was not only antecedent

to, but independent of, the negligence of the tug, which caused the

accident. The case was within the class described by Lord Birken-

head’s first category in The Volute ([19221 1 A.C. 129 at p. 136). It

could not be said that the acts of the navigation of the two ships

formed parts of one transaction, or that the second act of negligence,

that of the tug and tow in crossing the channel in front of the Y., was
cousequential upon or involved with the first. Anglo-Newfoundland
Development Co. v. Pacific Steam Nav. Co. ([1924]1 A.C. 406, at pp.

417, 420, 421, referred to.

Judgment of Hodgins L.J.A. ([1926] Ex. C.R. 210) affirmed.

A witness for the defendant had previously made a statement to an attor-
ney of the plaintiff, which was reduced to writing and signed. The
witness was cross-examined thereon, and subsequently the attorney
was called to prove the statement and it was put in evidence in reply.

Held, referring to a passage in the trial judge’s judgment, that if he held
that the statement could be used against the defendant as evidence
of the facts stated in it, he was clearly wrong; the statement was
admissible only by way of contradiction and to affect the witness’s
credibility (Ewer v. Ambrose, 3 B. & C. 746; Wright v. Beckett, 1
M. & Rob. 414); but although the statement might have been used
for a purpose for which it was not admissible, it did not, on the whole
case, result in any substantial miscarriage of justice or affect the
decision.

APPEAL by the defendant from the judgment of the
Exchequer Court of Canada, Toronto Admiralty District
(Hodgins L.J.A.) (1) in favour of the plaintiff for damages,

(1) [1926] Ex. C.R. 210.
344122
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and dismissing the defendant’s counter-claim for damages,
in respect to a collision between a ship, owned by the plain-
tiff, and a barge, owned by the defendant, in tow of a tug

Co.,Lm. owned by the defendant. The facts of the case are suffi-

v.

MATTHEWS

STEAMSHIP
Co., Lirp.

ciently stated in the judgment now veported. The appeal
was dismissed with costs.

0. 8. Tyndale K.C. for the appellant.
F. King K.C. and H. Dale Harris for the respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

NewcoMmBE J—The action was brought by the plaintiff
company (respondent), owner of the steamship Yorkton,
to recover, against the defendant (appellant), damages
caused by collision of the steamship with the barge Badger,
which was at the time in tow of the tug Thomas E. Tees,
both tug and tow belonging to the defendant company.
The defendant denied liability, and pleaded a counter-
claim. The action was tried before the local judge in Ad-
miralty at Toronto, who found for the plaintiff, and dis-
missed the counter-claim. It is from this judgment that
the defendant appeals to this court.

The facts may be taken as gathered from the findings of
the learned local judge, because, although the evidence is
contradictory, and the result unsatisfactory to the appel-
lant, the findings are reasonably supported by the proof,
and, giving them their due weight, cannot in my opinion
be disturbed. None of the specific faults alleged against
the Yorkton by the defendant’s preliminary act or plead-
ings is established, and the defendant, having regard to the
facts found, must bear the loss occasioned by the collision,
unless it can shift liability to the plaintiff by reason of the
neglect of the Yorkton to signal her course, as required by
Rule 25, which I shall quote.

I proceed then to state the material facts which are
not in dispute or are found. The collision occurred in the
St. Clair river, where the rules governing the navigation
are those for the Great Lakes, adopted by Order in Coun-
cil of 4th February, 1916. On the night of 24th June, 1925,
the Yorkton, which is a steel steamship of 1,136 tons regis-
ter, length 250 feet, beam 42 feet 8 inches, and drawing at
the time 13 feet, was descending the St. Clair river from
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Port Arthur, with a cargo of oats. Opposite the Chenal
Ecarté, about a mile and a half above the head of Russell
Island, which divides the river into two channels, north
and south, the Yorkton’s engines were checked to half
speed, about six knots, and her course was laid on the flash-
ing gas buoy at the upper end of the shoal, which projects,
up stream from the head of the island, a distance of half a
mile or thereabouts; and here it may be useful to observe
that this shoal was being dredged, and that, by reason of
the dredging which had been done, the gas buoy had been
moved, and was, at the time of these occurrences, stationed
200 feet to the westward of the position which it occupies
on the chart used at the trial. When the Yorkton, in her
course toward the gas buoy, had reached a point about half
a mile above it, her course was altered somewhat to port
and steadied in a direction down the south chanmel, be-
tween the gas buoy and the lower light of Walpole Island
on the opposite side of the channel, these lights bearing
about a half point on the starboard and port bows respect-
ively. Up to this time, those in charge of the navigation
of the Yorkton had not perceived the tug or her tow, with
which she subsequently came into contact. These two craft
were coming up the south channel, the tug towing the barge
astern by a hawser or tow line 150 feet in length. The
Badger was a sand and gravel scow, having an open hold,
with no deck for the greater part of her length. The tug
was 86 feet long, beam 16 feet, draft 6 to 9 feet; the Bad-
ger 140 feet long, beam 36 feet, draft, at the time when she
was light, 14 feet. They were between: the head of Russell
Island and the gas buoy at the top of the shoal, on the
west, or their port, side of the channel. The time was about
11.30, daylight saving, and the night was dark with
showers. The tug and tow carried lights in excess of those
prescribed by the rules, and, although some of these lights
had been perceived by the Yorkton previously to her change
of course, they were not made out to be running lights, but
were mistaken for the lights of a dredge, which had been
working on the shoal when the Yorkton passed up a few
days previously. They had been attentively examined by
the master of the Yorkton through his marine glasses as he

came down, but they did not change bearing, they ranged
3441223
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with the flashing light, close to the shoal, and appeared to
him, and to his second mate, who was also in the wheel
house, as a cluster of fixed lights, such as the dredge would
be likely to show; no running lights could be discerned.
It was after the Yorkton changed her course to bear mid-
way between the gas buoy and the lower Walpole light that
the lights of the tug became distinctive, and, at the same
time, the tug gave one blast indicating its course; it was
then perceived that the tug was turning northeasterly to
cross the channel and the bow of the Yorkton. The signal
conflicted with the intended course of the Yorkton, and
with the right of way which she had under Rule 25, which
provides that:

When steamers are approaching each other “head and head,” or
nearly so, it shall be the duty of each steamer to pass on the port side of
the other; and the pilot of either steamer may be first in determining to
pursue this course, and thereupon shall give, as a signal of his intention,
one short and distinct blast of his whistle, which the pilot of the other
steamer shall answer promptly by a similar blast of his whistle, and there-
upon such steamers shall pass on the port side of each other. But if the
courses of such steamers are so far on the starboard of each other as not
to be considered by pilots as meeting “ head and head,” or nearly so, the
pilot so first deciding shall immediately give two short and distinet blasts
of his whistle, which the pilot of the other steamer shall answer promptly
by two similar blasts of his whistle, and they shall pass on the starboard
side of each other: Provided, however, that in all narrow channels, where
there is current, and in the rivers Saint Mary, Saint Clair, Detroit, Niagara,
and Saint Lawrence, when two steamers are meeting, the descending
steamer shall have the right of way, and shall, before the vessels shall
have arrived within the distance of one-half mile of each other, give the
signal necessary to indicate which side she elects to take.

In the night, steamers will be considered as meeting “ head and head ”
so long as both the coloured lights of each are in view of the other.

The master of the Yorkton tells us that he was on the point.
of sounding two blasts the moment he discovered the lights
of the tug, but was anticipated by its signal. This placed
him in a difficult position. He was forbidden by Rule 23
to give a cross signal, and therefore could not persist in his
intention to negotiate the passage on his port side, and he
was entering a narrow channel with considerable current
setting him on. In the circumstances he took what I have
no doubt was a prudent, if not the only proper, course. He
gave the danger signal, “five or more short and rapid
blasts of the whistle,” which, in the circumstances was, I
should think, intended by the Yorkton, and ought to have
been interpreted by the tug, to mean—‘‘ you (the tug) are
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creating a dangerous situation. Reconsider.” The answer
from the tug was a return of the danger signal, and, accord-
ing to some of the witnesses, a repetition of the single blast,
and the tug proceeded at full speed across the channel.
The master of the Yorkton then promptly executed the
necessary manoeuvres to bring his ship into starboard
swing. He cleared the tug, but struck the barge a glancing
blow with his port bow on the port quarter, causing a
breach from which the barge filled and sank, but not until
it had reached the shoal to which the tug turned when the
Yorkton passed.

It is impossible to ascertain precisely what the distance
was between the Yorkton and the tug at the time when
the latter gave its first signal. The master of the tug said
in his direct examination that, as nearly as he could judge,
the Yorkton would be within about half a mile. The
learned trial judge refers to the evidence upon this point.
He says:

As to when she saw the Yorkton change her course, her master says:
“When I got within about 4 mile as near as I could judge the Yorkton
swung sharply to port * * * within about 4 a mile of the Yorkton,
that is in a direct line, she swung to port.” On cross-examination he says:
“I would figure that we were about a mile apart when she altered her
course to port; or about 4 mile, pardon * * * we would be about
1,300 feet-1,200 feet, I couldn’t say just exactly.” I have come to the con-
clusion that these last figures are incorrect and that his distance from the
Yorkton was further than the quotation indicates.

Different witnesses give different estimates. There is no
precise finding. It is possible that the vessels were still
upwards of half a mile apart. It is not improbable that
they were less than half a mile. The master of the York-
ton said in cross-examination “maybe a little bit better
than a quarter of a mile.” The conditions made it difficult
to form an accurate opinion as to the distance. It is note-
worthy, however, that the Yorkton is not charged, either
in the defendant’s preliminary act or pleadings, with any
fault for not having notified her course. - It would look as
if the master of the tug did not realize the application of
Rule 25. In any case I think it must be taken that immedi-
ately before the tug and tow went to starboard they were
either in a position of safety, or where a starboard helm
would have carried them clear of the Yorkton’s course,
which, in view of her position and line of progress, as dis-
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closed by her lights and the shore lights on either side, was
not then incapable of perception. If the tug’s signal were
given before the Yorkton came within half a mile of the
tug the Yorkton would clearly be relieved of the re-
quirement to signal her intended course; indeed she could
not have done so without a breach of the rule forbidding a
cross signal. On the other hand, if the Yorkton passed the
half mile limit without signalling her course, the tug was
then confronted with a situation wherein the down-coming
ship, which had 'the right of way, was on a course which
would lead her to mid-channel, or to the eastward of mid-
channel, at the meeting place; and if, having regard to the
circumstances, the tug were in any doubt about the York-
ton’s course, its proper signal was danger under Rule 22,
and there was no justification which I can perceive for the
starboard signal which the tug did give, and which placed
her and her tow, with their broad spread, across the chan-
nel, and in front of the Yorkton. 1t may be that the York-
ton was not required to signal, because the findings uphold
the claim of her witnesses that, by reason of the confusion
of the lights on the tug and tow, they were not aware that
the tug and tow were in the channel until the Yorkton re-
ceived the signal from the tug; but, assuming that the
Yorkton passed the half mile limit without notifying her
course, and thus broke the rule, that neglect was not only
antecedent to, but in my view independent of, the negli-
gence of the tug, which caused the accident. The case is
within the class described by Lord Birkenhead’s first cate-
gory in the House of Lords in The Volute (1):

In all cases of damage by collision on land or sea, there are three ways
in which the question of contributory negligence may arise. A. is suing
for damage thereby received. He was negligent, but his negligence had
brought about a state of things in which there would have been no dam-
age if B. had not been subsequently and severably negligent. A recovers
in full: see among other cases Spaight v. Tedcastle (2) and The Margaret

(3).

An inquiry by the tug, which could have been conveyed
by a danger signal, would presumably have elicited the in-
formation that the Yorkton was taking her port side of the
channel, a course which perhaps might have been inferred

(1) 119221 1 AC. 129, at p. 136. (2) (1881) 6 App. Cas. 217.
(3) (1884) 9 App. Cas. 873.
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from the situation in the absence of a signal. The York-
ton was coming down with the current, and had to con-
tend with the difficulties of navigation incident to a ship
in that position. The channel is said, and appears by the
chart to be, about or nearly 800 feet in width. The tug
and tow were on the western side where the slack water
was, and, if close to the bank, were safe, or, if not, they
could have gone closer, and thus have avoided any danger
of collision. But the master of the tug, whether because
he thought he was on the wrong side of the channel or for
some other reason, at the critical moment, chose to port
his helm and project across the narrow channel, the un-
handy triad with the navigation of which he was charged,
measuring in length, tug, hawser and tow, no less than 376
feet, and occupying a very considerable expanse as com-
pared with that which would have been taken up on a
course parallel to the bank. It cannot well be said that
the acts of the navigation on the two ships formed parts
of one transaction, or that the second act of negligence,
that of the tug and tow in crossing the channel in front of
the Yorkton, was consequential upon or involved with the
first. One can only conjecture what would have happened
if the Yorkton had signalled her course before hearing the
blast from the tug. It is true that the difference in time
between the Yorkton passing within the half mile limit
and the signal and porting of the tug was not great, but it
was long enough to have enabled the master of the tug to
reach an obvious conclusion, and to refrain from a course
the danger of which was patent. He should have remem-
bered Rules 37 and 38. There is in my view sufficient dis-
tinction as to time, place and circumstance to justify the
treating of the negligence of the tug as the sole cause of the
collision. Anglo-Newfoundland Development Co. v. Pacific
Steam Navigation Co. (1).

There is one other point that I should mention, because,
having accepted the findings of the local judge, I have
not thought ‘it necessary to review the evidence in detail.
The defendant’s leading witness, Capt. Duff, of the ss.
Superior, was coming up the north channel, between the
head of the island and the upper end of the shoal, at the

(1) [1924] A.C. 406, at pp. 417, 420, 421.
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1927 time when the vessels concerned were approaching each
Ovrzmio  other and came into collision opposite to him in the south
pomMVEL  channel. He was put forward as an independent witness
CO-;)Lm and he gave some testimony favourable to the defence in
Marrrews his direct examination, the effect of which was however
S‘ggmﬁfgl’ considerably shattered when he came to be cross-examined.
—_ _ During his cross-examination it transpired that he had
Newcombel. . .

——  previously been interrogated by an attorney from Cleve-
land, acting under the plaintiff’s instructions, and had
made a statement which the attorney reduced to writing,
and which Capt. Duff signed. He was cross-examined upon
this statement, and subsequently the attorney was called
to prove the statement, and it was put in evidence in reply.
It served its purpose of course to discredit or to affect the
credibility of Capt. Duff, but the learned trial judge made
this comment:

Duff, master of the Superior, called for the defendants, says that when
he saw the tug and tow, they were pretty close to Russell Island, as though
they intended to cross between the buoy and the island. Though this
witness very clearly showed his unreliability, the defendants cannot com-
plain if his early statement to Mr. Theodore Robinson (the attorney), Ex.
3, is used against them, especially as he adduces a reason for his belief
which discloses an interest in their position in relation to his ship.

If by this the learned judge mean that the statement
which Capt. Duff gave to Mr. Robinson can be used against
the defendant, as evidence of the facts stated in it, he is
clearly wrong. The statement was admissible only by way
of contradiction and to affect the witness's credibility.
Ewer v. Ambrose (1); Wright v. Beckett (2). I see no
reason to believe, however, that the learned judge would
or could have arrived at a different conclusion in the case
if the statement had not been introduced, and, although it
may have been used for a purpose for which it was not
admissible, I do not think it has resulted in any substantial
miscarriage of justice, or affected the decision.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.

Appeal dismissed with costs.
Solicitors for the appellant: Rodd, Wigle & W hiteside.
Solicitors for the respondent: King & Smythe.

(1) (18251 3 B. & C. 746. (2) (1834) 1 M. & Rob. 414,
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MEDERIC DUFORT (PLAINTIFF).......... AprrELLANT; 1926
*Qct. 18, 19.
AND *Dec. 15.

DAME Z. DUFORT et vik (DEFENDANT) . . RESPONDENT;
AND
JOSEPH DUFORT anxD orHERS (Mi1s-EN-CAUSE).

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF KING'S BENCH, APPEAL SIDE,
PROVINCE OF QUEBEC

Marriage contract—Mutual donation—Usufruct—To take effect at death
of ome consort—Stipulation in favour of heirs “ du c6té estoc et ligne”
—Substitution—Right of “taking back” (droit de retour)—" Biens
propres de succession ”—Changes effected by the cwzl code in the law
of ab-intestate successions—Arts. 699, 779 C.C.

A clause in a marriage contract provided for mutual and reciproca! dona-
tion between husband and wife of all the property belonging to the
consort first dying to be enjoyed by the survivor in usufruct “pour
aprés son extinction retourner les dits biens aux héritiers des dits
futurs époux du cbté estoc et ligne d’ou ils procéderont.”

Held that this clause did not stipulate a right of “ taking back ” (droit de
retour) within the meaning of art. 779 C.C. (or under the law preced-
ing the civil code) in favour of the heirs at law of the line of the
deceased consort.

Held, also, that a substitution, either vulgar or fiduciary, had not been
created by the terms of the clause.

Held, further, that the last part of the clause constituted, under the law
preceding the civil code, a stipulation of “biens propres de succes-
sion,” but that as to the succession of the last surviving son of the
consorts, who died subsequently to the civil code, the new law of suc-
cession applied.

Judgment of the Court of King's Bench, (Q.R. 39 K.B. 56) aff.

APPEAL from the decision of the Court of King’s Bench,
appeal side, province of Quebec (1), reversing the judgment
of the Superior Court at" Montreal, and dismissing the
appellant’s action en pétition d’hérédité.

On the 20th of February, 1859, one Raphael Dufort
entered into a marriage contract with one Elmire Deslau-
riers, in which separation as to property was stipulated
and a sum of $2,000 was settled by way of dowry upon the
future wife, and the following clause appears: “ En considé-
ration du dit futur mariage les futurs époux se sont fait et

*PRreseNT:—Anglin CJ.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
(1) (1925) Q.R. 39 K.B. 56.
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se font par ces présentes, 'un & autre et au survivant
d’eux, ce acceptant, donation viagére, mutuelle, égale et
réciproque de tous les dits biens meubles et immeubles géné-
ralement quelconques qui se trouveront appartenir au pre-
mier mourant d’eux au jour de son déceés, de quelque nature
et en quelques lieux et endroits qu'ils soient et en quoi
qu’ils puissent monter et consister, pour en jouir par le dit
survivant en usufruit seulement pendant sa vie & sa caution
juratoire en faisant bon et loyal inventaire, tant que le dit
survivant ne convolera pas en secondes noces; auquel cas
de secondes noces, le dit usufruit sera éteint; pour aprés
son extinction, retourner les dits biens aux héritiers des dits
future époux du c6té estoc et ligne d’oll ils procéderont;
cette donation vaudra qu’il y ait enfant ou enfants nés
alors ou & naitre du dit futur mariage, car ainsi, ete.” On
the 23rd of February, 1859, the marriage took place. On
the 16th of November, 1859, a son was born of the mar-
riage, was baptised and given the name of his father,
Raphael. On the 19th of February, 1863, another son was
born, was baptised and received the name of Pierre Etienne.
Pierre Etienne died on the 28th of September, 1864. His
brother, Raphael, died on the 3lst of December, 1878.
Their father had died on the 30th of May, 1863. It would
therefore appear that, after 1878 o©of the immediate
family, there survived only the widow, the donee under the
marriage contract. She died on the 17th of October, 1918,
without having contracted a second marriage. On the 9th
of July, 1912, she made her last will and testament, modified
by a first and second codicil, dated respectively the 25th of
January, 1914, and the 18th of December, 1914. The only
relevant part of her testamentary disposition is the admitted
fact that by the will she left to the female respondent, her
niece, all the property of which she died possessed. The
female respondent accepted the succession of her aunt and
entered upon the possession of the property to her be-
queathed. It is common ground that among the property
taken possession of by respondent was the property owned
by her deceased uncle, the husband of the testatrix, on the
date of his death, and covered by the clause of the marriage
contract. There were living at the date of the death of the
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testatrix some fifty-one nephews and nieces, among whom
was the respondent. The appellant, a nephew of the de-
ceased Raphael Dufort, brought the present action, in
which he alleges the marriage contract, the marriage, the
birth and death of the two sons, the death of the widow, the
will made by the widow and the taking possession of the
estate by respondent; and further alleges that Dame Elmire
Deslauriers, by the terms of her marriage contract, was
bound to preserve all the property, the usufruct of which
only was given to her by her deceased husband, for that at
the extinetion or termination of the usufruct, the same
should be handed over to the heirs at law “du c6té estoc et
ligne” of her late husband. The appellant further alleges
that the usufruct of the properties found in the estate of
Raphael Dufort having terminated by the death of Madame
Dufort, on the 11th of October, 1918, and inasmuch as the
children born of the marriage were then dead, without issue.
the property existing at the date of the death of Raphael
Dufort, and still existing at the date of the death of Madame
Dufort, returned to and became the property of the heirs at
law of the “c6té estoc et ligne ” of the husband, the whole
in accordance with the terms of the marriage contract.

And the prayer of the action is that the appellant be de--

clared to be the owner of an undivided %1 part of the estate
of the late Raphael Dufort, and a partition of the said
property be made and the respondent be ordered to render
an account of the fruits and revenues of the said property
during the period which she illegally held possession of
it. The respondent pleads, practically admitting all the
facts alleged, that the clause in the marriage contract relied
upon by the appellant did not create a substitution; that
the clause is null and of no effect; that Madame Dufort in-
herited from her children the property in question, that she
became and was at the date of the making of her last will
and testament, and at the date of her death, the absolute
owner of the property, and that she possessed the power
of disposing of the same by her will; and that the respond-
ent in virtue of the will became vested with the absolute
ownership of all the property.

Eug. Lafleur K.C. for the appellant.
Chs. Laurendeau K.C. for the respondent.
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The judgment of the court was delivered by

Mienavrr J—L’appelant, neveu de feu Raphaél Bourget
dit Dufort (que je vais appeler Raphaél Dufort), se pourvoit
contre l'intimée par voie d’action en pétition d’hérédité et
met en cause les autres neveux et niéces de Raphaél Dufort,
lesquels, dit-il, sont, avec lui-méme et l'intimée, ses plus
proches héritiers. Sa part dans cette succession serait d’un
cinquante-uniéme, et il demande le partage des biens qui en
dépendent. La Cour Supérieure (DeLormier J.) a accordé
ses conclusions, mais ce jugement a été infirmé par la Cour
du Banc du Roi. De 14 Pappel.

Commengons par un rapide exposé des faits saillants de
la cause.

Le 23 février 1859, Raphaél Dufort et Elmire Legault dit
Deslauriers contractérent mariage & Montréal, aprés avoir
fait, le 20 février, un contrat de mariage devant L. S. Mar-
tin, notaire. Ce contrat stipulait séparation de biens,
douaire préfix en la somme de $2,000, affectant un immeu-
ble de 1’époux situé au faubourg Saint-Antoine, 3 Montréal,
et il contenait, en outre, la convention suivante qui a donné
lieu au proces:

En considération du dit futur mariage les futurs époux se sont fait
et se font par ces présentes, Fun & l'autre et au survivant d’eux, ce
acceptant, donation viagére, mutuelle, égale et réciproque de tous les dits
biens meubles et immeubles généralement queleconques qui se trouveront
appartenir au premier mourant d’eux au jour de son déeds de quelque
nature et en quelques lieux et endroits qu’ils soient et en quoi qu'ils puis-
sent monter et consister, pour en jouir par le dit survivant en usufruit
seulement pendant sa vie & sa caution juratoire en faisant bon et loyal
inventaire, tant que le dit survivant ne convolera pas en secondes noces;
auquel cas de secondes noces, le dit usufruit sera éteint; pour aprés son
extinction, retourner les dits biens aux héritiers des dits futurs époux du
c6té estoc et ligne d’ou ils procéderont;

Cette donation vaudra qu'il y ait enfant ou enfants nés alors ou a
naitre du fit futur mariage, car ainsi, &e.

Rapha€l Dufort décéda & Montréal le 20 mai 1863, lais-
sant son épouse et deux enfants issus de son mariage avee
cette derniére, savoir Denis-Rapha€l, né le 15 novembre
1859, et Pierre-Etienne, né le 19 février 1863. Ces deux
enfants sont décédés en minorité, le second le 28 septembre
1864, et I'ainé le 28 décembre 1878. Madame Dufort ne
convola pas en secondes noces, et mourut 4 Montréal, le 11
octobre 1918, instituant l'intimée comme sa légataire uni-
verselle.



S.C.R. SUPREME COURT OF CANADA

Outre ce qui précede, 'appelant allégue que la veuve de
Raphaél Dufort vendit sans droit pour $15,000 deux terres
dont elle n’avait que l'usufruit. Il ne conclut cependant
pas 4 V'annulation de la vente, probablement parce qu’on
lui aurait opposé la prescription, mais il veut partager dans
le prix. Quant aux autres biens laissés par Raphaél Dufort,
Pappelant en demande le partage entre lui, 'intimée ct les
mis-en-cause suivant leurs droits respectifs.

Le code civil est entré en vigueur le ler aotit 1866 et
Pappelant base ses prétentions sur le droit antérieur au
code. II faut cependant observer que le code ne contient
pas véritablement un droit nouveau. Régle générale, ses
dispositions sont déclaratoires du droit existant lors de la
codification, sauf lorsqu’il innove expressément & ce droit.
La matiére des successions ab intestat est I'une de celles ot
il y a eu telle innovation, et c’est sous 'empire de I’ancien
droit (je vais ainsi désginer le droit antérieur au code) que
se sont ouvertes les successions de Raphaél Dufort et de son
second fils, décédé en 1864. La succession ab intestat de
son fils ainé, au contraire, s’est ouverte aprés la mise en
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vigueur du code civil, ce qui entrainera & son égard 1’appli- .

cation des nouvelles régles adoptées par le code. Je revien-
drai sur ce point.

Envisageant maintenant la clause que j’ai rapportée plus
haut, il est évident qu’elle renferme une donation & cause
de mort ou institution contractuelle, car elle ne porte que
sur les biens qui se trouveront appartenir au premier mou-
rant des époux au jour de son décés. Avant comme depuis
le code les donations & cause de mort ont toujours été per-
mises dans les contrats de mariage. Les parties envisagent
cette clause, soit comme stipulant un droit de retour, soit
comme créant une substitution fidéicommissaire, soit enfin
comme ne conférant au survivant des époux qu’un simple
droit d’usufruit, sans disposition quant & la nue propriété.
Dans sa déclaration, I'appelant en parle comme d’une subs-
titution, le jugement de la Cour Supérieure y voit un droit
de retour, et la troisiéme solution est celle que l'intimée
préconise et que la Cour du Banc du Roi a acceptée. Il
reste toutefois une quatridme alternative, dont il n’a pas
été question dans les jugements, de savoir si la partie finale
de la clause n’a pas plutot pour objet de créer des propres
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de succession. Je me propose d’examiner ces alternatives,
ce qui entrainera la discussion de régles de droit abrogées
par le code. Il est clair, en effet, qu’il faut entendre la
clause dans le sens que lui donnait le droit coutumier fran-
cais, car de méme que les actes s'interprétent suivant la loi
du lieu ou ils sont passés (art. 8, C.C.), de méme faut-il
consulter la loi en vigueur lors de la passation d’'un acte
pour en déterminer la portée juridique.

Les parties nous ont cité quatre causes ot il a été question
d’'une clause plus ou moins analogue: Barras v. La-
gueur (1), Andrews J.; Théoret v. Chaurette, Cour de
Revision (2); Houde v. Marchand, Cour du Banc du Roi
(8); Tassé v. Goyer, Cour de Revision (4).

Dans la premiére espéce, le contrat de mariage antérieur
au code ne stipulait pas le retour en faveur des héritiers de
I'époux donateur, mais disait simplement que les biens
retourneraient du coté de celui dont ils procédaient, et le
juge Andrews a décidé qu’il n’y avait pas et ne pouvait y
avoir de substitution. Dans les trois autres causes, les con-
trats de mariage étaient subséquents au code, et on avait
stipulé que les biens retourneraient aux héritiers de ’époux
donateur; la Cour du Banec du Roi, dans la cause de Houde
v. Marchand (5), a décidé qu’il y avait substitution, mais
la Cour de Revision s’est prononcée en sens contraire dans
les deux causes jugées par elle. J’ai lu ces jugements bien
attentivement, mais il me semble qu’il faut remonter plus
loin pour trouver la solution du probléme qui nous occupe.

Comme je I'ai dit, la Cour Supérieure a exprimé ’opinion
qu’il y avait ici un droit de retour en faveur de ceux qui, &
Pextinction de l'usufruit de Mme Dufort, se trouvaient les
plus proches héritiers de feu Raphaél Dufort. La Cour du
Bane du Roi, au contraire, a décidé que Mme Dufort n’avait
qu’'une droit d’usufruit que le contrat de mariage n’avait
pas disposé de la nue propriété des biens grevés de 'usu-
fruit, que cette nue propriété était dévolue aux deux enfants
de Raphagl Dufort au déeés de ce dernier, et que Mme
Dufort I'avait recueillie comme héritiére de ses enfants.

(1) (1886) 9 L.N. 259. (3) (1912) QR. 21 K.B. 184.
(2) (1896) 3 R. de J. 182. (4) (1913) QR. 47 SC. 424,
: (5) QR. 21 KB. 184.
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Aucun des juges n’a vu dans la clause du contrat de
mariage une substitution fidéicommissaire. Il est clair, en
effet, qu’il ne peut étre question de substitution si Mme
Dufort n’avait qu’un droit d’usufruit, car en supposant
méme qu’il y aurait eu disposition de la nue propriété en
faveur des héritiers de Rapha€l Dufort par voie de retour
conventionnel, nous n’aurions pas ici les deux donations
portant sur la méme chose qui sont de l’essence de la
substitution.

Je suis également d’avis que la donation faite au survi-
vant des époux ne porte que sur 'usufruit des biens et que
partant il n’y a pas de substitution. Cette donation est dite
étre une “ donation viagére ”, ¢’est-a-dire une donation pour
la vie du donataire, et méme celui-ci perd ses droits s'il
convole en secondes noces. Du reste, il en jouit ‘“ en usu-
fruit seulement ”’, ce qui exclut 'idée d’une donation en
pleine propriété a défaut de quoi il ne peut y avoir de
substitution avec la charge de rendre qu’elle comporte.

Nous en venons maintenant & la partie finale de la clause,

pour aprés son extinction (de Tusufruit) retourner les dits biens aux
héritiers des futurs époux du c6té estoc et ligne d’ou ils procg‘ederont.

C’est 1a que la Cour Supérieure a trouvé qu’il y avait stipu-
lation d’un droit de retour conformément & T'article 779 du
code civil.

L’étude de cette question de droit de retour doit étre
combinée avec celle de la quatrieme alternative que j’ai
signalée plus haut, savoir si la partie finale de la clause du
contrat de mariage ne doit pas étre interprétée comme sti-
pulant que les biens provenant de chacun des époux—car
il y est question des biens des deux époux—seront propres
dans la succession de 1’époux dont ils proviennent, et, dans
. lespéce, dans la succession de Raphaél Dufort, le premier
mourant. Dans lancien droit, la convention créant des
propres de succession, appelés “ propres conventionnels ”,
et qui ne pouvait se faire que par contrat de mariage, avait
un effet considérable dans les successions ab intestat.

Parlons d’abord du droit de retour. L’article 779 du code
civil—qui n’est pas indiqué comme étant de droit nouveau—
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parait admettre que ce droit soit stipulé en faveur du dona-
teur ou des tiers. Cet article s’exprime comme suit:

779. Le donateur peut stipuler le droit de retour des choses données,
soit pour le cas de prédécés du donataire seul, soit pour le cas du pré-
décés du donataire et de ses descendants.

La condition résolutoire peut dans tous les cas &tre stipulée soit au
profit du donateur lui-méme soit au profit des tiers.

L’exercice du droit de retour ou autre droit résolutoire a lieu en
matiére de donation de la méme maniére et avec. les mémes effets que
P'exercice du droit de réméré dans le cas de vente.

Le droit de retour est plus étendu dans la province de
Québec qu’en France ou, par crainte des substitutions, les
auteurs du Code Napoléon 'ont restreint au seul donateur
(art. 951, C.N.). Le deuxiéme alinéa de notre article per-
met de stipuler le droit de retour au profit du donateur ou
des tiers, mais la formule qu’il emploie semble envisager la
condition résolutoire en général, dont le droit de retour, qui
est certainement une condition résolutoire, n’est qu’une
espéce. Cette généralité des termes de 'article 779 C.C. a
attiré Pattention des Lords du Conseil Privé dans la cause
de Herse v. Dufauz (1). Je ne me propose pas de la discu-
ter ici, car il est certain que le droit de retour peut étre
stipulé soit en faveur du donateur, soit au profit des tiers,
y compris les héritiers du donateur envisagés séparément de
celui-ci, et alors, puisqu’il est subordonné au prédécés du
donataire, ou du donataire et de ses descendants, il opére
comme condition résolutoire et anéantit, lorsqu’il s’accom-
plit, la donation elle-méme. Mais ce qu’il convient de
noter, c’est que lorsque le droit de retour est stipulé au
profit d’autres personnes que le donateur, il rentre plutot
dans la catégorie des substitutions (Demolombe, t. 18, n*
110 et 111; Aubry & Rau, 5e éd., t. 11, p. 296) car, ainsi que
le dit Troplong (Donations, t. 3, n° 1267), le droit de retour
fait remonter la chose vers sa source, ¢’est-a-dire au dona-
teur, tandis que la substitution 1’en éloigne. Or, ici, il n’y a
certainement pas substitution, pas plus qu’il n'y a une
condition résolutoire dont l’effet serait d’anéantir la dona-
tion. Il n’y a pas méme une donation en pleine propriété
au survivant, mais seulement un droit de jouissance, et il
n’y a rien qui puisse faire retour du donataire aux héritiers

(1) (1872) 4 P.C. App. 468, at p. 491.
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du donateur. De quelque maniére que j’envisage la clause,
je ne puis y voir un droit de retour.

Reste 'hypothése que la partie finale de la clause du
contrat de mariage ne serait que la stipulation que les biens
en question seront des propres de succession. La stipula-
tion de propre, que Guyot, dans son Répertoire de Jurispru-
dence (vo. Réalisation, tome 14, pp. 456 et suiv.), appelait
la clause de réalisation, était bien connue dans I'ancien droit
ou elle a donné lieu 4 de nombreuses controverses. Elle
pouvait avoir pour but de modifier la communauté de biens
entre époux, et sous cette modalité elle existe encore dans le
droit actuel, ou bien de rendre des biens propres de succes-
sion, et dans ce cas elle ne se faisait que par contrat de
mariage. On l'exprimait généralement en disant que cer-
tains biens, par exemple des meubles, seraient propres &
I'un des époux, ou lui sortiraient nature d’héritage, et son
extension variait suivant qu’elle était stipulée en faveur de
I'époux et des siens, par quoi on entendait les enfants, ou
des siens et de ceux de son coté et ligne, et alors elle com-
prenait les enfants ou descendants et les collatéraux. (Voy.,
pour linterprétation de ces expressions, Guyot, vo. Biens,
tome 2, p. 348, 2e colonne; Pothier, Traité des Propres,
n°® 130, tome 8 de I’édition Bugnet.) Quand la clause de
propre était stipulée au profit des siens et de ceuz de son
coté et ligne, le Répertoire de Guyot, 1'article est de Merlin,
I'appelait “la réalisation ou stipulation de propre au
traisiéme degré: vo. Réalisation, parag. I1I, tome 14, p. 462.

Dire que les biens donnés & 1’époux ou par lui retourne-
raient a ceux de son ¢6té et ligne, ¢’était, dans I'ancien droit,
stipuler que ces biens seraient propres de succession. On
les appelait des propres fictifs pour les distinguer des pro-
pres réels. Guyot, vo. Réalisation, tome 14, p. 467, lére
colonne, au bas de la page, cite un arrét ou il s’agissait de la
clause suivante d’un contrat de mariage:

que le survivant (des époux) aurait l'usufruit des biens-fonds du prédé-
cédé, et quen cas de non enfants, les biens retourneraient au cdté et
ligne dont ils seraient procédés.

Personne ne s’est avisé de croire que ce n’était pas 13 une
clause de propre.
Du reste, Particle 94 de la Coutume de Paris se servait de
la méme expression “ retourner ” pour indiquer des propres
344123
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de succession. Parlant des rentes constituées appartenant
4 des mineurs, et qui avaient été rachetées pendant leur
minorité, cet article s’exprimait ainsi:

les deniers de rachat ou le remploi d’iceux en autres rentes ou héritages
sont censés de méme nature et qualité d’immeubles qu’étaient les rentes

ainsi machetées pour retourner auz parents du céte et ligne dont les rentes
étaient procédées.

Et Pothier, ouvrage cité, n°® 119, commentant ces mots
‘“ pour retourner, ete.”, disait:

Elle (la coutume) fait assez connaitre par ces termes que ce qu’elle
s'est proposé par cette disposition, est que le bien d’une ligne du mineur
ne passe point & une autre ligne, et que le bien de chaque famille lui soit
conservé.

C’était bien la, dans I'ancien droit, I'effet de la dévolu-
tion, par voie de succession ab intestat, de biens qui étaient
propres de succession. Ils retournaient aux successibles du
coté dont ils étaient procédés par application de la régle
paterna paternis, materna maternis. Dans le contrat de
mariage qui nous occupe, les parties n’ont pu envisager que
la création de propres de succession, car elles excluaient la’
communauté de biens entre elles.

Je suis donc dopinion que la clause dont il s’agit ici est
une stipulation de propre. Une telle stipulation au profit
des héritiers du c6té et ligne de I'un des époux ne consti-
tuait pas une substitution en faveur de ceux-ci (Thevenot
d’Essaule, éd. Mathieu, n° 239, p. 89). Kt nous avons vu
que ce n’est pas un droit de retour dans le sens envisagé par
Part. 779, C.C.

J’ai & peine besoin de dire que ces stipulations de propre
avaient une portée considérable dans lancien droit, mais
seulement, comme je l’ai déja fait remarquer, dans les suc-
cessions ab intestat. On pouvait aliéner les biens stipulés
propres, ou en disposer par testament, méme en faveur d’un
parent d’une autre ligne, car la clause était de droit tres
étroit (Pothier, ouvrage cité, n° 133; voyez spécialement ce
qu’il dit au bas de la page 575).

L’importance de la clause de propre quant aux succes-
sions ab intestat provenait du fait que l’ancien droit, dans
ces successions, considérait la nature d’un bien pour en
régler la succession, par application de la régle paterna
paternis, materna maternis. Ainsi, comme deux des succes-
sions ab intestat dont il s’agit en cette cause se sont ouver-
tes avant le code civil, celle de Raphaél Dufort lui-méme et
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celle du plus jeune de ses fils, Pierre-Etienne, on peut dire
qu’on aurait tenu compte de cette clause de propre pour
régler la dévolution des biens qui en dépendaient. Mais
il faut observer qu’au décés de Raphaél Dufort, ses deux
fils, qui étaient ses plus proches héritiers, et qui étaient de
sa ligne, ont exclu I'appelant et tous les collatéraux de la
ligne paternelle (Guyot, verbis Paterna Paternis, parag. I1I,
premiére classe, questions 3 et 4, pp. 633 et suiv. du tome
12). La dévolution s’est opérée instantanément suivant la
régle: ““le mort saisit le vif son hoir plus proche et habile a
succéder ” (art. 318 de la Coutume de Paris.)

De méme, quand Pierre-Etienne Dufort est décédé en
1864, sa succession ab intestat s'est ouverte sous l'ancien
droit, et on peut conclure que les propres dont il s’agit sont
dévolus & son frére, Denis-Raphaél, qui était un successible
de la ligne paternelle, & 'exclusion de 'appelant et de tous
les collatéraux de cette ligne. (Voy. les autorités citées a
I'alinéa précédent).

Vient ensuite le code civil qui a radicalement modifié
Pancienne loi des successions. La vieille distinction des
propres et des acquets est abolie en matiére de succession
ab intestat, et mous trouvons, au Titre des Successions,
I'importante disposition suivante qui est de droit nouveau,
et je pourrais probablement dire d’ordre public:

599. La loi ne considére ni l'origine, ni' la nature des biens pour en
régler la succession. Tous ensemble ils ne forment qu’une seule et unique
hérédité qui se transmet et se partage d’aprés les mémes régles, ou suivant
qu'en a ordonné le propriétaire,

Les mots “ ou suivant qu’en a ordonné le propriétaire ”
se réferent évidemment & une disposition testamentaire.
On ne peut considérer comme une telle disposition, malgré
qu’il s’agisse d’une institution contractuelle, la partie finale
de la clause du contrat de mariage, car jamais, dans ’ancien
droit, on n’a regardé les mots

pour retourner les dits biens :aux héritiers des futurs époux du c6té
estoc et ligne d’ou ils procéderont.

comme étant une disposition ou une substitution en faveur
de ces héritiers (Voy. les autoritées citées plus haut, et spé-
cialement Thevenot d’Essaule).

Je puis ajouter que si, dans P'ancien droit, le conjoint
survivant ne succédait pas i ses enfants morts en minorité

quant aux biens stipulés propres fictifs ‘pour le conjoint
3141233 )
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prédécédé et ceux de son coté et ligne, c’est qu'il était de la
ligne opposée. La fiction, & son égard, produisait tout son
effet.

Il n’est pas nécessaire de se demander pourquoi depuis le
code civil on trouve dans les contrats de mariage des clauses
comme celle qui nous occupe. Cela s’explique par 'habi-
tude des notaires de se servir de vieilles formules, bien que
leur utilité pratique ait pris fin. Du reste, nous interprétons
ici un contrat antérieur au code.

Dong, lorsque Denis Raphaél Dufort est décédé en mino-
rité le 28 décembre 1878, sa succession ab intestat s’est
transmise conformément aux nouvelles régles contenues
dans le code. Partant, comme il ne laissait ni fréres, ni
sceurs, ni neveux, ni niéces, sa succession, comprenant la nue
propriété des biens en question, est dévolue pour le tout &
sa meére, Mme Dufort (art. 626 et 631, C.C., également de
droit nouveau, tels qu’ils se lisaient avant 'amendement de
1915, 5 Geo. V, c. 74).

Il s’ensuit que, devenue propriétaire de ces biens comme
héritiére de son fils Denis-Raphaél, Mme Dufort pouvait
en disposer par son testament en faveur de I'intimée. L’ap-
pelant n’a jamais eu la qualité d’héritier dans aucune de ces
successions.

Je suis done d’avis de rejeter I'appel avec dépens.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitor for the appellant: J. A. Molleur.
Solicitors for the respondent: Laurendeau et Laurendeau.

EUGENE BIGAOUETTE ................. APPELLANT;
AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING.............. RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF KING'S BENCH, APPEAL SIDE,
PROVINCE OF QUEBEC
Criminal law—Murder—Trial judge—Charge to jury—Indirect comment
on failure of accused to testify—Canada Evidence Act, RS.C. (19086),
c. 145, s. 4, subs. 6.
The appellant was charged with the murder of his mother. The #rial judge,

in instructing the jury, made the following remarks: “ The doctor who
made the autopsy has declared that the death must have occurred at

*PreseNT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
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seven o'clock in the morning or even before. The accused was at
that time in the house according to his own declaration to police
officers. The accused was then alone with his mother when she was
killed; and if so, the defence should have been able to explain by
whom the murder has been committed, because such a brutal murder
could not have been committed without the knowledge of the accused.”

Held that, although the language of the charge might be understood as
relating to a failure of the accused to give an explanation to police
officers or others, it is also easily and naturally capable of being under-
stood as relating to the failure of the accused to testify upon that
subject at the trial; and therefore such language is obnoxious to the
imperative direction of subs. 5 of s. 4 of the Canada Evidence Act
which requires the trial judge to abstain from any comment upon the
failure of an accused to take advantage of the privilege which the law
gives him to be a witness at the trial in his own behalf. The accused
is entitled to a new trial.

APPEAL from the decision of the Court of King’s Bench,
appeal side, province of Quebec, upholding the conviction
of the appellant for murder.

The material facts of the case and the question at issue
are stated in the above head-note and in the judgment now
reported. >

Alleyn Taschereau K.C. and J. E. Bédard K.C. for the
appellant.

Arthur Fitzpatrick K.C. and V. Bienvenu K.C. for the
respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

Durr J.—As a new trial is necessary, and since the crime
with which the accused is charged is one of the greatest
gravity, it is important to adhere rigorously to the practice
of refraining from any comment on the circumstances of
the case, beyond that which is strictly necessary in order
to elucidate the point upon which the decision of the appeal
turns.

It should be said at the outset that the jurisdiction. of this

“court rests upon the dissent of Mr. Justice Allard, and in
particular upon his view, in which he was not in agree-
ment with his colleagues, that the learned trial judge, in
instructing the jury, had failed to observe the imperative
direction of subs. 5 of s. 4 of the Canada Evidence Act,
which, in effect, requires the trial judge to abstain from
any comment upon the failure of the accused to take ad-
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vantage of the privilege which the law gives him fo be a
witness at the trial in his own behalf.

The learned trial judge said:

Le docteur Marois a fait 'autopsie & trois heures et quart, et si vous
croyez son témoignage (c’est un homme dont le témoignage a du poids),
il a déclaré que la mort avait dii arriver & sept heures, ou & six heures et
méme avant, du matin.

Voily les circonstances qui enveloppent la mort de la défunte.

P}y

Si la mort, mes amis, remonte & six heures ou & sept heures du
matin, ot était Vaccusé & ce moment-la, vers sept heures ou six heures
du matin, méme plus & bonne heure? A la maison. A la maison. Car,
d’aprés sa propre déclaration, il n’est sorti qu’a huit heures du matin.

11 était donc seul avec sa meére a4 la maison quand la mort est arrivée
et si accusé était seul avec sa mére quand elle a été tuée et égorgée, la
défense aurait dii étre capable d’expliquer par qui ce meurtre a été commis.
Car une pareille boucherie n’a pas di se faire, sans que 'accusé en eut
connaissance.

It seems to be reasonably clear that, according to the inter-
pretation which would appear to the jury as the more
natural and probable one, the comment implied in this
passage upon the failure of la défense to explain who com-
mitted the murder would, having regard to the circum-
stances emphasized by the learned trial judge, be this,
namely, that it related to the failure of the accused to tes-
tify upon that subject at the trial. It is conceivable, of
course, that such language might be understood as relat-
ing to a failure to give an explanation to police officers or
others; but the language of the charge is so easily and
naturally capable of being understood in the other way,
that it seems plainly obnoxious to the enactment referred
to, subs. 5 of s. 4, R.S.C,, c¢. 145. The law, in our opinion,
is correctly stated in the judgment of Mr. Justice Stuart in
Rezx v. Gallagher (1), in these words:

* * * it is not what the judge intended but what his words as uttered
would convey to the minds of the jury which is the decisive matter. Even
if the matter were evenly balanced, which I think it is not, and the lan-
guage used were merely just as capable of the one meaning as the other,
the position would be that the jury would be as likely to take the words

in the sense in which it was forbidden to use them as in the innocuous
sense and in such circumstances I think the error would be fatal.

There must be a new trial.

Appeal allowed.

(1) (1922) 37 Can. Cr. C. 83.
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D. M. SULLIVAN (DEFENDANT)........... APPELLANT;

AND

THE HOME BANK OF CANADA

(PLAINTIFF) . ...t } RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR BRITISH
COLUMBIA
Banks and banking—Suspension of payment at head-office—Posterior

transactions by local branch—No knowledge of suspension by local
offictals—Validity.

Transactions carried on in the ordinary course of business by officials of
a local branch after a bank had suspended payment at its head-office,
but before the officials of the branch have had knowledge of such
suspension, are valid.

Judgment of the Court of Appeal ([1926]1 3 W.W.R. 305) aff.

APPEAL from the decision of the Court of Appeal for
British Columbia (1), affirming the judgment of Gregory
J., and maintaining the respondent’s action on a cheque.

The facts of the case are fully stated in the judgment
now reported.

Geo. F. Henderson K.C. for the appellant.
M. H. Ludwig K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the court was delivered by

Durr J—The several rights and liabilities arising out of
two transactions which took place in Vancouver (of the
17th of August, 1923), are in question.

By that on which the counter-claim is founded, Harris
purchased from Sullivan Dominion bearer bonds of the par
value of $17,000, for which Harris gave his cheque on the
Vancouver branch of the Home Bank. Of these bonds,
Harris deposited in that branch bonds of the par value of
$6,000, which sum was placed to his credit. Against this
credit, he drew a cheque for a sum slightly in excess of it,
had it certified by the bank, and negotiated it.

*PreseNT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Idington, Duff, Mignault, Newcombe
and Rinfret JJ.

(1) 119261 3 W.W.R. 305.
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Shortly after Harris received the bank’s certification, the
Vancouver branch suspended payment, and, Sullivan’s
bank refusing for this reason to accept cheques on the
Home Bank, Sullivan demanded from the Home Bank the
return of the bonds he had sold to Harris, and, by his
counter-claim, seeks to enforce the demand so advanced.

By the other transaction, Sullivan purchased from Har-
ris Dominion bonds of the par value of $10,000, for which
he gave to Harris his cheque on the Standard Bank of Can-
ada for $10,657.70, which cheque Harris deposited to the
credit of the account of Harris & Co. in the Home Bank,
and, through this deposit and others made on the same day,
Harris & Co’s. account was put in credit to the amount of
$31,496.57; and on the same morning, before the suspen-
sion, Harris’ cheques were, on the strength of this credit,
accepted by the Home Bank and paid, to the amount of
$32,000 odd. Sullivan, on learning of the suspension,
stopped payment of his cheque, and the bank, by this
action, seeks to enforce payment of it.

The head office of the bank in Toronto had suspended
payment some hours before the suspension in Vancouver;
and it was contended, in support of the appeal, that by
reason of this fact the bank became incapacitated from
acquiring a title to the Victory bonds in question or to the
cheque sued upon.

As to the first mentioned transaction, the bearer Victory
bonds were negotiable instruments which the bank acquired
for value, and without notice of any defect in Harris’ title.
It is plain that the bank is entitled to keep the bonds un-
less there was such a total incapacity to acquire title to
them as to make the delivery of them an absolute nullity.
As to the last mentioned transaction, Sullivan retains the
consideration for which the cheque was given. There
again, unless the bank was totally disabled from acquiring
a title, the appellant obviously fails.

Accordingly, the appellant rested his appeal upon the
proposition that, by force of the suspension, which went
into effect in Toronto before these transactions took place,
but without the knowledge of the Vancouver officials (who
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learned of it after they had taken place), the bank was by
law struck with such incapacity.

It seems sufficient to say that there is no warrant for
such a proposition in the statutory provisions upon which
the appellant relies. The Bank Act (s. 117), provides for
the appointment of a curator “ forthwith ” when the bank
suspends payment. The curator is then to have supervision
over the affairs of the bank, until the bank resumes busi-
ness or a liquidator is appointed. There is no suggestion
in this section that the corporate capacity of the bank to
acquire property or to carry on business ceases to exist. It
still exists, but is, subject to the provisions of the Act, to
be exercised under the supervision of the curator, whose
immediate appointment the section contemplates. As to
the situation during the period intervening between the
suspension and his appointment, the only pertinent pro-
vision appears to be that contained in s. 146, which makes
it an offence for any officer of the bank to pay any debt of
the bank with knowledge of suspension without assent by
the curator or liquidator; a provision which implies no
declaration of the bank’s incapacity to aecquire property
when that takes place in the ordinary course of business
and through the agency of officers having no knowledge of
a suspension.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.

IpineroN J.—Having perused and considered the judg-
ment of my brother Duff J. herein in regard to the appeal
from the Court of Appeal for British Columbia, I agree
with the reasoning therein and the conclusion reached that
the appeal should be dismissed with costs.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitors for the appellant: MacInnes & Arnold.

Solicitors for the respondent: Reid, Wallbridge, Gibson &
Co.
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FREDERICK C. MORTON (PLAINTIFF)...APPELLANT;
AND

MICHAEL WILKINSON BRIGHOUSE

RESPONDENT.
(DEFENDANT) . ...ovivnvvnnnnennnnns

ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR BRITISH
COLUMBIA

Trust—Trustee—Accounting—Moneys received by nephew of deceased—
Evidence of intention to make gift to nephew—Applicability of Strong
v. Bird (L.R. 18 Eq. 315).

One S. B. was owner of a large tract of land and other assets and, being
a bachelor and having no relatives in this country, brought out in 1888
from England his nephew, the respondent. The latter lived with his
uncle, assisted him: in his business and eventually was allowed a very
large measure of control over his affairs. In 1906, S. B. made his
will leaving the bulk of his estate to the respondent; and in 1907 he
executed a power of attorney, under which the respondent was form-
ally given powers to act for him in the management of his affairs.
In 1908, S. B. went to a hospital, and shortly thereafter left for Eng-
land where he died in 1913. While there, in 1912, S. B. changed his
will in favour of some of his English relatives, but still left a sub-
stantial part of his estate to the respondent. In an action by the
executor of the will of 1912 to compel the respondent as trustee for
the estate of his uncle to account for rentals, profits and moneys
received by him during the lifetime of his uncle, for, as alleged, the
benefit of the latter, the defence was set up that the deceased evi-
denced his intention to permit the respondent to retain said moneys
free from any condition that he should be regarded as a trustee with
respect thereto. The language of the deceased, as reported by the
respondent in his .evidence, imports & declaration of a then present
intention by the deceased to give all his real and personal property
to the respondent; and that the respondent was to do as he pleased
with it and was to be under no obligation to account for it. The trial
judge held the respondent was not accountable on the ground that
there had been a gift to him of these moneys, that the intention to
give had remained unaltered down to the time of his death and that
his judgment must be governed by the decision in Strong v. Bird
(L.R. 18 Eq. 315). The judgment of the trial judge was affirmed,
the Court of Appeal being equally divided.

Held, that the principle laid down in Strong v. Bird was not applicable to
the circumstances of this case and that the respondent was account-
able for all moneys of the deceased received by him since 1907, except-
ing those in respect of which the intended gift above mentioned was
completed within the lifetime of the deceased.

Judgment of the Court of Appeal (36 B.C. Rep. 231) reversed.

*PrEseNT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Idington, Duff, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ. ‘
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APPEAL from the decision of the Court of Appeal for
British Columbia (1), affirming on equal division of the
court the judgment of the trial judge and dismissing the
appellant’s action. The material facts of the case and the
questions at issue are fully stated in the above head-note
and in the judgments now reported.

C. W. Craig K.C. for the appellant.
E.P. Davis K.C. and E. F. Newcombe for the respondent.

The judgment of the majority of the court (Anglin C.J.C.
and Duff, Newcombe and Rinfret J.J.) was delivered by

Durr J—This is one of those cases in which there is, per-
haps, some risk of sympathy with a claimant’s disappoint-
ment in his legitimate expectations leading one into a de-
parture from the sound application of legal principles. The
respondent’s claim against the estate of Sam Brighouse is
substantially stated in the sixth paragraph of the statement
of defence, in these words:—

" In the alternative and in further answer to the whole of the said
statement of claim this defendant says that he was told by the said Sam
Brighouse at or about the date of the said alleged power of attorney that
he this defendant was to consider all the real and personal property of the
said Sam Brighouse as his own and that he was to do as he pleased with
it and that he was to be under no obligation whatever to account for any
moneys collected under the said alleged power of attorney.

and this claim ultimately rests upon this passage in his
own evidence given at the trial:—

The witness: I had been doing his business right along, and he told
me to take everything, and use it in any way I pleased, his property,
I could sell it if I wanted to for cash, or use it for my own use, and for
himself, and even if I wanted to go into business, I could sell his pro-
perty in order to do that. He said he had given instructions to Chaldecott
—I had been up to the office the day previous, and he had read his will
to me, this was 1906, and said everything was coming to me, and he said
he had given authority to Chaldecott to make out a power of attorney,
and the reason he'did that was so if I did sell this property, I would have
power to put it in the Registry Office, and against other people. It was
not as a power of attorney for me to use it, because I had been practically
doing that right along,.

Mr. Davis: Q. Now had you any conversation with him at this time
which you speak of after leaving Chaldecott’s office, at the time you say
he read the will and so on?—A. Yes, that same conversation which I have
just mentioned now.

(1) (1925) 36 B.C. Rep. 231; [1925] 3 W.W.R. 412,
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Q. That was the time?—A. That was the time. Of course that has hap-

pened often, but this was more particular, because he said he was giving
up everything, he wanted little for himself, just a little to eat, wear and
drink, anc_l little of that, and the balance I could do as I liked with. He
was giving up all, and leaving the whole thing to me.
We need not concern ourselves with any other part of
the evidence. Brighouse made a will in 1906, by which,
after leaving annuities of comparatively trifling amount,
he bequeathed his residuary estate to the respondent. In
1907, he executed a power of attorney, under which the
respondent was formally given most ample powers to act
for him in the management of his affairs. The respondent
himself says under this power of attorney he managed the
property of Brighouse, executed leases of the real property,
received the rents and made investments. In all this, he
says, he acted as the representative of Brighouse. In pass-
ing, there is a remark which, I think, ought not to be
omitted. In reading the evidence of the respondent, I
have been impressed by his obviously straightforward
desire to state the facts as he remembers them.

In 1908, Brighouse had a serious operation, after which,
according to the evidence of the respondent, his mental
powers suffered a decline, and, as a result of which, he
eventually became demented. In 1911, Brighouse execu-
ted a codicil to the will of 1906, making unimportant alter-
ations in the particular legacies, but leaving the respondent
still the beneficiary of his residuary estate. In 1912, Brig-
house left Vancouver for England, and in the same year
he executed a new will, the effect of which will be fully
stated. In 1913 he died. The question with which this
action is immediately concerned is whether the respondent
is liable to account, at the suit of the executors and trus-
tees of the will of 1912, for moneys collected by him on
behalf of Sam Brighouse from the year 1907 on. The
learned trial judge held he was not accountable, on the
ground that there had been a gift to him of these moneys,
and that the intention to give had remained unaltered
down to the time of his death, and that his judgment,
therefore, must be governed by the decision in Strong v.
Bird (1). In the Court of Appeal, Mr. Justice Martin
accepted the conclusion of the learned trial judge, and

(1) L.R. 18 Eq. 315.
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Mr. Justice M. A. Macdonald agreed with him in a judg-
ment based in principle upon the authority which the
learned trial judge applied, while the learned Chief Justice
and Mr. Justice Galliher thought that the respondent had
failed to establish his claim, and that the judgment of the
trial judge should be reversed.

It will be convenient first to consider whether the prin-
ciple of Strong v. Bird (1) can be applied in .this case. In
substance, Sir George Jessel, in Strong v. Bird (1), held
that a testator, having manifested an intention in his life-
time to forgive an existing debt, an intention which con-
tinued unchanged down to his death, and having appointed
the debtor his executor, the debt having by this latter act
become extinguished at law, equity would regard the gift
as complete. In a later case, the rule was applied to the
gift of a specific chattel, it having been proved that the
intention to give continued down to the testator’s death.
Is the prineciple of these decisions applicable to the circum-
stances of this case? The claim, as stated in the plead-
ings, is that the respondent was, by the declaration of
Brighouse, to consider the real and personal property of
Sam Brighouse as his own, and that he was to do as he
pleased with it, and was to be under no obligation to ac-
count for it. As the respondent, in his testimony, says,
he was to take everything, and more particularly *he,”
Sam Brighouse,

was giving up everything, he wanted little for himself, just a little to
eat, wear and drink, and little of that, and the balance I could do as I
liked with. He was giving up all, and leaving the whole thing to me.

The language of Brighouse thus reported by the respond-
ent imports plainly a declaration of a present intention to
give all his real and personal property to the respondent,
and that is the basis upon which the claim is rested in the
pleadings. The foundation of the claim is a present gift
of his real and personal property.

As regards personal property, immediately reduced into
possession by the respondent, the gift was no doubt effec-
tive. But, in attempting to apply the principle of Strong
v. Bird (1), we encounter difficulties of a most serious
nature. First, is there evidence of an intention to give
continuing down to the death of Brighouse? This seems

(1) LR. 18 Eq. 315.
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1927 difficult to maintain, in view of the will of 1912. " 'That

[ ]

Morroxn Will was dated the 13th of November, 1912. By it, Michael
BRI SUSE. Wilkinson, the respondent, is the beneficiary under a

specific devise of the farm at Vancouver. That specific
piece of property is segregated from the estate, and given
to the respondent. All the rest of the property, real and
personal, the testator gives to his trustees, to be divided
among others. There can be no possible doubt as to the
meaning of the testator’s language. When he speaks of
the “remainder of my real estate,” he refers to the real
estate still standing in his name, of which he was still in
law and in equity the owner, notwithstanding the incom-
plete gift of 1907. So, with regard to his personal estate.
This disposition of his property it is at least difficult to
reconcile with the notion that he at that time considered
he had divested himself by a gift inter vivos of all his
property in favour of the respondent; with the intention,
that is to say, that the gift of 1907, deposed to by the
respondent in the passages above set out, should stand
and have effect.

But there are other difficulties. As already mentioned,
the gift relied upon is a present gift of everything. It
could not legally take effect, except in the limited way I
have mentioned.. It is at least very questionable whether
the language actually imports any intention to give after
acquired property, the produce of the property presently
given, because that would be logically inconsistent with
the assumption that everything was passing in presenti.
Assuming, however, an intention to give after acquired
property to be implied, a gift of after acquired property
would, of course, be inoperative. After acquired property
can be transferred where the transfer is for valuable con-
sideration~—to which equity will give effect as a contract;
but a gift of after acquired property cannot have such
effect. In principle, Strong v. Bird (1) would appear to
have no application in such a case, and that appears to be
in substance the view taken by that great master of law,
Mr. Justice Parker, In re Innes (2). A gift of after
acquired property could have no meaning except as a pro-
mise to give on a future occasion, and that, Parker J. says,

Duff 7.

(1) LR. 18 Eq. 315. (2) [1910] 1 Ch. 188, at pp. 192
and 193.
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would be outside the principle of Strong v. Bird (1). The
whole passage is valuable as an exposition of that prin-
ciple, and I cite it in full:—

That part of my decision turns really upon a question of fact, but
another point which is raised is one partly of fact and partly of law. It
has been held in the case of Strong v. Bird (1) that where a testator has
attempted to forgive a debt by telling his debtor that the debt is for-
given, though that cannot at law operate as a release, yet there is a pre-
sent intention of giving, which, if the debt is subsequently released, may
be effectual, and that the appointment of the debtor subsequently as an
executor is a sufficient release at law to give validity to the gift which was
otherwise imperfect. That is a decision of Sir George Jessel in 1874, and
it has been acted upon, I think, ever since, and recently has been some-
what extended by a decision of Neville J. in In re Stewart (2). The way
in which the principle enunciated by Sir George Jessel has been extended
is that it had been made, according to Neville J’s. decision, applicable
not only to the release of a debt, but in order to perfect an imperfect gift
of specific property. In the case of In re Stewart (2), the testator had
given his wife certain bonds and other securities, as to which there was
no doubt, and these 'securities had been enumerated in a document at
the foot of which the testator had written, in pencil, “Coming in next
year £1,000,” and on the evidence Neville J. construed those words as
an announcement of the .intention to give a further £1,000 to his wife
the next year. It appears that one of the bonds which had been handed
over was paid off, and £500 came, in respect of it, into the hands of the
testator. In reinvesting that next year he added rather over £1,000 to it
and bought three further bonds. He took the contract note for those
three further bonds to his wife, and he handed it to her in an envelope
with the broker’s letter announcing the purchase, and' he said, “I have
bought these for you.” Neville J. held that that was a present intention
to give which would have operated as a gift but for the fact that certain
things remained to be done which were not done, so that the gift was
imperfect. But the testator subsequently died, having appointed his wife
his executrix, and Neville J. held that the principle of Strong v. Bird (1)
was applicable, and that, there having been an actual attempted gift,
imperfect though it might have 'been, the subsequent appointment of the
lady as executrix perfected that gift by vesting in her the legal interest
in the property which was the subject of the action.

It is attempted here to extend the doctrine of those cases still further.
In the first place it is attempted to extend it to what, if there was a gift
at all, was a gift of money without that money being identified, or suffi-
ciently identified to enable it to be separated from the rest of the estate
of the testator; and in the second place it is attempted to extend the
principle of the earlier cases not only ;to an actual attempted gift which
as a matter of fact is imperfect, and therefore will not take effect unless
it is subsequently perfected; but to a mere promise to give on a future
occasion.

In my opinion the principle of Strong v. Bird (1) and In re Stewart

(2) and other similar cases ought not to be so extended. What is wanted’

in order to make that principle applicable is certain definite property
which a donor has attempted to give to a donee, but ‘has not succeeded.

(1) L.R. 18 Eq. 315. (2)[1908] 2 Ch. 251.
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There must be in every case a present intention of giving, the gift being
imperfect for some reason at law, and then a subsequent perfection of
that gift by the appointment of the donee to be executor of the donor,
so that he takes the legal estate by virtue of the executorship conferred
upon him. It seems to me that it would be exceedingly dangerous to try
to give effect by the appointment of an executor to what is at most an
announcement of what a man intends to do in ithe future, and is not
intended by him as a gift in the present which though falling on technical
considerations may be subsequently perfected.

I was at one time inclined to think that up to a certain
point the respondent’s case might be supported in this
way, namely, that the conduct of Brighouse down to the
time of his departure for England, if not down to the time
of the will of 1912, could be taken as establishing a gift
inter vivos from time to time of all property reduced into
possession by the respondent during that period as and
when that may have occurred; but a close examination of
the record, I regret to say, convinces me that this view
cannot be sustained. In the first place, the claim is not
based on any such ground in the pleadings, and a claim
of this kind, made against a deceased person’s estate, ought
to be put forward clearly. In the second place, the notion
of a continuous gift by conduct of the proceeds of property,
is not easily reconcilable with the fundamental basis of
the claim. If Brighouse had really intended, as the re-
spondent and other witnesses as well represent him as
saying that he intended, to divest himself at a stroke of
all his property, one does not easily think of him applying
his mind to the subject from day to day thereafter and
intending de die in diem a gift of the produce of the pro-
perty. It is hardly necessary to say that the reduction
into possession by the respondent of Brighouse’s funds
pursuant to a previous gift (which could only operate as
regards such funds as an unenforceable promise to give)
would confer upon the respondent no title to such funds.
Lastly and most important of all there really is no evi-
dence directed to substantiating any such basis of claim;
and when one considers the views as to the state of Brig-
house’s health held by the respondent himself, whose can-
dour and honesty are beyond praise, one understands the
difficulty the respondent’s advisers must have felt in ad-
vancing such a claim. In truth counsel for the respondent
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at the trial put his case squarely upon Strong v. Bird (1),
and upon that principle alone, and the appellants were
never called upon to meet any other case.

The appeal must therefore be allowed. There should
be a declaration that the respondent is accountable for all
moneys of the late Sam Brighouse received by him since
the 26th day of February, 1907, excepting moneys in re-
spect of which the intended gift mentioned in the pleadings
was completed within the lifetime of the said Sam Brig-
house. The respondent will, of course, be entitled to all
just and proper allowances for expenditures made by him,
and for all costs, charges and expenses incurred by him in
or in relation to or in connection with the affairs of the said
Sam Brighouse. Further directions will be reserved to the
Supreme Court of British Columbia. The course of the
litigation has been signalized by much difference of judi-
cial opinion, and, having regard to that as well as to the
exceptional circumstances, we think this is a case for an
exceptional order as to costs. The costs of all parties as
between solicitor and client, as well as all other charges
and expenses of or incidental to the action or the appeal
to the Court of Appeal or to this court, properly incurred,
will be paid out of the estate.

Ibineron J.—This appeal arises out of an action brought
by appellant, under the direction of the court, suing, in his
capacity as administrator and one of the trustees of the
estate of the late Sam Brighouse the respondent Michael
Wilkinson Brighouse, for an account of moneys and pro-
perties belonging to the said Sam Brighouse and received
by said respondent under and by virtue of a power of at-
torney dated the 6th of February, 1907 under the follow-
ing circumstances:

Said Sam Brighouse had been born and brought up in
England, and migrated to Canada and settled in Lulu
Island in British Columbia, where I infer he became a very
prosperous farmer and later on acquired valuable properties
in Vancouver, all of which on account of his health needed
someone to assume the management. thereof.

On a trip to England in 1888 he had brought back with
him one of his nephews—the said respondent, then a lad

(1) LR. 18 Eq. 315.
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of twenty-four years of age—who continued to live with
him on said farm, and helped him in many ways.

The said Sam Brighouse was a bachelor and had no rela-
tives of his own in this country. Hence, as was quite natural,
he became accustomed to rely upon and trust said nephew
(now respondent) as if his own son, which resulted in the
making of a will on the 7th November, 1906, whereby, in
the second paragraph thereof, he appointed said respond-
ent and others as follows:—

T appoint Michael Brighouse Wilkinson, Charles Edward Hope and
Joseph Richard Seymour, all of the city of Vancouver (hereinafter called
my trustees) to be executors and trustees of this my will.

Then he devised and bequeathed as follows:—

I give all my plate, linen, china, glass, books, pictures, prints, furni-
ture and household effects and all my farming stock, horses, cattle, sheep,
pigs and other animal, and all my wagons, carriages, harness, farming
machinery, implement and other farming- accessories and things to the
said Michael Brighouse Wilkinson absolutely. I give to my executors
Charles Edward Hope and Joseph Richard Seymour the sum of two hun-
dred dollars each provided they prove my will and act in the trusts
hereof. I give Francis Miller Chaldecott the sum of two hundred and
fifty dollars. I give Alfred Pearson (half brother of said Michael Brig-
house Wilkinson) the house and one acre of land more or less now occu-
pied by him, being part of my farm at Lulu Island, for life, so long as he
shall occupy same, and if he shall cease to occupy and reside there, then
said house and land shall revert and form part of my farm as dealt with
below. I give my farm at Lulu Lsland, being situate between roads num-
bered two and three containing about seven hundred acres more or less
and consisting of sections §, 6, 7, and 8, block 4, north range 6 west, and
section 32, block 5, north, range 6 west being all my farm lands situate
as aforesaid and bounded on the south by the right-of-way of the Van-
couver and Lulu Island Railway, on the west by no. 2 road, and on the
north by the Fraser river and on the east by no. 3 road, in trust for the
said Michael Brighouse Wilkinson (subject to all' mortgages and existing
charges at the time of my decease, and to the above life tenancy of one
acre aforesaid to Alfred Pearson) for life, so that he shall not have power
to dispose of the same in the way of anticipation but with power never-
theless for the said Michael Brighouse Wilkinson to appoint by deed or
will in favour of his issue and in default of appointment and so far as
such appointment shall not extend in trust for all the children of the
said Michael Brighouse Wilkinson who being sons, shall attain the age
of twenty-one years or being daughters shall attain the age of twenty-
one years or marry, in equal shares and if there shall be only one such
child the whole to be in trust for that one child, but so that no child who
or any of whose issue shall take any share under such appointment as
aforesaid shall participate in the unappointed part of the said moiety
without bringing the share or shares appointed to him or her to his or her
issue into hotchpot and acenunting for same accordingly unless the said
Michael Brighouse Wilkinson shall by such appointment direct to the con-
trary. Provided always that the above bequest of a life interest in the
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said farm with power of appointment to the said Michael Brighouse Wil-
kinson is conditional upon his adopting the surname of Brighouse in
lieu of Wilkinson within the period of two years from my death, and in
default of his so doing, I devise and bequeath my said farm to the eldest
living son (at the time of such default) of my late brother Radcliffe Brig-
house.

I may mention the fact that he gave annuities of $260
each to a brother and two sisters and a friend, and another
of $130 to a friend and the residue after paying for all
those and the liabilities, to the respondent.

I copy this to make quite clear the actual facts so much
in conflict with the statements of others concerned, includ-
ing the respondent, and his co-called corroborating wit-
nesses. ’

The said farm made ultimately nearly the half of the
whole estate, or, according to the version of the respondent,
a third or thereabout.

It will be observed, that so far from the testator having
given him everything he had given him absolutely only a
small fraction, I imagine, of his personal estate and a life
estate in the farm and otherwise as a trustee the power of
appointment in favour of his children and all that, only
conditionally upon his adopting within two years after the
testator’s death, the surname of Brighouse instead of Wil-
kinson.

And that clearly involved the need of respondent surviv-
ing the testator before he could acquire anything; and yet
the courts below have held that an interpretation and con-
struction must be put upon the conversation, which re-
spondent testifies to, and which I am about to quote, that
would give him the absolute right to all the moneys and
properties of the testator of which he got possessed mean-
time. .

The conversation I refer to and upon which said courts
rest is as follows:—

Direct examination by Mr. Davis:

Q. You live where, Mr. Brighouse?—A. At the present time in Van-
couver.

Q. How long have you been in the province?—A. Since 1888.

Q. What relation was 'the late Sam Brighouse to you?—A. He was
my uncle.

Q. Who brought you out here?—A. My uncle.

Q. And how old were you at that time?—A. About 24.

Q. From that time on, with whom did you live, or with whom did
he live?—A. With him.

3441243
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1927 Q. Was he a married man?—A. No. My mother kept house for him
” most of the time.
MokToN

v Q. Your mother was his sister?—A. Yes.
BRIGHOUSE. Q. So that he had no family. Had he any other relations here out-
—_ side of yourself and your mother?—A. A brother and a half brother who
Idington J. come later.
- Q. In order to get at some of these dates, what was the date when
he went to the hospital?—A. Between Christmas and New Year, 1908.
Q. And February, 1907, was the date of the power of attorney from
Sam Brighouse to you?—A. Yes.
Q. Why was that power of attorney given, for what purpose and how
to be used?
Mr. Smith: Surely the power of attorney speaks for itself.
The court: Why it was given would not appéar from the document.
Mr. Smith: The powers that are given in it would show why it was
given.
Mr. Davis: I am not referring to the powers given in it.
Mr. Smith: I think that is all my friend is entitled to show.
The witness: He gave me a reason himself, Mr. Smith.
Mr. Davis: What reason did he give you?
Mr. Smith: I object.
The witness: I had been doing his business right along, and he told
me to take everything and use it in any way I pleased, his property, I
could sell it if T wanted to for cash, or use it for my own use and for
himself, and even if I wanted to go into business, I could sell his property
in order to do that. He said he had given instructions to Chaldecott—
I had been up to the office the day previous, and he had read his will
to me, this was 1906, and said everything was coming to me, and he said
he had given authority to Chaldecott to make out a power of attorney,
and the reason he did that was so if I did sell this property, I would have
power to put it in the Registry Office, and against other people. It was
not as a power of attorney for me to use it because I had been practically
doing that right along.
Mr. Davis: Q. Now bad you any conversation with him at this time
which you speak of, after leaving Chaldecott’s office, at the time you
say he read the will and so on?—A. Yes, that same conversation which I
have just mentioned now.

Q. That was the time?—A. That was the time. Of course, that has
happened often, but this was more particular, because he said he was
giving up everything, he wanted little for himself, just a little to eat,
wear, and drink, and little of that, and the balance I could do as I liked
with. He was giving up all, and leaving the whole thing to me.

Q. Was any one else present at that time?—A. No, only he repeated
the same thing in my office when Mr. McPherson was there and I think
Mr. Currie. Mr. McPherson is dead.

Q. And you think Mr. Currie. Is that the Mr. Currie who gave evi-
dence here?—A. Yes.

This cheery interpretation of that conversation is sadly
in conflict with the actual facts then existent and, if pos-
sible, more so with the words of the power of attorney then
In contemplation and, I have no doubt at all, in due course
of being written according to the literal instructions of the
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testator and that he did not in fact change his mind and
convey to the respondent any other or different meaning.
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That power of attorney accords with common sense and gy tive.

is not limited to mere purposes to be served in cases of
registration as respondent and his counsel would have us
believe.

The first part of it reads as follows:—

Know all men by these presents, that I, Sam Brighouse of Lulu Island,
British Columbia, for divers good causes and considerations, me there-
unto moving have nominated, constituted and appointed, and by these
presents do nominate, constitute and appoint Michael Brighouse Wil-
kinson, of Vancouver City, British Columbia, my true and lawful attorney
for me and in my name and on my behalf and for my sole and exclusive
use and benefit to demand, recover and receive from all and every or
any person or persons whomsoever all and every sum or sums of money,
goods, chattels, effects and things whatsoever which now is or are, or
which shall or may hereafter appear to be due, owing, payable or belong-
ing to me whether for rent or arrears of rent or otherwise in respect of
my real estate or for the principal money and interest now or hereafter
to become payable to me upon or in respect of any mortgage or other
security, or for the interest or dividends to accrue or become payable to
me for or in respect of any shares, stock or interest which I may now
or hereafter hold in any joint stock or incorporated company or com-
panies or for any moneys or securities for money which are now or here-
after may be due or owing or belonging to me upon any bond, note, bill
or bills of exchange, balance of account current, consignment, contract,
decree, judgment, order or execution, or upon any other account. Also to
examine, state, settle, liquidate and adjust all or any account or accounts
depending between me and any person or persons whomsoever. And to
gign, draw, make or endorse my name to any cheque or cheques, ov orders
for the payment of money, bill or bills of exchange, or note or notes of
thand, in which I may be interested or concerned, which shall be requisite.
And also in my name to draw upon any bank or banks, individual or
individuals, for any sum or sums of money that is or are or may be to
my credit or which I am or may be entitled to receive, and the same to
deposit in any bank or other place, and again at pleasure to draw for
from time to time as I could do. And upon the recovery or receipt of
all and every or any sum or sums of money, goods, chattels, effects or
things due, owing, payable or belonging to me for me and in my name
and as my act and deed to sign, execute and deliver such good and suffi-
cient receipts, releases and acquittances, certificates, reconveyances, sur-
renders, assignments, memorials, or other good and effectual dlscharges as
may be requisite.

This I copy so far not only to shew that the basic element,
of its entire character was that respondent was to act for
and on behalf of the testator, as it expresses

for me in my name and on my behalf and for my sole and exclusive use
and benefit to demand, etc.,

but also in a great variety of cases not confined, as pre-
tended, to the needs of registration.

Idington J.
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1927 And the remainder of the said power of attorney con-
Morron  tinues to specify a great variety of commercial dealings not
Briameuse, iecessarily needing any registration to become effective.
Ldington J. In fact the necessity for using the power of attorney in
Z— " case of registration never arose until the testator had left
this country in 1911 for England.

In the meantime the testator had himself personally,
and not by his said attorney, executed two instruments,
being all I can find trace of herein, needing registration,
whilst he was in this country.

Indeed the respondent says he never used the power of
attorney for registration purposes until the Burns lease
which would be on or after 1st August, 1912.

The following evidence was given by the respondent on
cross-examination:—

Q. I think you told me on the examination for discovery, that the
power of attorney was made to you after the conversation in regard to
everything being yours?—A. He instructed Chaldecott to make out the
power of attorney—I don’t think I saw the power of attorney until I
needed it to sign the deed to Burns. ]

Q. Just to make it clear. I will read your examination. Question
965, “ Well, was there ever any one else present with you at any time he
spoke to you about it?—A. I don’t think so.

Q. The conversation that you referred to, when all those people were
present, MacPherson, Currie, Sam Brighouse and yourself, in your office,
was prior to the time you got the power of attorney?—A. I don’t think
I had received the power of attorney then, because I don’t think I took
the power of attorney out of the office until I needed it to make the Burns
lease.”—A. That is correct.

Q. It hadn't been delivered to you at that time?—A. No.

Q. Now, there was no one present at that conversation except the
two of you?—A. Except when it was reiterated, as I say in my own office.

In this there are incidentally two illustrations of what sort
of memory the respondent has, for, in fact the first use made
of the power of attorney for registration was not the Burns
lease, but a lease of lst January, 1912, to one Hinton and
others—seven months before the Bums lease.

And again Currie, whom he names as present at one of
the interviews on which he rests his case, does not seem
to have been there. At least Currie does not mention it,
as certainly he would have been glad to do if he could have
recalled it, for he also goes, it seems to me, very far, as I
will presently shew, to help his friend.

The respondent would seem from his story, if believed,
never to have bothered his head about the power of attor-
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ney, although, as he admits, his uncle the testator had ex-
pressly told him that Chaldecott, the solicitor, was prepar-
ing it. The absurd nature of the story that he never saw
it until five or six years later should, I submit, go far to
discredit him.

Are we to credit the memory of such a man when testify-
ing in September, 1925, more than eighteen years later, as
against such a written document expressing clearly what
the testator intended, and believe that the latter, a very
successful business man, expressed himself so very differ-
ently to the respondent.

Then it is pretended that such an inherently ineredible
story was corroborated by Currie and others.

Let us consider the story of Currie presented first. He
tells of walking with the testator in November, 1908, when
he told him as follows:—

Mr. Brighouse was with me. We were all together, but we were
behind the others; and Mr. Brighouse made the statement to me—we
were talking about things in general—and Mr, Brighouse made the state-
ment to me that everything he had was Michael’s to use, and do with as
he liked, and he had made a will to that effect.

Q. What was the date of that?—A. November, 1908.

Q. No, you mention another occasion, when was that, and where,
and what were the circumstances?—A. Another occasion that I remem-
ber distinetly was after Mr. Brighouse had returned to his home from
the hospital after being there for several months, in his own house at
Lulu Island, he made a statement to the same effect.

Q. Who were present at that time?—A. Just himself and me.
Q. Where was he at the time?—A. He was in bed at the time.

Q. What did he say at that time?—A. He said at that time that
everything he had was Michael’s to use and do with as he liked; that
he had kept his estates together, and it was his.

Up to that time no will which we know of, had been
made by the testator, except that of November, 1906, which
I have dealt with above and submit that its contents
absolutely destroy this story.

That however is accepted by the learned trial judge and,
I most respectfully submit, that his doing so is a grave
error. He refers (apparently as a reason for so finding) to
the fact that these and other witnesses were not seriously
crosssexamined as to their credibility. The most success-
ful way, I have often found, of dealing with preposterous
statements, as I submit some of these are in light of the
facts, is to leave those uttering them alone or lead such wit-
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nesses on. In doing so herein I submit counsel was well
advised.

Jorgenson is the next witness the learned trial judge
names, and he testifies as follows:—

Q. You cannot tell what other persons told, but just Sam Brighouse
himself.—A. Yes, Brighouse himself told me not once, but told me sev-
eral times, that Michael Wilkinson had everything and done what he
wanted with the money and property, and if it had not been for Michael,
he would have lost it anyway.

Q. How often have you had that sort of conversation with him, or

heard those statements from him?—A. I can’t recall how many times,
but quite frequently.

Can this evidence in light of the actual facts be at all
corroborative of anything likely to be the truth when we
know the actual facts as above recited?

I fail to see how that sort of stuff can form such cor-
roboration of anything which the law requires in such a
case as this.

Cocking came next in the list the learned trial judge
specifies. The gist of his evidence is as follows:—

Q. What was the substance of what he said to you with respect to
Michael, as to how things were carried on between them?—A. The time
which is most clear to my mind now is the time I took him to the hos-
pital. He was going to the hospital to be operated on, and, knowing him
as I did, I said: “Mr. Brighouse, how have you got things fixed?
Have you made a will?” and he told me he had. He told me Mr, Chalde-
cott, I think it was, made his will. He said, “ Anyway, everything I have -
got is Michael’s,” and that Michael could use anything he had got as
though it was his own. Also, that anything that was transacted, anything
that Michael said was all right.

Again the only will made up to that time was the will
above dealt with.

How can anyone read the cases deciding what is meant
by “ corroboration ” recognized by the statute in question
herein and hold there is anything useful in such stories as
witness tells. :

The contribution of Saurberg, also called to corroborate
but not named by the learned trial judge, is, if possible,
illustrated best by the following:—

A. I went to work for him in June, 1908. I was interested in fancy
chickens, and I worked up some prize laying hens, and I made up my
mind I was going into the business, and buy a few acres on Lulu Island,
and raise chickens, so I went to Mr. Brighouse and wanted to buy three
acres, and he said, “ You had better go and see Michael about it, every-
thing I have belongs to him. He has made everything for me, and kept
the estate together. If it had not been for him I would have had hardly
anything left.
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Burdis, another who witnessed a codicil of the testator
on 13th January, 1911, speaks as follows:—

Q. Did you ever have any conversation with Sam Brighouse with
reference to the relations between him and his nephew Michael, the
defendant?-—A. Scores of them.

Q. To what effect?—A. The general situation existing between Mr.
Wilkinson Brighouse and himself.

Q. What was the substance of those conversations?—A. Oh, at various
interviews over long periods, it is very difficult to define any particular
occasion, but it shewed the close association which existed between his
nephew and himself.

Q. Well, what was that, as shown by his conversation?—A. He trusted
Michael Wilkinson absolutely. He said on many occasions the property
would not have been held intact if it had not been for the influence and
care of his nephew, Michael Wilkinson.

Q. Anything else?—A. He always called the property “ours.” It

was very seldom he talked about his property. He always talked about
our property, and he refused to deal with business matters, but referred
everything to his nephew. He said Michael had authority to do any-
thing he liked, whatever Michael did was right, because he kmew when
he died—Michael knew and he knew, when he died, everything would
go to Michael Wilkinson.
I agree with the reasons assigned by the Chief Justice in
the Court of Appeal below, and with Mr. Justice Galliher,
but have thought better to quote as I have done rather
than act on the condensed abbreviation of the evidence
adduced, and relied on.

I fail to find anything in all the said evidence or any-
thing else in this case, which I have read and considered
carefully, that can bring it within the authority of the
case of Strong v. Bird (1), or any of the other cases relied
upon.

The characteristic of each of such cases in maintaining
gifts of one sort or another is that in each of them there
happens to be an important circumstance, inherent in
each of said cases, maintaining the like claim whereas in
the case presented by the respondents herein the circum-
stances are overwhelmingly against the respondent, in my
humble judgment.

Therefore in my opinion this appeal should be allowed
with costs throughout and judgment directed giving the
relief the appellant prayed for in the action in question.

I may be permitted to add that the last will of the
testator, made in England, is in all its essential features
such a reasonable disposition and distribution of his pro-

(1) L.R. 18 Eq. 315.
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perty as any reasonable person should expect, in the cir-
cumstances in which the testator was placed, and remedies
what the first will, I imagine, discloses a seeming want of
generosity on the part of the testator, possessed of so large
an estate, when dealing with the amounts left to his brother
and sisters, unless of course they were each and all wealthy
people.

On such assumption the last will, I submit, clearly
should not be invaded and nullified by such evidence as
respondent gives and produces to help him when he is
getting such handsome treatment as it gives him.

Of course I think he is in his accounting to be entitled
to any reasonable commission and expenses for work done
under the power of attorney as if a stranger doing it there-
under and liable for interest on that he is found account-
able for from the date of the testator’s death.

Appeal allowed.

Solicitor for the appellant: W. D. Gillespie.
Solicitor for the respondent: Ghent Dauvis.

IN THE MATTER OF THE AUTHORIZED ASSIGN-
MENT OF HOTEL DUNLOP, LTD., ETC.

PAUL C. QUINN (AvuTtHORIZED TRUSTEE) . ... APPELLANT;
AND
HERBERT GUERNSEY (LANDLORD)..... RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPREME COURT OF NEW BRUNSWICK,
APPEAL DIVISION, SITTING IN BANKRUPICY
Appeal—Special leave to appeal to Supreme Court of Canada under s.

74 (3) of The Bankruptey Act (D. 1919, ¢. 36)—Whether hotel-
keeper a “ trader” within s. 47 of Act Respecting Landlord and Ten-
ant, N.B. (C.S.N.B., 1908, c. 153, as amended 1924, ¢. 30)—Eztent of
landlord’s rights of priority in New Brunswick under assigninent in

bankruptcy.

*PreseENT:—Anglin CJ.C. in Chambers.

APPLICATION for special leave to appeal under sec.
74 (3) of The Bankruptcy Act from a judgment of the
Supreme Court of New Brunswick. Application granted.

H. A. Porter for the application.
E. P. Raymond K.C. contra.
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Anguin C.J.C.—This is an application for special leave
to appeal under s. 74 (3) of The Bankruptcy Act from the
judgment of the Supreme Court of New Brunswick de-
livered by Grimmer J., reversing the judgment of Barry
CJXK.B, sitting as a judge in bankruptcy. Barry
C.J.K.B. had held the insolvent to be a “trader” within
the meaning of s. 47, added to the C.S.N.B., 1903, c. 153,
Respecting Landlords and Tenants, by c. 30 of the New
Brunswick Statutes of 1924. He accordingly restricted the
landlord’s priority over general creditors to three months’
rent. The appellate court, being of the opinion that the
insolvent was not a ‘ trader ” within the meaning of the
New Brunswick statute, held that the landlord was en-
titled to priority for his entire claim for rent amounting
to upwards of $3,000, but, inasmuch as the estate of the
bankrupt was inadequate to meet that claim, directed that
the  trustee should pay over to the landlord all the moneys
in his hands received from the sale of the estate less the
sheriff’s costs of a seizure under execution, amounting to

$243.31, the balance payable to the landlord being

$2,256.69, “ without deducting therefrom any costs or
charges of the sale or otherwise”; and no costs of the
appeal were allowed. _

The questions as to whether an hotel-keeper is a
“trader ” and as to the extent of the landlord’s rights in
New Brunswick under an assignment in bankruptey seem
to me to be of sufficient general importance and open to
sufficient doubt in view of the conflicting judgments below,
to warrant the granting of special leave to appeal.

Such leave will accordingly be granted; and the costs
of this application will be costs in the appeal.

Application granted.

Solicitors for the applicant: Porter & Ritchie.

Solicitor for the respondent: Edward P. Raymond.
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IN THE MATTER OF “THE TRUSTEE ACT,” BEING
CHAPTER 220 OF THE REVISED STATUTES OF
ALBERTA AND AMENDMENTS THERETO.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATES OF JOHN
WUDWUD, DECEASED, ZADAI MALESKO, DE-
CEASED, AND DAVID STEVENSON, DECEASED.

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF CAN-
ADA (INTERVENANT) ....vvvnvniennnnnnn

AND

THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF AL-
BERTA (INTERVENANT) ............

} APPELLANT;

} RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE APPELLATE DIVISION OF THE SUPREME
COURT OF ALBERTA

Constitutional Law—Escheats—Bona vacantia—Rights as between Domin-
ion and province of Alberta—The Alberta Act (D., 1905, ¢. 3) ss. 3,
21—The B.N.A. Act, ss. 109, 102, 126, 92—The Ultimate Heir Act,
Alta., 1921, ¢. 11.

Lands in the province of Alberta, granted by the Crown since 1st Septem-
ber, 1905, when The Alberta Act came into force, which have escheated
for want of heirs or next of kin, escheat to the Crown in the right
of the Dominion. Trusts and Guarantee Co. v. The King (54 Can.
S.C.R. 107) followed.

Lands in Alberta granted by the Crown prior to lst September, 1905,
which have escheated subsequent to that date, alsc escheat to the
Crown in the right of the Dominion. By s. 21 of The Alberta Act
“ All Crown lands, mines and minerals and royalties incident thereto ”
are retained by the Dominion. The phrase “ Crown lands, mines and
minerals ¥ does not necessarily import lands, etc., held by the Crown
in sole proprietorship; it should be read as including all interests of
the Crown in lands, etc.; reading it thus, “lands, mines and min-
erals” may be regarded as the antecedent of the phrase “incident -
thereto ”’; accordingly the Dominion retains all interests of the Crown
in lands within the province, together with all royalties incident
to such lands; any royalty affecting lands, such as the right to
escheat, might properly be described as a royalty “incident to?”
lands. The above construction is supported, when the section is
compared with s. 109 of The B.N.A. Act, and read in light of the
judgments in Atty. Gen. of Ontario v. Mercer (8 App. Cas. 767) and
Atty. Gen. of British Columbia v. Atty. Gen. of Canada (14 App.
Cas. 295 at pp. 304, 305).

Personal property situated in Alberta of persons domiciled in Alberta
and dying intestate since 1st September, 1905, without next of kin, go
to the Crown as boma vacantia in the right of the province. The

*PreseNT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Idington, Duff, Mignault, Newcombe
and Rinfret JJ. Idington J. did not take part in the judgment.
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effect of 5. 3 of The Alberta Act was to give the newly created pro- 1927

vinece “ power of appropriation” (s. 102 of The B.N.A. Act; and see s. "

126, and Liquidators of the Maritime Bank of Canada v. Receiver %ﬁm

General of New Brunswick ([1892] A.C. 437 at p. 144) over revenues of CANADA
belonging to the same classes as those over which the original pro- v.
vinces had such power before Confederation, and which, under The ATTORNEY

BN A. Act, they still possess; subject, of course, to the enactments OFG 225:3;_
of The Alberta Act. J——

The Ultimate Heir Act, Alta., 1921, ¢. 11, in so far as it purports to affect
real property, is ultra vires; it is legislation disposing of assets desig-
nated as belonging to the Dominion by the statute which brought
the province into existence and defines its powers and rights, rather
than truly an exercise of the provincial legislative authority in rela-
tion to the law of inheritance.

Judgment of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court. of Alberts (22
Alta. L.R. 186) reversed in part.

APPEAL by the Attorney General of Canada from the
judgment of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court
of Alberta (1) in so far as it upheld the contentions of the
province of Alberta on certain questions in dispute, under
a special case submitted to that court. The case came
before it as a consolidation of three separate applications
by the administrators, made by way of originating notices,
for advice and directions in respect of questions arising in
the administration of certain estates of deceased persons,
which applications, as to the claims advanced by the re-
spective intervenants, were referred to the Appellate
Division. .

The estates in question were those of John Wudwud,
deceased, Zadai Malesco, deceased, and David Stevenson,
deceased. In each case the deceased died in Alberta, domi-
ciled in Alberta, intestate, and without heirs or next of
kin (other than as provided in The Ultimate Heir Act here-
inafter referred to, in the case of Malesco who was the only
one who died after that Act came into force) and leaving
both real and personal property.

Wudwud died on June 24, 1918. The patent to the
realty was granted (to the deceased’s predecessor in title)
by the Department of the Interior at Ottawa on August
15, 1910.

Malesko died on April 24, 1921. The patent to the
realty was granted by the Department of the Interior at
Ottawa on December 28, 1920.

(1) 22 Ala. L.R. 186; [1926] 1 W.W.R. 337; [1926] 1 D.L.R. 924,



138

1927
A~

ATTORNEY
GENERAL
oF CANADA
v.
ATTORNEY
GENERAL

OF ALBERTA.

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

Stevenson died on November 8, 1919. The real estate
was patented prior to the creation of the province of Al-
berta. The patent to the deceased’s predecessor in title
was issued in 1884, and the transfer to deceased was dated
and registered in 1904.

The questions dealt with by the Appellate Division and
its holdings thereon were as follows:

(1) Do lands situated in Alberta granted by the Crown
since September 1, 1905, when The Alberta Act, 4 and 5
Edw. VII, c. 3, came into force, which have escheated for
want of heirs or next of kin, escheat to the Crown in the
right of the Dominion of Canada or in the right of the pro-
vince of Alberta?

The Appellate Division answered this question in favour
of the Dominion of Canada, following Trusts and Guaran-
tee Co. v. The King (1).

(2) Do escheated lands in the province of Alberta
granted by the Crown prior to September 1, 1905, which
have not become Crown lands by escheat or otherwise
prior to that date, escheat to the Crown in the right of the
Dominion of Canada or of the province of Alberta?

The Appellate Division answered this question in favour
of the province.

(3) Does personal property situated in Alberta of per-
sons domiciled in Alberta and dying intestate since Sep-
tember 1, 1905, without next of kin, go to the Crown as
bona vacantia in the right of the Dominion of Canada or
of the province of Alberta?

The Appellate Division answered this question in favour
of the province.

(4) Is c. 11, 1921 (Alberta) entitled An Act to Provide
for an Ultimate Heir of Lands and Next of Kin of Intestate
Persons (now R.S.A., 1922, ¢. 144, The Ultimate Heir Act)
intra vires in whole or in part? (By the said Act a person
dying intestate and without heirs or next of kin, is deemed
to have made a will in favour of the University of Alberta,
and the university is made the ultimate heir and next of
kin of any such person). '

The Appellate Division answered this question in favour
of the province, holding the statute to be intra vires.

(1) (1916) 54 Can. S.C.R. 107.
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N. D. MacLean K.C. and E. Miall for the appellant: Al-
berta, which never owned lands, mines and minerals, or
royalties such as escheats and bonra vacantia, is not in the
same position as Ontario and British Columbia, which had
owned them previous to becoming part of tkie Dominion.
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The words “ All lands, mines, minerals, and rcyalties,” as ©F ALBERTA.

used in s. 109 of The B.N.A. Act, are limited and controlled
by the words “ belonging to the several provinces ” in the
same section. See The King v. Atty. Gen. of British Col-
umbia (1). If, as submitted, s. 109 is not applicable to
the province of Alberta, its case fails, as nowhere in The
Alberta Act is there any grant to the province of royalties
such as escheat and bona vacantia.

Should this court hold that said words in s. 109 are not
limited as aforesaid, it is submitted that said s. 109 is sub-
ject to s. 21 of The Alberta Act. S. 21 is not a reservation
from a grant of certain lands, etc., but is a declaration. . The
words in s. 21 are “ All Crown lands, mines and minerals
and royalties incident thereto.” Clear distinction must be
drawn between the meaning of Crown lands and, for in-
stance, unpatented lands or ungranted lands., as used in
the Manitoba Act. The true meaning of Crown lands is
the estate of the Crown in lands. This includes its allodial
estate in lands granted or ungranted.

Crown prerogatives of the Dominion could not be trans-
ferred to the province by implication, particularly in view
of s. 16 of The Interpretation Act (R.S.C., 1906, c. 1.).
Such could only be done by express words. See Maxwell
on Statutes, 5th Ed., p. 220; Théberge v. Landry (2);
Cushing v. Dupuy (3); Atty. Gen. of British Columbia v.
Atty. Gen. of Canada (4); Atty. Gen. of Canada v. Atty.
Gen. of Ontario (5).

The Ultimate Heir Act, Alta., 1921, ¢. 11, is colourable
legislation and wultra vires. If escheat and bona vacantia
fall to the Dominion, this Act is a direct appropriation of
Dominion rights. Admitting the province’s right to deal
with succession, and property and civil rights, there is a

(1) 19241 AC. 213 at p. 219. (3) (1880) 5 App. Cas. 409, at

p. 419,
(2) (1876) 2 App. Cas. 102, at p. (4) (1889) 14 App. Cas. 295, at
106. * p. 303. .

(5) 118981 A.C. 700, at p. 709.
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difference between an incidental infringement of Dominion
rights, as was the action of Saskatchewan in allowing
illegitimates to inherit—Atty. Gen. of Canada v. Stone (1)
—and the entire appropriation of Dominion rights as here
attempted. The Ultimate Heir Act is entirely new, reme-
died no existing wrong, and is contrary to what has always
been our law. It was enacted from the province’s desire
to secure the revenues which it tried to get by its Act of
1915 (e. 5), which, so far as that Act purported to deal
with escheat of land, was held in Trusts and Guarantee Co.
v. The King (2) to be ultra vires. The contention that the
University of Alberta is a corporate entity, entirely dis-
tinct from the province, while true in letter, is not true in
fact, as the bulk of the money required for the university’s
support is provided by the province (R.S.A., 1922, c. 56, s.
80). Receipt of revenues by the university under The
Ultimate Heir Act would relieve the province pro tanto.
The “+true nature and character of the Aect,” its “ pith and
substance ” shows it to be in reality an attempt to appro-
priate the Dominion prerogatives of escheat and bona
vacantia under the guise of legislation as to inheritance,
and therefore ultra vires. Atty. Gen. for Ontario v. Recip-
rocal Insurers (3) and cases cited therein.

W. 8. Gray and J. J. Frawley for the respondent: The
relation between the Crown and the province is the same
as that which subsists between the Crown and the Domin-
ion in respect of such of the public property and revenues
as are vested in them respectively. Liquidators of the
Maritime Bank of Canada v. Receiver General of New
Brunswick (4).

It is finally settled that escheats and bona vacantia .are
“royalties ” within the meaning of s. 109 of The B.N.A.
Act, and go to the Crown in the right of the province in
so far as the four original provinces are concerned, and in
so far as British Columbia, subsequently admitted, is con-
cerned. Atty. Gen. of Ontario v. Mercer (5); The King
v. Atty. Gen. of British Columbia (6). Ss. 102 and 109 of

(1) [1924] S.C.R. 682. (4) [1892) A.C. 437, particu-
(2) (1916) 54 Can. SCR. 107. larly at pp. 441, 443.
(3) [1924] AC. 328. * (5) (1883) 8 App. Cas. 767.

(6) [1924] AC. 213.
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The B.N.A. Act apply to Alberta, under s. 3 of The Alberta
Act (except in so far as varied), and, therefore, on author-
ity of above cases, escheats and bona vacantia go to the
province of Alberta, except as The Alberta Act changes
that disposition. It may be contended that s. 109 cannot
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apply to Alberta because it did not own lands, etc., at the °F ALBERTA.

Union, as it only came into existence then as a province.
But said s. 3 makes it clear that s. 109 applies just as if the
province had a previous existence. There might be no
lands, mines or minerals to which it could apply, but the
royalties or jura regalia and the right to them came into
existence contemporaneously with the creation of the pro-
vince, and its right arises immediately just as if it had a
previous existence. By s. 109 lands, etc.,, and royalties
were declared to belong to the several provinees in which
the same “are situate or arise.” ‘‘ Royalties,” including
in that term the right to escheats and bona vacantia, were
rights arising in the future; the right to them arose from
time to time after the province was established, and the
provision as to them in s. 109 applied. See The King v.
Atty. Gen. of British Columbia (1), and the same case in
the Supreme Court of Canada (2).

Reading ss. 3 and 21 of The Alberta Act together, it is
obvious that ss. 102 and 109 of The B.N.A. Act apply to
Alberta, except as modified by said s. 21. S. 21 defines
what royalties are reserved to the Dominion, the rest going
to the province by virtue of said s. 109. From one point
of view this is something in the nature of a grant and a
reservation. S. 21 limits the reservation to royalties in-
cident to Crown lands, mines and minerals. As to escheats,
the reservation limits them to Crown lands, that is, land
which at the time the Act came into force was still in the
Crown, so that the right to escheats of land patented before
that time is in the province. There is no reservation what-
ever as to bona vacantia.

Practically the same language is used in admitting Al-
berta and Saskatchewan as was used in admitting Mani-
toba, British Columbia and Prince Edward Island, as to
making applicable the provisions of The B.N.A. Act. S. 109

(1) [1924] A.C. 213, particu- (2) (1922) 63 Czn. S.C.R. 622,
larly at p. 220. particularly at pp. 635, 633.

36003—1 '
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was applied in favour of British Columbia in The King v.
Atty. Gen. of British Columbia (1), and it is beyond doubt
that the intention in each case of new provinces entering
or being established was that they were to be put on ex-
actly the same footing as the original provinces, except in
the minor respects enumerated in the different Acts and
Orders in Council.

The contention that, as the Crown in the right cf the
Dominion had the title to the land before it was granted,
it must go back to the Crown in the right of the Dominion
in the event of escheat arising, overlooks two things: (1)
That when Alberta was established, the distribution of
property and powers between the Dominion and the pro-
vinces was made “as if * * * Alberta had been one
of the provinces originally united,” and to give full effect
to these words, it must be conceded that Alberta com-
menced its existence (so far as possible) with all the pro-
perty and powers which the original provinces had “ ex-
cepting so far as varied,” ete. This clearly covers the case
of royalties such as escheats and bona vacantia, which are
abstract rights arising after the creation of the province.
(2) That the Crown is one and indivisible; the Crown in
the right of the province is the Crown to the same extent
as the Crown in the right of the Dominion, and an escheat
to the Crown in the right of the province is an escheat to
the Crown, or the lord from whom the land was held.

If royalties are not disposed of as above contended, they
go to the Crown in the right of the province by reason of
the exclusive jurisdiction as to “ property and civil rights.”

Even if nothing were said about royalties in The B.N.A.
Act or The Alberta Act, the right to bona vacantia would
belong to the province. The right does not arise like
escheat, but simply because there are goods without an
owner or any one who can claim through the deceased, and
the Crown steps in and takes. In this connection, see In
Re Barnett’s Trusts (2), Halsbury’s Laws of England, vol.
7, para. 442,

(1) [19241 AC. 213. (2) [1902] 1 Ch. 847, at p. 857.
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As to lands unpatented when the province was formed
it was decided in Trusts and Guarantee Co. v. The King
(1) that the right of escheat is in the Dominion. (To
preserve rights in event of further appeal it is submitted
such decision was wrong). As to lands patented before the
province was formed, escheats go to the province by virtue
of ss. 3 and 21 of The Alberta Act. See last mentioned case
at p. 124, and Atty. Gen. of Canada v. Stone (4) at p. 689.

The Ultimate Heir Act is intra vires. It provides an
heir and prevents escheat arising. It comes within the
province’s jurisdiction over property and civil rights. See
Trusts and Guarantee Co. v. The King (2); Atty. Gen. for
British Columbia v. The King (3) ; Atty. Gen. of Canada v.
Stone (4) ; and same case below (5) ; Atty. Gen. for Quebec
v. Atty. Gen. for Canada (6). Escheat has been prevented
from arising by legitimation Acts, and by Acts creating
heirs for such illegitimate persons, by Acts enabling aliens
to hold lands, by Acts abolishing forfeitures consequent on
attainder, felony, ete., also by adoption Acts under which
rights of inheritance and suceession are conferred on legally
adopted children. The Ultimate Heir Act is legislation of
a similar kind and eclearly within provineial powers.

The history of the law relating to escheats shows that
from the beginning the right to escheat has been whittled
away, the whole tendency being in favour of preventing
escheats. See Burgess v. Wheate (7).

The judgment of the court was delivered by

Durr J—The answer to the first question is dictated by

the judgment of this court in The Trusts and Guarantee
Co. v. The King (1), and is to the effect that such lands
escheat to the Dominion.

As to the second question, it is convenient first to limit
ourselves to the case of lands granted by the Crown in

(1) (1916) 54 Can. S.C.R. 107. (5) [1920]1 1 W.W.R. 563 at pp.

570-571, 576.

(2) 54 Can. S.C.R. 107, at p.110.
(6) (1883) 3 Cartwright’s Cases

(3) (1922) 63 Can. S.C.R. 622.
Idington J. at p. 631. On
appeal [1924] A.C. 213.

(4) [1924] S.C.R. 682 at p.688.
36003—13

100, at pp. 104, 101.

(7) (1759) 1 Eden 177 at pp.
191, 201. (28 E.R. 652, at
pp. 657, 661),

143
1927

e
ATTORNEY
GENERAL
oF CANADA

v.
ATTORNEY
GENERAL
OF ALBERTA.



144
1927

A
ATTORNEY
GENERAL
oF CANADA
v.
ATTORNEY
GENERAL

OF ALBERTA.

DufiJ.

—

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

right of the Dominion, the absolute title to which was
vested in the Dominion at the time of the grant.

Did the right of escheat in respect of such lands, which,
prior to the enactment of The Alberta Act, was a “royalty”
belonging to the Crown in right of the Dominion, pass to
the province by force of that statute? S.21 of The Alberta
Act is in these words:

All Crown lands, mines and minerals and royalties incident thereto,
and the interest of the Crown in the waters within the Province under
The North~-West Irrigation Act, 1898, shall continue to be vested in the
Crown and administered by the Government of Canada for the purposes
of Canada, subject to the provisions of any Act of the Parliament of
Canada with respect to road allowances and roads or trails in foree imme-
diately before the coming into force of this Act, which shall apply to the

said Province with the substitution therein of the said Province for the
North-West Territories.

The observations of Lord Selborne in Attorney General
of Ontario v. Mercer (1), are sufficient warrant for saying
that it is at least doubtful whether such royalties can pro-
perly be described as interests in land and whether they
would fall within the scope of the expression “Crown
lands,” standing alone.

According to the narrowest construction, ‘royalties in-
cident thereto” may be treated as royalties incidental to
the Crown title to lands, mines and minerals withheld by
force of the section from the province. But there is a more
liberal construction which must be considered: the phrase
“ Crown lands, mines and minerals ”’ does not necessarily
import “lands, mines and minerals” held by the Crown
in full proprietorship. It may be read as including all in-
terests of the Crown in lands, mines and minerals within
the province. And reading it thus, “ lands, mines and min-
erals ” may be regarded as the antecedent of the phrase
“jincident thereto.” According to this reading, the Domin-
ion retains all interests of the Crown in lands, mines and
minerals within the provinee, together with all royalties
incident to such lands, mines and minerals. Any royalty
affecting lands, mines and minerals (such, for example, as
the right of escheat, according to which lands held in fee
simple by a subject are liable to return to the Crown. upon a
failure of heirs) might not improperly be described as a

(1) (1883) 8 App. Cas. 767, at p. 777.
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royalty “ incident to” lands, mines and minerals, and this
reading seems the more probable one.

The consequences of the narrow construction might, in-
deed, be startling. In view of the judgment of Lord Wat-
son in Attorney General of British Columbia v. Attorney
General of Canada (1) (the Precious Metals case), it is at
least doubtful whether the “ precious metals ” are compre-
hended within the expression “lands, mines and minerals ”
ins. 21. For the right to them, the Dominion must rely
upon the reservation of royalties. And this right, as Lord
Watson points out, is in no way accessory to any title of
the Crown to land, or to mines and minerals in the sense
in which, according to the views expressed in the passage
referred to above, those words are used in s. 109 of The
British North America Act and, presumably, in s. 21 of
The Alberta Act. The consequence, therefore, of reading
the words “incident thereto,” as comprising only royalties
incidental or accessory to the the Crown’s title in lands,
mines and minerals, in the sense in which these words are
here used, would be to exclude the precious metals or,
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rather, the jus regale touching the precious metals, from

the reservation.

The effect of the section, by this construction, is to
reserve the territorial revenues of the Crown to the
Dominion, and when the language of this section is com-
pared with that of s. 109 of The British North America
Act, and read in light of the judgments in Attorney Gen-
eral of Ontario v. Mercer (2), and the Precious Metals case
(3), there seem to be solid grounds for the view that such
was the intent with which it was enacted. There 'is the
highest and most weighty authority for construing this
enactment in a broad and liberal spirit. Attorney Gen-
eral of Ontario v. Mercer (2), at pp. 778 and 779. The
answer to the second question will therefore be that such
lands escheat to the Dominion.

As touching the question of the right to bona vacantia,
a different set of considerations must be examined. This
right is not one of those reserved by s. 21, and, as respects

(1) (1889) 14 App. Cas. 205, at  (2) (1883) 8 App. Cas. 767.
pp. 304 and 305. (3) (1889) 14 App. Cas. 295.
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it, the answer to this question must turn upon the effect
of s. 3, which is in these terms:

The provisions of The British North America Acts, 1867 to 1886, shall
apply to the province of Alberta in the same way and to the like extent
as they apply to the provinces heretofore comprised in the Dominion,
ag if the said province of Alberta had been one of the provinces origin-
ally united, except in so far as varied by this Act and exeept such pro-
visions as are in terms made, or by reasomable intendment may be held
to be, specially applicable to or only to affect one or more and not the
whole of the said provinces.

The Dominion advances the view that those provisions
of The British North America Act, which deal with the
allotment of the public property and revenues, have for
their subject matter property and revenues which, at the
time the Act took effect (or was to take effect), were or
might be at the disposition of a colony having a legislature
or government independent of the Dominion; and that
subsequently they can have mo application to (or even a
meaning as applied to) provinces newly created under the
authority of The British North America Act, 1871, such as
Saskatchewan and Alberta.

There are, no doubt, many provisions of The British
North America Act which, according to the strict letter,
are not capable of application to the case of such a province.
But, in so far as such provisions are in substance fairly
applicable in a manner consonant with the general intend-
ment of The Alberta Act, there seems to be no good reason
for refusing to give effect to them accordingly.

The pertinent provisions of the Act are found in sec-
tions 102, 109 and 126. These provisions deal with pro-
perty in the narrow sense, and with revenues derived
from the exercise of jura regalia, over which the provinces,
at the time of the union, possessed “ power of appropria-
tion.” It is this power of appropriation which is reserved
to the provinces. See s. 126, and Liquidators of the Mari-
time Bank of Canada v. Receiver General of New Bruns-
wick (1).

If we consider the substance of the matter, there
appears to be no very cogent reason against ascribing to
these provisions, under the authority of s. 3 (in their ap-
plication to Alberta), the only meaning according to which
they are not insensible in relation to a newly created pro-

(1) (18921 A.C. 437, at p. 444.
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vinee, that is to say, as giving to such a province “ power 1927
of appropriation” over revenues belonging to the same Arrorney
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power before Confederation, and which, by force of these Arncs
provisions, they still possess; subject always, of course, ‘Gewena
to the enactments of The Alberta Act itself, and in par- ©F ALBERTA.

ticular to s. 21. DuffJ.

There is great force in the argument advanced by the
province that sections 20 and 21 are most naturally read
as presupposing the existence of some such gereral disposi-
tion in favour of the province; and the obsecrvations of
Lord Selborne in Attorney General of Ontario v. Mercer
(1) already alluded to, as to the spirit in which these
enactments should be construed, cannot be insisted upon
with too much emphasis.

There remains the question touching the validity of the
Alberta statute. That the province of Alberta has plenary
authority, under s. 92, to lay down the rules governing
the devolution of both real and personal property at the
death of the owner is, of course, past question. The real
subject: of controversy is whether or not the impeached
statute is legislation in relation to rights of inheritance.

It must first be observed, as regards lands, that the
second section of the statute, which is the section in ques-
tion, comes into operation only when the events have
happened under which, if the statute had not been passed,
lands to which it relates would (assuming rights of escheat
affecting lands acquired through The Hudson’s Bay Com-
~ pany are not within s. 21) have vested in the province;
or, by force of s. 21, would have vested in the Dominion.
S. 2 of The Ultimate Heir Act declares that, in respect of
such lands, the owner, dying intestate, shall be deemed to
have made a valid will, devising them to the University
of Alberta, and that the University of Alberta shall be
deemed to be the heir and the next of kin of any person
“so dying as aforesaid.”

The direct effect and aim of this statute are, by means
of a legal fiction, to dispose of, inter alia, real property
which, by The Alberta Act, is reserved to the Dominion.

(1) (1883) 8 App. Cas. 767.
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S. 21, which must be read as a qualification of s. 109 of
The British North America Act (see Attorney General of
British Columbia v. Attorney General of Canada (1)),
vests exclusively in the Dominion the power of appro-
priation over the property and rights to which it relates.
The impugned enactment assumes to appropriate such
property. Neither is it wholly without significance that
the beneficiary of this legislative effort of the Alberta
Legislature is to be an institution that, as regards finances,
is mainly dependent upon that legislature for its support,
and is very largely under the control of the Crown in right
of the province.

This is legislation disposing of assets designated as be-
longing to the Dominion by the statute which brought the
province into existence and defines its powers and rights;
rather than truly an exercise of the provincial legislative
authority in relation to the law of inheritance; and, being
thus repugnant to the enactments of that statute, it is in
law inoperative.

Appeal allowed with costs.
Solicitor for the appellant: Neil D. MacLean.

Solicitor for the respondent: W. 8. Gray.

BRUCE W. CLARKE ano LORNE H A .
CLARKE (DEFENDANTS) ......e...... PPELLANTS;

AND
RICHARD C. BABBITT (PLAINTIFF)..... RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL FROM THE APPELLATE DIVISION OF THE SUPREME
COURT OF ONTARIO

Real property—Title by possession—The Limitations Act, Ont. (RS.0,,
1914, c. 75) 8. 6—Nature of use and occupation—Nature and extent
of enclosure—Evidence as to length of time—Trial judge’s estimate of
witnesses—Reversal of findings.

It was held that plaintiff had acquired title by possession to a strip of
land covered by the paper title of defendants, adjoining land
owners; that the planting and care of a hedge which, for a part of its
length, encroached on defendants’ land, the construction and main-

(1) (1889) 14 App. Cas. 295, at p. 304.

*PresENT:—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
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tenance of a walk on plaintiff’s side of the hedge and partly on said
strip, the cultivating with flowers, lawn and terracing up to the hedge,
and the continuous general use and enjoyment, by plaintiff or his
predecessor in title, of said strip along with the other land occupied
by him, there being no fence or other construction (except the hedge)
to indicate a boundary, constituted a use and occupation which, if
exclusive and continued for the statutory period, established a right
by possession under s. 5 of The Limitations Act, R.S.0., 1914, ¢. 75
(Marshall v. Taylor [1895]1 1 Ch. 641 at p. 646) ; that the user in ques-
tion could not be deemed an exercise of a mere right of way; and
that, on the evidence, continuous exclusive actual occupation by plain-
tiff or his predecessor in title, for over ten years, was established.

Possession may be none the less sufficient to warrant the application of
8. 5 of The Limitations Act, even though there is no real enclosure
(Seddon v. Smith 36 L.T.R. 168 at p. 169). The hedge in question,
though not continued to the rear boundary of the land, had the
strongest evidential value as marking the extent or area of occupa-
tion and showing adverse possession.

The trial judge’s estimate of witnesses loses much of its weight when he
gives for such estimate reasons which, upon examination, are found
unconvineing and unsatisfactory.

Judgment of the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario
(67 Ont. L.R. 60), reversing judgment of Widdifield Co.C.J. affirmed,
Duff and Newcombe JJ. dissenting.

Per Duff and Newcombe JJ. (dissenting) :—The hedge was not intended
to be definitive of any line, or to mark the limit of any occupation;
it included nothing and excluded nothing; it had an obvious purpose
explaining its existence and use, namely, to buttress a walk along a
side hill; in the circumstances it was meaningless as evidence of ex-
clusive possession of the soil; the evidence as to the beginning of
construction of the improvements relied on was not clear or definite,
and was unsafe to be regarded as initiating & period of prescription
for the title; there was nothing pointing to an intention to exclude,
within the principle stated in Littledale v. Liverpool College ([1900]
1 Ch. 19 at p. 23). The time of the existence of the hedge was not
satisfactorily established, and the trial judge’s findings thereon, his
estimate of the witnesses forming a substantial part of his reasons,
should not have been set aside (SS. Hontestroom v. SS. Sagaporack
et al, 136 L.T. 33 at p. 37 et seq.).

APPEAL by the defendants from the judgment of the
Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario (1)
reversing the judgment of His Honour, Judge Widdifield,
of the County Court of the county of York, dismissing the
plaintiff’s action. '

The action involved the question of title to a strip of
land which formed part of lot 40 on the north side of Rox-
borough St. East, Toronto, as shown on registered plan no.
528. The paper title to lot 40 was in the defendants, but

(1) (1925) 57 Ont. L.R. 60.
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the plaintiff, who owned lot 41, lying immediately to the
west of lot 40, claimed title to the strip in question by
virtue of The Limitations Act, R.S.0., 1914, c. 75, 5. 5.

The formal judgment of the Appellate Division declared
that the plaintiff was the owner in fee simple, as against the
defendants, of the strip in question, and vested the same
in the plaintiff, and ordered the defendants to remove so
much of a stone wall as they had erected thereon, and
enjoined them from interfering with or lessening the plain-
tiff’s lateral support, and ordered them to restore the same
so far as they had disturbed it, and also awarded damages,
to be ascertained by a reference.

The material facts of the case are sufficiently stated in
the judgments now reported. The appeal was dismissed
with costs, Duff and Newcombe JJ. dissenting.

W.N. Tilley K.C. and G. T. Walsh for the appellants.
J. Jennings K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the majority of the court (Anglin
C.J.C. and Mignault and Rinfret JJ.) was delivered by

RinrreET J—The issue involved is the title to a strip of
land on lot 40 on the north side of Roxborough street east,
in the city of Toronto.

In 1909, Arthur Bollard purchased lot 41 adjoining lot
40 on the west. He erected thereon a residence which was
completed and into which he and his family moved in Octo-
ber, 1911. Bollard having died, his widow sold and con-
veyed the property to the respondent. The deed is dated
the 30th September, 1919.

The appellants acquired lot 40 on the 15th May, 1923,

The lands comprised in lot 41 rise very rapidly from the
street line to the rear of the lot. In order to gain access
to the residence, the owner terraced the lands between the
street and the front of the house and erected two flights
of steps separated by a little plateau, from which at the top
a pathway curved off to the house. This was at first a
wooden walk and later a flagstone walk. Alongside it was
planted a hedge beginning about 50 feet north of the street
line and extending in a curved line to a point about 18 feet
south of the northerly boundary of the lots.
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Such was the layout, in 1923, when the appellants pur-
chased. The hedge was then more than three feet high,
about a foot and a half wide, and fairly thick. There was
nothing to distinguish from the residential property of the
respondent the strip of land lying immediately next to the
hedge and which is now in dispute. It was occupied, used
and enjoyed as one property. “It was terraced right out:
a flower bed along the verandah and then terraces and the
walk laid along the lower terrace beside the hedge.” There
was no “ sign of any boundary or break between the house
and the hedge.” The adjoining lot 40 was vacant, rough
and uncultivated. Mr. Speight, an Ontario Land Sur-
veyor, described it as being “ in a state of nature.” Look-
ing upon the property one would naturally infer that the
strip in question and the hedge belonged to lot 41. The
dividing line between this and lot 40 does not run at right
angles to Roxborough street. The ground was very un-
even and contained no indication of the true boundary.
These additional features helped to induce the belief un-
doubtedly entertained by respondent Babbitt and appar-
ently by his predecessor, that the “ hedge was well within
the line.”

The first act of the appellants, after their purchase of lot
40, was to have a survey made. Then only was it dis-
covered that the respondent’s occupation encroached beyond
the true line. To this the attention of the respondent was
drawn and he was given the opportunity of purchasing the
land, but he insisted that he owned it by right of posses-
sion. The appellants then informed him by letter,dated 28th
November, 1923, that “ unless the encroaching hedge (was)
removed,” they intended “to cut it down.” This threat
was later carried out and the appellants excavated part of
the lands claimed by ithe respondent, destroyed about 60
feet of the hedge and tore up the flagstone walk through-
out the whole distance from where it crossed the line.

Thereupon the respondent brought this action claiming
a declaration that he was “the owner of the lands and
premises within and to the west of the hedge,” an injunc-
tion restraining the appellants from entering upon and
excavating these lands, a mandatory order directing them to
restore them to their previous condition, and damages.
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Whether these remedies should have been granted—as
they were by the Appellate Division—must be determined:
from the character and length of the occupation by the re-
spondent and his predecessor in title. It is not disputed
that the possession was continuous and without any inter-
ruption between Bollard, the first owner, and Babbitt, the
present respondent.

Now if the character of the occupation be first examined,
it will be found that a general use was shown of the dis-
puted strip of land by the owners of lot 41. The following
is the description given by the witnesses:

Thomas B. Speight

Q. Then inside the flag stones and between it and the true boundary
line what was there?—A. Between the flags, there was—it was sodded.

Q. Trimmed and cared for?—A. Oh, yes. .

Q. Was that evident that had been part of the land pertinent to
house?—A. Every indication it had been, yes.

Mr. WuITE: Now, now.

The Wrrness: Indication it had been used, I suppose.

Mr. JenNINGgs: Q. Did anything divide that sod to the east of the
true boundary line and between it and the flag stones walk from the rest
of the land belonging. to house 256?—A. How do you mean?

Q. Was there anything at all to separate the land within and to the
west of the true boundary line from the land to the east of the true
boundary line up to the flags?—A. No, nothing.

Q. All one lawn?—A. Yes.

The Courr: Q. That is, the lawn between the verandah and the ﬁag
stones was continued?—A. Yes, oh yes.

* * *

It was good hedge, there is no doubt about that.
Q. Did it very clearly limit the lawn?—A. Yes.

Mrs. Mary Bollard

Q. Well then, between your verandah and the flag stone walk what
did you have?—A. Flowers, wide bed of flowers.

Q. And then?—A. Sidewalk and then the hedge.

Q. Now, flowers and the sidewalk; did the flower bed come right up
to the sidewalk or——A. Well, alongside the verandah.

Q. And then between the flower bed and the walk was there—A.
This was long since.

Q. Well then, what about the space between the verandah and the
walk, what did you do with it?—A. What did we do with it?

Q. Yes?—A. I do not quite understand.

Q. Did you leave it alone or did you trim it?—A. Hedge was always
trimmed.

Q. And the ground between the walk and the verandah and the
hedge?—A. We attended to our own, we did not go outside the hedge.

Q. But between the verandah and the hedge, did you have it at-
tended to?—A. Yes.
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Q. Clipped and cut and cultivated with flowers?—A. Yes. 1927
eyt

. * * * CLARKE
Q. If you think this is wrong, stop me—do not answer this for a v.

moment. Am I right in saying that the land within the hedge was used BABBITT.
and cultivated and enjoyed by you with the rest of your property?—A. Rinfret J
Inside of the hedge? -

Q. Yes?—A. Yes, sir.

Mrs. McPherson, daughter of first owner:

Q. What was the means of access to 256 in the fall of 1911?—A. Steps
going up the front, then little plateau, and then up again.

Q. And from the top of these steps?—A. Then the sidewalk.

Q. Wooden walk?—A. Yes, wooden walk.

Q. Where was it?—A. It was next to the—well, there was terrace
between that and the verandah and then flower bed afterwards and then
of course verandah.

Q. Where was that wooden walk with regard to the location of the
flag stone walk that was there last year?—A. Last year?

Q. I mean the flag stone walk that was subsequently put down?—A.
Well, it was next to the hedge.

Q. But was there any difference between the location of the flag stone
walk and the original wooden walk?—A. No, not that I know of.

* * *

Q. Then between the walk, first wooden and then flag stone, and the
verandah in the rear of the house, what was there?—A. There was grass
there.

Q. There was no boundary, no indication between the walk and the
verandah, from the house?—A. Just where do you mean?

Q. Here is your walk as shown on exhibit two?—A. Yes.

Q. And here is verandah, and the back part of your house?—A. Yes.

Q. Was there any obstacle or obstruction or boundary between?—A.
No, not at all.

The Covurt: Supposing we get at it shorter.

Q. Was there ever at any time anything indicating the boundary
between 40 and 41?—A. Just the hedge.

Q. Here, this red line shows what is really on the survey,.true line
between the two lots; was there ever anything in the way of fence or
anything to show that true line there?—A. Just hedge.

Q. Nothing but the hedge?—A. No.

Mr. JenNinGgs: Q. Nothing in the shape of a fence?—A. No, nothing
at all,

Richard C. Babbitt

Q. Then what was the nature of the land within and to the west of
this hedge?—A. It was terraced right out, flower bed along the verandah
and then terraces and the walk laid along the lower terrace beside the
hedge.

Q. Any sign of any boundary or break between the house and the
hedge?—A. None whatever.

*  * *

Q. Was there any cultivation of the land west of the hedge?—A.
There is lawn kept cut and flower beds.

Q. And?—A. Terraces kept trimmed.
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The above acts must be considered in addition to the con-
struction and maintenance of the flagstone walk and the
planting of the hedge. Such a user cannot be treated as
the exercise of a mere right of way. It constitutes an as-
sertion of ownership. Laying flagstones across another’s
land may sometimes be regarded as done for the mere pur-
pose of a passageway; but, in this instance, when we con-
sider the continuity of the lawn and the general use made
of the strip within the hedge, when we come to see that
there was in fact nothing to distinguish the enjoyment of
that strip of land from that of the balance of the residential
property, we are constrained to the conclusion that any
occupation the respondent and his predecessor in title had
of part of lot 40 was not “ for the sole purpose of going to
and coming from the dwelling house on lot 41,” which was
the view held by the learned trial judge.

In a very similar case (Marshall v. Taylor (1) ), Lord
Halsbury, after referring to the setting out of rose beds
and the laying down of a cinder walk and of cobble stones,
and treating the disputed lands as part of the adjoining
garden, stated:

It seems to me about as strong an aggregate of acts of ownership as you
can well imagine for the purpose of excluding possession of anybody else.

In holding a contrary view, the learned trial judge
appeared to have been rather impressed by the fact that,
at the rear of the property, the hedge did not curve back
so that an opening was left between it and the dividing line
of the lots; and he referred to Griffith v. Brown (2), where,
he said,
the judgment in appeal proceeds largely on the ground that the plaintiffs
did not have exclusive possession of the way, that there, as here, there
was no gate or bar to prevent the defendant or any one else, from travel-
ling over it. In short, it was not an exclusive possession.

Possession may be none the less sufficient to warrant the
application of The Limitations Act (R.S.0., 1914, c. 75, s.
5) even although there is no real enclosure (Seddon v.
Smith (3) ). The hedge, in this case, though not continued
to the boundary at the rear, has the strongest evidential
value as marking the extent or area of occupation and

(1) [1895]1 1 Ch. 641, at p. 646. (2) (1880) 5 Ont. A.R. 303.
(3) (1877) 36 L.T.R. 168, at p. 169.
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showing adverse possession. In fact, there was not on be-
half of the appellants the slightest attempt to prove that
they, at any time, had made use of the strip in question,
even by crawling through the hedge (Littledale v. Liver-
pool Coolege (1) ). The respondent and his predecessor
actually had a peaceful, exclusive and unquestioned enjoy-
ment. Although the hedge was a “ very marked feature of
the property,” wide, thick “ very clearly limiting the lawn ”
and there was no other indication of a boundary, Mrs. Bol-
lard says she never heard of any difficulty about it.

This is not therefore, as was thought by the learned
trial judge, a “ c¢laim. . . to any way or other easement ”
falling under section 35 of the Act, but a case for the appli-
cation of section 5 and the ten years’limitation. Whether the
respondent is otherwise within the section in respect of the
continuity of his possession and the statutory period of
occupation remains to be examined.

We must first ascertain the date when the hedge was
planted by Bollard, for the evidence shows that, from that
time on, the lay-out of the strip remained pretty much the
same throughout, or, at least, was not so different as to
change the mode of occupation and the nature of the use
made by the owner. Mrs. Bollard, when shown the sketch
(exhibit two) made by the surveyor Speight, on the 17th
December, 1923, said it. represented the property ‘ exactly
as it was since 1912.” The condition remained the same
as she described it during the time she and her husband

occupied it “from 1912 to 1919.” Mrs. McPherson said
" there was no “ time, to (her) knowledge, when that hedge
was not there in this same position.” Mr. Speight did not
show it on his plan made in 1917, but this is satisfactorily
explained by the fact that he was not then concerned with
Bollard’s property. He had received his instructions on
behalf of Mr. McPherson for the survey of the property
east of Bollard’s. He did not likewise show the flights of
steps, which everybody agrees were built before Bollard
moved into his house in 1911.

The critical question, however, is whether the respond-
ent has established ten years’ pedal possession. The answer

(1) [19001 1 Ch. 19, at p. 25.
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1927 is found in the evidence of Mrs. Bollard and her daughter,

Came  Mrs. McPherson. Mrs. Bollard is an elderly woman and
Banerr. her memory proved to be defective in some minor particu-
RinfoobJ. lars. However, the trial judge thought that she “ was giv-
—  ing her evidence to the best of her recollection,” and some
discrepancies upon unimportant matters are not sufficient

to discredit her entire testimony. Asked about the date

when the terracing was done and the hedge was started,

she answered: “ It was either one or the other, I could not

say for sure, it was either 1912 or 1913.”

The year when this work was done is undoubtedly very
material in this case. Evidence of that character is clearly
indecisive and would, if it did not go beyond that, leave the
question undetermined. But, while Mrs. Bollard hesitates
between 1912 and 1913, she is most positive in saying that
the terracing was done and the hedge was started “in the
year following (our) entering the house.”

Now the record establishes beyond the shadow of a
doubt that Mr. Bollard and his family moved into their
house in October, 1911. '

The effect of Mrs. Bollard’s evidence is that the hedge
and terracing were made in 1912. This is further strength-
ened by her recollection of an incident in connection with
the death of her grandchild, Mrs. McPherson’s daughter.
It is common ground that the death occurred in July, 1913,
and Mrs. Bollard recalls having picked some white flowers
from the hedge and put them on the coffin. She adds:
“That is what brings it to my memory.” She is quite
sure the hedge had then been planted for some time.

Later in her testimony, she is asked whether she looked
up any records about these dates or whether she had to
rely entirely on memory. In her reply, she refers again to
the same incident. Her answer is: “ On my memory and
what occurred that year.”

The learned trial judge discarded altogether the evidence
of Mrs. McPherson, which agrees on all material points
with that of Mrs. Bollard. His ground was that “ she has
been discussing the matter with her mother and relies on
her mother’s memory for dates.” That can only refer to
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two passages of Mrs. McPherson’s testimony, where she
says: )
Q. Did you look up any records that you might have?—A. No, not
at all.

Q. So that you just talked it over with your mother, I suppose?—A.
Yes. :

Q. And you agreed with her, or who was it put it at 1912, would it
be you or your mother?—A. I think we both put it because we both
knew.

Q. Well, you both knew; you agreed that was the date?—A. Abso~
lutely.

* * *

Q. You did not speak about that at all with your mother, it was just
question of the putting out of the hedge and this walk up here that
you and your mother discussed?—A. Yes, we discussed that.

Q. And you cannot tell us who it was, which one of you first fixed
date of 1912? Your mother says 1912 or 1913, she won’t be sure which
one it was?—A. Well, I am just going by what I told you, the circum-
stances.- '

Q. You are quite clear—I do not want to be unfair—you are quite
clear that flowers, white flowers were picked from that hedge?—A. No,
I am not clear about that, my mother believed that she picked them but
I know hedge was there.

Q. Your mother told you?—A. I know hedge was there.

Like the Appellate Division, we are unable to find in the
above passages and upon the ground put forward by the
learned trial judge any justification for disregarding the
evidence of Mrs. McPherson. The trial judge’s estimate of
the witnesses must of necessity lose much of its weight
when, as here, he gives for such estimate reasons which,
upon examination, are found unconvincing and unsatis-
factory. Mrs. McPherson makes it distinctly clear that she
speaks from her own recollection. Earlier in her deposi-
tion she had so stated:

Q. Then when was the hedge set out?—A. I should say 1912.

Q. Do you remember your father doing the terracing?—A. Yes.

Q. What year was that with relation to the year you went into the
house?—A. Well, I should say year after.

Q. And were the hedge and the terracing done in different years or
the same year?—A. I should say same year, one may have been started
in the spring and the other in the fall, I do not know about that, but 1
should say it was 1912.

* * *

Q. And would you say—why did you say it was 19127—A. Well, I
could say it was 1912 because my little girl died in 1913 and it was put
in before that.

Q. You have distinet recollection of that, have you?—A. Yes.
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Unexpected corroboration of Mrs. Bollard and of Mrs.
McPherson comes from the appellant’s expert witness
Brown. The grandmother testified that she plucked from
the hedge white strays of spiraea to lay them on the coffin
of the little girl. Brown stated that normally spiraea
finished blooming by the end of June, but that the year 1913
was abnormally backward and it was possible for Mrs. Bol-
lard to have picked those flowers in July, 1913.

If, therefore, as the learned trial judge rightly remarked,
the respondent’s possessory title “ rests entirely on the evi-
dence of Mrs. Bollard and her daughter, Mrs. McPherson,”
it follows that actual occupation by the respondent and his
predecessor in title was conclusively established for more
than ten years, for we do not find in the record any reason
why their evidence should not be given its full weight on
this point. The opinion of Brown, the expert nursery man,
as to the age of the hedge, cannot overcome the evidential
value of the testimony of eye-witnesses, otherwise unim-
peachable, and who deposed to actual facts, as to which
they were in no wise contradicted.

We are for these reasons, in accord with the Appellate
Division. We find in the circumstances of this case the
conditions which call for the application of s. 5 of The
Limitations Act. Throughout the statutory period, the
strip of land in dispute was continuously occupied by Bol-
lard and his successor, the respondent, and, during that
period, there was a discontinuance of possession by the
predecessors in title of the appellants. Before the appel-
lants purchased lot 40, the possession of the respondent,
open and visible, unequivocal and exclusive, had already
ripened into a possessory title.

The judgment appealed from should be confirmed with
costs.

The judgment of Duff and Newcombe JJ. (dissenting),
was delivered by

NewcoMmBE J.—The action was begun on 7th December,
1923, claiming a declaration that the plaintiff (respondent)
was the owner of the land in question, also an injunction
and damages. The land consists of the narrow edge or
strip, lying between the east line of the plaintiff’s lot, no. 41
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on Roxborough Street East, Toronto, and that part of a
hedge planted by Mr. Bollard, the plaintiff’s predecessor in
title, which is on no. 40, the adjoining lot to the eastward;
the plaintiff claiming merely what he describes as a
squatter’s title.

Mr. Bollard built his house on lot 41 in 1910 and 1911.
At that time the owners of lot 40 did not use it, either by
themselves or by any person claiming under them. The
possession in law, of course, was theirs, but it was not
active or visible possession, and there is no evidence that the
owners were in the neighbourhood. The land was in a rough
condition; it is said to have been in a state of nature; there
were surveyors’ marks from which the lines could be
traced, but there were and are no fences on either lot, ex-
cept to the eastward of lot 40. The paper title, both of
Bollard and the plaintiff, is confined to lot 41 as described
in the survey, and does not include the land in dispute, or
anything beyond the boundaries of the lot. When Mr.
Bollard built, he had to provide access to his house from
Roxborough Street on the south, that being the only high-
way contiguous to the property. The ground is steep, and,
going northward from Roxborough Street, the grade in-
creases. The house was located on the northeastern part
of the lot, not far from the eastern line, and there were two
entrances, one, the front, on the easterly, and the other, the
rear, on the northerly, side of the house, from which the
ground slopes gradually to the southeast. In constructing
the approach, Mr. Bollard surmounted the grades at the
foot by a flight of steps laid on the ground and leading up
from the street, and, to avoid the steeper acclivity, which
would otherwise have been encountered, he directed the
path from the head of the steps at an abrupt angle to the
northeast, crossing the line of lot 41, and, continuing north-
erly on lot 41, for a distance somewhat in excess of the
length of the house, in a curve diverging slightly to the
eastward as it advanced northward, whence, opposite the
entrances to the house, he constructed two flights of steps,
leading to the westward, whereby to reach the entrances,
and he laid some boards on the path to provide better foot-
ing, which, after the plaintiff acquired the property he re-
placed by flags. The whole purpose and appearance of the

36003—23 |
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structure was that of a footway of access and egress from
and to the street. Later, at a time which is not definitely
fixed by the proof, Mr. Bollard set out a hedge, of the -
variety known as bridal wreath, close to the path on its
lower side, extending from a point on lot 41, below where
the path intersected the line of the lot, northward, to the
end of the path, somewhat beyond the steps leading to
the rear entrance. The practical purpose of this hedge was
protection to the path which ran along the face of a de-
clivity; it served as a sort of baluster, and perhaps to stiffen
and uphold the soil. It was moreover ornamental. The
south end of the path was on the plaintiff’s lot, the north
on the defendants’. It did not terminate at any boundary,
and made no enclosure. The hedge is described by the
plaintiff’s surveyor as “ thick shrubbery—quite thick; I
should say it would be about two or three feet high, * * *
about a foot and a half wide at the top when it was clipped
off.”

As to the time when the hedge was planted, there is the
evidence of Mrs. Bollard, who lived in the house from
October, 1911, to 1917, when her husband died, and con-
tinued to live there until 1919, when she sold to the plain-
tiff, and of her daughter, Mrs. McPherson, who lived in the
house, with her mother, for the first four or five months,
or until January or February, 1912, when she moved into
her own house, which had been built on the same lot to the
westward, and where she resided until 1919. These two
ladies were called to prove the possession. Mrs. Bollard
had looked for documents or records by which to refresh
her memory, but could find none, and she says that she did
not know what her husband or Mr. McPherson, her son-in-
law, did. Mrs. McPherson says that she did not look for
any records, but talked the matter over with her mother.
In the conclusion, Mrs. Bollard thinks the hedge was
planted in 1912 or 1913. Mrs. McPherson thinks it was
planted in 1912. The reason influencing this conclusion,
as given by Mrs. Bollard, is that the shrubs of the hedge
bore a small white flower; that a child of Mrs. McPherson
died in July, 1913, and that she, Mrs. Bollard, picked some
white flowers and put them on the coffin. Therefore she
concludes that the hedge was there before July, 1913. Mrs.
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McPherson also fixes the date by reference to the death of 1927
her child, but when asked, in cross-examination, if she c;;n
were quite clear that the flowers were picked from the g%
hedge she answered “ No, I am not quite clear about that. = —
My mother believed that she picked them, but I know the Ne“.’imbel
hedge was there.” There is evidence that terracing

was done somewhere between the wooden walk and the
verandah, and that there were flowers growing by the veran-

dah. At the time of the trial the boards on the path had been
replaced by the flags. Mrs. Bollard thinks these were put

down two or three years after the laying of the boards.

She says that “ the wooden sidewalk went sagging and my
husband thought he would rather have the other (mean-

ing the flagstones), and he put it here in this place exactly

where the wooden sidewalk had been.” Mrs. McPherson,

in her direct examination, referring to the flagstone walk,

says that it was in the same location as the wooden walk;

that between the walk, first wooden and then flagstone, and

the verandah, there was grass, and that there was nothing

to indicate the boundary between lots 40 and 41, except the

hedge. In her cross-examination she says she thinks the

boards were there when her mother sold to the plaintiff in

1919, but does not know anything about that. In fact, as

already told, the boards were taken up, and the flags put

in their place, by the plaintiff, after he bought the place,

in 1919.

As illustrating the manner in which the evidence of these
ladies was elicited at the trial, the following conversation
took place on the re-examination of Mrs. Bollard; Mr. Jen-
nings for the plaintiff, Mr. White for the defendants:

Mr. JENNinGs: Q. Then following the entry in the house on Octo-
ber, 1911, when was it your husband began to terrace up the property?—
A. In 1912, T think, they started. )

Q. Then was the hedge set out in the year of the terracing?—A. Yes,
I think they did the whole work, as far as I can remember, I think the
terrace started first.

Q. And then in what year was the hedge, with reference to the ter-
racing of the property?—A. Well, 1912 or 1913, I can not just exactly
say.

Q. Terracing was done in the year following your entering the house?
—A. Yes, was started.

Q. And T think you said—I want you to be quite accurate—the hedge
was put out in the same year?—A. Yes.
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Mr. WHiTE: My learned friend should be fair with the witness, the
witness said she could not say, 1912 or 1913, and the witness is perfectly
fair and my learned friend is trying to pin her down to 1912.

The Court: She said before it was in ’13.

Mr. JEnNINGS: No, Your Honour, she said it was same year in which

NewcombelJ the terracing was done, year following their occupation of the house.

Perhaps Your Honour would ask her?

The Courr: Oh, no.

Mr. WHITE: I just want to ask a question about the terracing. Q.
You will not say, will you, whether the terracing was done in 1912 or
19137—A. It was either one or the other, I could not say for sure, it
was either ’12 or ’13.

On the other hand the plaintiff’s surveyor, who made a
survey and plan of the locality for the purposes of the
action, and had previously, in 1917, also made a survey
and plan of lot 41 for Mrs. Bollard’s son-in-law, McPher-
son, did not show the hedge on the latter plan, although
he says he thinks it likely that he would have shown it if
it were there. His impression is that the hedge was not
there. It is observable however, as affecting the inference
to be drawn from this circumstance, that the plan of 1917
did not show the steps or the path, although these evi-
dently were there when that survey was made. Mr. Brown,
a landscape gardener, connected with the nursery business,
in which he had had twenty-three years experience, exam-
ined the hedge in June, 1924, and produced a sample of it
at the trial; he says that, having regard to the nature of
the soil, the number of clippings and the condition and size
of the wood, he considered the hedge to be about six years
of age, if, according to the usual practice, it had been
planted at three years growth. The learned County Judge
was much impressed by the evidence of this witness, whom
he found both capable and honest.

But assuming the hedge to have been planted in 1912 or
1913, what follows? The hedge is not, and was not, in-
tended to be definitive of any line, or to mark the limit of
any occupation. It runs diagonally across the surveyor’s
line, part of it is on the plaintiff’s land, though the greater
part of it is on the defendants’ land. It includes nothing
and it excludes nothing. It is, as I see it, of even less value
to prove possession of a part of the defendants’ land than
a single tree would have been, if planted there by the plain-
tiff and allowed to grow for ten years, because the hedge
had an obvious purpose explaining its existence and use.
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It was made to buttress the walk along the side hill, and 1927
that was the useful purpose for which it was maintained. It Crasxs
is, in the circumstances attendant upon its situation and use, g,
meaningless as evidence of exclusive possession of the soil. .. —
To the west of the footpath there was still a narrow New.‘f.nbe'l'

margin belonging to lot 40. The evidence is to the effect

that there was grass growing there, and that Mr. Bollard

used to trim it and also the hedge, but the time is not fixed.

The surface must have been in a somewhat rough con-

dition during 1912 and 1913 when, according to the case,

the terracing and improvements were going on. The evi-

dence is not clear or definite, and it would, I think, be un-

safe to regard it as initiating a period of prescription for

the title during either of those years. What Lord Lindley

said in Littledale v. Liverpool College (1), may fairly be

repeated with respect to the owners of lot 40.

They could not be dispossessed unless the plaintiffs obtained possession
themselves; and possession by the plaintiffs involved an animus possidend:
—i.e., occupation with the intention of excluding the owner as well as
other people.

There is nothing which points to an intent to exclude.

The learned County Judge, who delivered a carefully
considered judgment, found that the time of the planting
of the hedge had not been established to his satisfaction;
that Mrs. Bollard’s memory was defective, and that Mrs.
McPherson, who had been discussing the matter with her
mother, had relied upon the latter for her dates; that the
hedge was not planted as a boundary line, but, in his view,
for ornamental purposes only, and that Mr. Bollard must
have known that he was a trespasser; that the use of the
footpath was evidence only of prescription for a right of
way, and that the user had not been sufficiently prolonged
to establish it. He accordingly dismissed the action.

The Appellate Division reversed this judgment upon a
review of the evidence, and held that the plaintiff had
obtained title to the land lying to the west of the centre of
the hedge by possession; relying upon the evidence of Mrs.
Bollard and Mrs. McPherson with regard to the picking of
the flowers as conclusively establishing the existence of
the hedge prior to that date. But, with all due respect, I
am unable to accept this view. It would be natural, and

(1) [1900]1 1 Ch. 19, at p. 23.
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I do not doubt, that Mrs. Bollard picked some white flowers
for her granddaughter’s funeral, but that she picked these
from the hedge is nowhere stated in the evidence, although
perhaps she thought she did, and not improbably she would
have said so if she had been asked; but there were flowers
growing on the premises nearer to the house, and I do not
think that Mrs. Bollard’s memory as to the plucking of the
flowers ought to be accepted as proving the existence of
the hedge at that time. It is as little conclusive as the rest
of her evidence. The old lady’s recollection was admittedly
at fault, and the trial judge gained the impression that her
daughter, having less opportunity to know or to observe,
was influenced by what her mother told her. It cannot be
denied that the learned judge’s estimate of the witnesses
forms a substantial part of his reasons for judgment, and,
if so, the observations of Lord Sumner in the House of
Lords in the recent case of SS. Hontestroom v. SS. Sagapor-
ack and SS. Durham Castle (1), become very apposite to
the case. His Lordship, in addressing the House, said:
What then is the real effect on the hearing in a court of appeal of

the fact that the trial judge saw and heard the witnesses? I think it has
been somewhat lost sight of. Of course, there is jurisdiction to retry the
case on the shorthand note, including in such retrial the appreciation of
the relative values of the witnesses, for the appeal is made a rehearing by
rules which have the force of statute; Order LXVIII, r. 1. It is not,
however, a mere matter of discretion to remember and take account of’
this fact; it is a matter of justice and of judicial obligation. None the
less, not to have seen the witnesses puts appellate judges in a permanent
position of disadvantage as against the trial judge, and, unless it can be
shown that he has failed to use or has palpably misused his advantage,
the higher court ought not to take the responsibility of reversing
conclusions so arrived at, merely on the result of their own comparisons
and criticisms of the witnesses and of their own view of the probabilities
of the case. The course of the trial and the whole substance of the judg-
ment must be looked at, and the matter does not depend on the question
whether a witness has been cross-examined to credit or has been pro-
nounced by the judge in terms to be unworthy of it. If his estimate of
the man forms any substantial part of his reasons for his judgment the
trial judge’s conclusions of fact should, as I understand the decisions, be
let alone.

In the result, I do not think a case has been made out to
justify the setting aside of the findings.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitor for the appellants: George T. Walsh.
Solicitors for the respondent: Jennings & Clute.

(1) (1926) 136 L.T. 33, at pp. 37 et seq.; [1927]1 A.C. 37.
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THE LONDON GUARANTEE AND ] EZ‘?
ACCIDENT' COMPANY, LIMITED | APPELLANT; -#Oct.14.
(DEFENDANT) ............ 1027

AND *Feb. 1.

THE CITY OF HALIFAX (PLAINTIFF)...RESPONDENT.

ON APPEAL. (PER SALTUM) FROM THE SUPREME COURT OF
NOVA SCOTIA

Guarantee—Bond against embezzlement or theft by city employee—Bond
limited to cover only embezzlement or theft committed within 12
months prior to notice of discovery—Employee’s falsification of books
to cover previous defalcations—Time of embezzlement or theft—Onus
of proof—Particulars of claim—Amendment—Terms of bond—REenewal
—Offence committed before, but discovered after, renewal—Complaint
as to city’s answers to questions in regard to proposed guarantce—
Employee’s failure to fulfil, and city’s neglect to enforce, statutory
requirements—Alleged failure by city to notify discovery of judgment
against employee.

Defendant, by bond dated 20th June, 1907, agreed to make good to plain-
tiff city, to the extent of $10,000, pecuniary loss sustained through
embezzlement or theft of money by its tax collector in connection
with his duties. The bond was renewed yearly, the last renewal
being for the year beginning 1st Octiober, 1922. The collector received
payment of taxes in currency or cheques. From time to time, usually
daily, he handed to a clerk or placed in the cash books for entry such
of the receipted tax bills as he desired to account for at that time.
These were in due course entered in the cash books. The total amount
of the bills so entered was made up, and the collector then gave the
clerk a corresponding amount in cheques and currency, for which
the clerk made out a deposit skip, which, with the cheques and cur-
rency, wag handed to the city treasurer whose duty it was to make
the bank’ deposits. From the collector’s cash books the payments
thus recorded were credited in the ledger accounts of the various tax-
payers in payment of whose accounts they had been attributed. On
19th September, 1922, R., & taxpayer, paid two cheques which were
deposited by or on behalf of the collector with the treasurer on 21st
and 28th September. On 26th January, 1923, B., a taxpayer, paid a
cheque which was deposited with the treasurer on 30th January. Ex-
cept as to a portion of B.s cheque, the collector did not give credit
in his books to R. and B. for these payments, but appropriated the
cheques in payment of other taxes which had already been paid, and
for which he had issued receipted bills; but the taxpayers’ money
which the collector received in payment of these other taxes was not
credited to ‘their accounts in his cash books; dinstead, R.’s cheque,
and B.’s cheque in part, were deposited so that it was made to appear
that taxes other than those of R. and B. had been paid by their
cheques, the collector suppressing the evidence that their taxes had

*PreseNT :—Anglin C.J.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rin-
fret JJ.
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1027 been paid. The city claimed against defendant (up to the amount
- guaranteed) for misappropriations by the collector to the amount of
Ggﬁﬁ:ﬁfm the cheques of R. and B. not properly credited. Notice had been
& ACCIDENT given defendant of the embezzlements or thefts, on 2nd June, 1923.
Co. Lirp. The bond provided that no more than one claim, and that only in
p ng oF respect of acts of embezzlement or theft committed within 12 months

FALIFAX prior to notice to defendant of discovery thereof should be made.

— Held, as to the contention that there was no evidence of embezzlement
or theft within said twelve months period, that it should be found or
inferred that there was embezzlement or theft of the sums misappro-
priated on the dates when the cheques of R. and B. were by the
collector’s direction used and deposited with the treasurer to make
up the credits for which they were not intended; that, in the absence
of proof to the contrary, it should be found that the city then sus-
tained pecuniary loss to the amount so misappropriated, by reason of
embezzlement or theft by the collector in connection with his duties;
there was prima facie, if not conclusive, proof of misappropriation at
the time of the false accounting; if defendant relied upon an earlier
date for the offence than that prima facie proved, it should have
adduced evidence of it.

It was the appropriation of the cheques of R. and B. to the payment of
the accounts which the collector knew had been otherwise satisfied by
money in his hands, that constituted the commission of the erime, and
its proof. Rezx v. Hodgson (3 C. & P. 422 at p. 424) and other cases,
referred to.

Held further, as to the contention that the R. and B. cheques, having been
actually delivered to the treasurer and deposited in the city’s bank
account, thus reaching their intended and proper destination, were not
misappropriated, and that, therefore, any charges of default or loss
alleged by the particulars of the statement of claim failed, that,
although the particulars were lacking in some allegations necessary
fully to explain the nature of the case, yet in view of a previous
explanatory letter by the city’s solicitor to defendant, and the evi-
dence and the course of the trial, the contention should not prevail;
an amendment, if necessary, should be allowed.

Held further, that, in view of the terms of the bond, the provision to
indemnify as to embezzlement or theft “ committed during the con-
tinuance of this agreement, and discovered during the continuance
of this agreement,” covered embezzlement or theft committed before,
but discovered after, the renewal of the bond on 1st October, 1922.

Held further, as to complaint respecting certain answers by the city to
questions submitted with regard to the proposed guaranty, which
answers, along with others, were to be taken as “the basis of the
contract,” that, taking into consideration that, although the questions
were not fully answered, the answers were accepted by defendant,
and taking into consideration all the questions and answers made,
including some made later, in 1918, relative to a renewal of the bond,
and under all the circumstances and evidence, the answers complained
of, when given a reasonable interpretation, could not be relied on to
prevent recovery under the bond.

Held further, as to defendant’s contention that it was discharged because
the city had dispensed with certain duties of office with which the
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collector was charged by statute, that the contention failed for lack
of proof; that, although there was great neglect in enforcing the
statutory requirement of a monthly return, the evidence did not
satisfy the condition to the discharge of a surety affirmed in Black
v. Ottoman Bank (6 L.T.N.S. 763) that there must be some positive
act done by the employer to the surety’s prejudice, or such degree
of negligence as to imply connivance and amount to fraud; more-
over, on the evidence, the statutory requirements did not influence
the making of the agreement; and under it their performance was
neither represented nor expressly or impliedly undertaken by the
city; there was no evidence of fraudulent concealment, or of sup-
pression of any fact which the city was bound to communicate. Davis
v. London and Provincial Marine & Ins. Co. (8 Ch. D. 469) referred
to.

Held further, as to a clause in the bond avoiding it if the city should fail
to notify defendant “ of the discovery of any writ of attachment,
execution issued, or judgment obtained against the salary or property
of the employee” as soon as it became known to the city, that
the judgment in question did not appear to have been one “ obtained
against the salary or property of the employee ”, moreover doubt was
expressed that the city could be held to have discovered a judgment
merely because the city auditor in the course of business heard of it.

Held, generally, as to the effect of the city’s conduct on defendant’s
liability, the principle affirmed in MacTaggart v. Watson (3 ClL & F.
525 at pp. 542, 543) should be applied.

Judgment of Chisholm J., of the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia, in' favour
of the city, affirmed.

Anglin C.J.C. dissented, on the ground that, certainly no moneys received
from the R. and B. cheques mentioned in the city’s particulars of
claim were embezzled or stolen or lost to the city; and even on
amendment of the particulars to accord with the statements in the
city solicitor’'s previous letter to defendant, the claim so amended
being regarded as based upon the embezzlements or thefts which the
false entries in the books as to the proceeds of said cheques were
designed to cover up, yet the actual embezzlements or thefts should
not be taken prima facie to have occurred when said falsification of
the books took place, nor did the proof of such falsification cast
the burden on defendant to show that the actual embezzlements or
thefts occurred at earlier dates; the «city was required to establish
loss within the terms of the guarantee; and without evidence war-
ranting a finding that the moneys were actually embezzled or stolen
within the 12 months period prior to notice of discovery, according
to the limitation in the bond, the ecity ccould not recover.

APPEAL, per saltum, from the judgment of Chisholm
J., of the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia, holding the plain-
tiff city entitled to recover against the defendant under a
bond or agreement to indemnify the city against pecuniary
loss (to the extent of $10,000), sustained by reason of
embezzlement or theft of money on the part of a collector

167
1927

Lonbon
GUARANTER
& AcCCIDENT

Co. Lto.

v.
CrrY OF
Havrax,



168
1927

Ny
Loxnpon
GUARANTEE
& AcCieNT
Co. Lp.

v
C1tY OF
Havrax.

SUPREME COURT OF CANADA [1927]

of taxes employed by the city. The material facts of the
case and questions dealt with are sufficiently stated in the
judgments now reported, and are indicated in the above
head-note. The appeal was dismissed with costs, Anglin
C.J.C. dissenting.

W. N. Tilley K.C. for the appellant.
F. H. Bell K.C. for the respondent.

The judgment of the majority of the court (Duff,
Mignault, Newcombe and Rinfret JJ.) was delivered by

NewcoMBE J—The London Guarantee & Accident Com-
pany, Limited, agreed in writing with the city of Halifax
to make good and reimburse to the city, to the extent of
$10,000, such pecuniary loss, if any, as might be sustained
by the city by reason of embezzlement or theft of money
by the collector of taxes in connection with his duties.
Losses, due to embezzlement or theft on the part of the
collector, were alleged by the city, in excess of the amount
for which the company had become surety; the liability
was denied, and the city recovered judgment at the trial,
in the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia, against the company,
in the sum of $10,000. The company. now appeals, per
saltum, to this court.

The agreement, or bond, as it is called, upon which the
action is brought, is dated 20th June, 1907, and is described
as replacing bond no. 10855. It recites that Robert Theak-
ston has been appointed collector of taxes in the service
of the city, and has applied to the company “ for a grant
by them of this agreement.” Two other recitals follow,
namely:

And whereas the employer has delivered to the company certain state-
ments and a declaration, setting forth, among other things, the duties,
responsibilities and remuneration of the employee, the moneys to be
entrusted to him, and the safeguards and checks kept and to be kept
upon his accounts, and has consented that such declaration and each and
every other of the statements therein referred to or contained, so far as

the same are material to the contract, shall form the basis of the con-
tract hereinafter expressed to be made.

And whereas the employer warrants the statements and declaration
aforesaid, so far as the same are material to this contract, to be true, and
agrees that the method of conducting the business, so far as the said state-
ments and declaration are concerned, shall be in accordance therewith
during the currency of this agreement (except as to such changes therein
as may be agreed to by the company as hereinafter provided).
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Then it is stipulated as follows:

It is hereby agreed and declared that from the date hereof, up to
the first day of October, 1907, at 12 o’clock noon, and during any year
thereafter, in respect of which the company shall consent to renew this
agreement by accepting the aforesaid annual premium, and issuing a
renewal receipt as hereinafter provided subject to the provisions of the
memorandum and articles of association of the said company, and to
the conditions and provisoes herein contained (which shall be conditions
precedent to the right on the part of the employer to recover under this
agreement), the company shall, at the expiration of three months next
after proof satisfactory to the directors of the loss hereinafter mentioned
has been given to the company, make good and reimburse to the employer
to the extent of the sum of ten thousand dollars, and no further, such
pecuniary loss, if any, as may be sustained by the employer by reason
of embezzlement or theft of money on the part of the employee in con-
nection with the duties hereinbefore referred to, committed during the
continuance of this agreement, and discovered during the continuance of
this agreement, in the case of the death, dismissal, or retirements of the
employee discovered, within three months from the death, dismissal or
retirement. And no more than one claim, and that only in respect of
acts of embezzlement or theft of money committed within twelve months
prior to the receipt by the company of the notice of discovery thereof,
to be given as is hereinafter provided, shall be made under this agree-
ment, which upon the making of such claim, as to any further or other
liability hereunder, wholly cease and determine, and upon the payment
of such claim this agreement shall be delivered up to be cancelled; * * *
Provided that on discovery of any embezzlement or theft of money by
the employee as aforesaid, the employer shall immediately give notice in
writing thereof to the company, and that full particulars of any claim
made under this agreement shall be given in writing addressed to the
manager of the company, for the Dominion of Canada, Toronto, Ontario,
within three months after such discovery as aforesaid: * * * This
agreement is entered into on the condition that the business of the
employer shall continue to be conducted and the duties and (except that
it may be increased) the remuneration of the employee and the method
of examining and checking his accounts shall remain in every particular
in accordance with the statements and declaration hereinbefore referred
to, and if during the continuance of this agreement any -circumstance
shall occur or change be made, either temporarily or otherwise, which ghall
have the effect of making the actual facts materially differ from such
statements or any of them, without notice in writing thereof being given
to the company at its chief office for Canada and the consent or approval
in writing of the company being obtained, or if any suppression or mis-
statement of any material fact affecting the risk of the company be made
at the time of the payment of the first or of any subsequent premium, or
if the employer shall continue to entrust the employee with money or
valuable property after having discovered any act of dishomesty on his
part, or shall fail to notify the company of the discovery of amy such
act as hereinbefore provided (for which the company would be liable
under the terms of this agreement) or of any writ of attachment execu-
tion issued or judgment obtained against the salary or property of the
employee as soon as it shall have come to the knowledge of the employer,
or if the employer make any setflement with the employee for any loss
hereunder without the consent in writing of the company having first
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been obtained, then, and in every such case, this agreement shall be void
and of no effect from the beginning, and all premiums paid thereon shall
be forfeited to the company.

There is also this further provision:

Provided that if the company shall renew this agreement beyond the
time herein limited and shall issue a renewal receipt to that effect this
agreement shall be continued for the time therein specified and the
statements, warranties and conditions made as aforesaid shall, except as
materially varied by any statement, in writing, made at the time of such
renewal and endorsed thereon or hereon, be deemed to be continued and
of full force and effect as herein provided during the continuance of this
agreement so renewed as aforesaid and together with such variations
as aforesaid to form the basis of such renewal which shall be deemed
to have been made upon the faith of such statements, warranties and
conditions so varied as aforesaid.

The agreement was renewed from year to year, the last
renewal being for the year beginning 1st October, 1922.
The loss is alleged in the statement of claim, by the 6th
paragraph, as follows:

6. During the period covered by such renewals the plaintiff city has
suffered loss by the defalcation or theft of moneys by the said Robert
Theakston to an amount exceeding the sum of $10,000 the particulars
of which said loss are as follows:

(1) The sum of $7,398 which was paid to the said Robert Theakston,
as such collector, on the 19th day of September, 1922, by one James E.
Roy, a taxpayer of the plaintiff city, as and for taxes due by him to the
the plaintiff ecity and was misappropriated and stolen by the said Robert
Theakston.

(2) The sum of $4,303.54 which was paid to the said Robert Theak-
ston, as such collector, on the 26th day of January, 1923, by one Charles
Brister, a taxpayer of the plaintiff city, as and for taxes due by him to
the plaintiff eity and was misappropriated and stolen by the said Robert
Theakston.

The facts brought out under these particulars had been
stated substantially in a letter of 1st August, 1923, writ-
ten by the city solicitor to the company’s manager at To-
ronto. In this letter Mr. Bell states:

In compliance with the requirements of your bond to the city of
Halifax, No. 70275, guaranteeing Mr. Robert Theakston, collector of the
city, I beg herewith to submit a claim for an amount exceeding the sum
guaranteed, namely, ten thousand dollars ($10,000) misappropriated by
him during the twelve months preceding the date of the discovery of his
defalcations, namely, the 2nd of June, 1923. I may say that the total
amount of the defalcations already known to have been committed by
him is greatly in excess of this amount. We have now proof of about
seventy-five thousand dollars (875,000) taken by him and further amounts
are being discovered almost daily, as the work of auditing proceeds. -
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The amounts making up the sum above mentioned are: 1927

()

(1) Amount of payment made by J. E. Roy on Sept. 19, LoNDON
1922 for taxes for civic year 1921-22, paid by two GUARANTEE
cheques of that date, one for four thousand dollars &écaleNT
(84,000) and one for three thousand three hundred and O'v D.
ninety-eight dollars ($3,398) .....ciiviivvrievinnennnss $7.398 00 (Crry oF

(2) Amount of part payment made by Charles Brister on Havmax.
January 26, 1923, for taxes. Payment was made by a Newcombe J.

cheque of that date for six thousand one hundred
thirty-seven dollars and twenty-three cents ($6,137.23)
of which only one thousand eight hundred thirty-three
dollars and sixty-nine cents ($1,833.69) was credited
and paid to the treasurer, the balance being misappro-
03 7 7Y P $4,303 54

811,701 54

It will be noted that what is claimed is the amount indicated by the
cheques. This is to avoid confusion. The cheques themselves were passed
over by the collector to the treasurer. But, as only the amounts shown
by the collector’s cash book were ever paid to the treasurer and as with
the exception of the amount credited to Mr. Brister, as above stated,
neither the amounts covered by the cheques nor the persons by whom they
were paid were entered in the cash book, it is clear that the collector
misappropriated currency to the amount of the cheques, and substituted
for it the cheques, which he was compelled to do in order to pass them
through the bank, with the endorsation of the city upon them.

I enclose copies of these cheques referred to; Mr. Roy has also his
receipts in the usual form, Mr. Brister has no receipt and states that
the collector at the time of payment said none was necessary. Both Mr.
Brister and Mr. Roy are here and well known and are available at any
time to any representative of your company.

If you require anything further, we shall be pleased to furnish it if

in our power. )

The action was brought on 9th November, 1923, and was
tried before Chisholm J. The first objection to his find-
ings is that the plaintiff failed to prove any pecuniary loss
by reason of embezzlement or theft by the employee. It
appears that the city collector, according to the course of
business in his office, received payment of the taxes levied
by the city for various purposes; that these taxes were
paid, sometimes in money, sometimes by taxpayers’
cheques; that the collector himself had the custody of the
money and the cheques; that from time to time, usually
every day, the collector handed out to one of his clerks or
assistants, or placed in the cash books for entry, such of
the receipted tax bills-as he desired to account for at that
time; that these were in due course entered in the appro-

l
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1927 priate cash books; that the total amount of the bills so
Lonoon entered was made up, and that the collector then gave to
QuaranTeR the clerk a corresponding amount in cheques and money.
CO-QI;TD- Thereupon the clerk made out a deposit slip, specifying the
Ccrrr o amount of the cheques and the currency, and this deposit
HALFAX.  o]ip, with the cheques and currency, was handed over to
NewcombelJ. the city treasurer, whose duty it was to make the bank
" deposits. From the cash books in the collector’s office the
payments thus recorded were credited in the ledger
accounts of the various taxpayers in payment of whose
accounts they had been attributed. What happened with

regard to the cheques in question was this: James E. Roy,

a large taxpayer, paid his taxes by two cheques, the one

of $4,000, the other of $3,398, on 19th September, 1922,

and these cheques were deposited by or on behalf of the
collector with the treasurer on the 21st and 28th of that

month. Charles Brister, also a large taxpayer, paid his

taxes by his cheque for $6,137.23 on 26th January, 1923,

which was in like manner deposited with the treasurer,

four days later. These cheques were paid in discharge of

taxes of various kinds, and divers amounts; but Mr. Roy
received no credit; and while, as to an amount of $1,833.69,

part of Mr. Brister’s cheque, the payment was attributed

to the account of the latter in the collector’s books, he did

not receive credit for the balance of $4,303.54. Therefore,

except as to the $1,833.69, none of these cheques was used

by the collector for the purposes for which it had been paid

in. On the contrary, the collector appropriated the cheques

in payment of other taxes which had already been paid,

and for which he had regularly issued receipted bills; but

the taxpayers’ money which was received by the collector

in payment of these other taxes was not credited to their
accounts in any of the cash books. Instead, Roy’s cheque,

and that of Brister in part, were deposited so that it was

made to appear that taxes other than those of Roy and

Brister had been paid by their cheques, the collector sup-
pressing the evidence that their taxes had been paid. It is

urged against the findings that, while these facts constitute

proof of embezzlement, there is no evidence of the time

when the offence took place; but from the foregoing facts

I think it may be found or inferred that there was embezzle-
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ment, or, having regard to the provisions of the Criminal 1927
Code, theft, of the sums misappropriated by the collector, Lonvox
on the dates when these cheques were by his direction used g‘g‘é‘c‘g;f‘i
and deposited with the treasurer to make up the credits Co.Lao.
for which they were not intended; and I think it may be Crre oF
found moreover, in the absence of proof to the contrary, HAEEX-
that the city then sustained pecuniary loss, to the amount Newcombe].
so misappropriated, by reason of embezzlement or theft of =
money on the part of the collector in connection with his
duties. The failure to account for the money which the
taxpayers had paid in discharge of their tax bills; the
appropriation of the Roy and Brister cheques to the pay-
ment of these bills, and the omission to give credit to Roy
and Brister for the cheques -which they had paid, save as
to $1,833.69, part of Brister’s cheque, afford the necessary
evidence. It is said that the time of the defaleation is, by
the terms of the guaranty, material, and that the use of
the cheques does not fix the time. There is however no
evidence to fix the collector with criminal responsibility at
any time earlier than the dates of deposit of the cheques
with the treasurer; that was the act upon which the court
could find with certainty an intention to misappropriate.
It showed that the cheques paid in by Roy and Brister
were applied by the collector in payment of taxes which
had already been paid, the money which actually went to
pay those taxes not having been accounted for, and there-
fore a falsification of the accounts. There was thus, prima
facie, if not conclusive, proof of misappropriation at the
time of the false accounting. When, therefore, the defend-
ant company relies upon an earlier date for the offence than
that which is prima facie proved, I think it must adduce
evidence of it, but it has not done so.

There is a well known series of decisions with regard to
venue In prosecutions for embezzlement, which includes
such cases as Rex v. Taylor (1); Reg. v. Murdock (2),
and Reg. v. Rogers (3), where it is held that the act of
embezzlement is completed at the place where the repre-
sentation is made which makes out the offence. When an
agent collects money for his principal and fails promptly

(1) (1803) 3 B. & P. 596. (2) (1851) 2 Den. 298.
(3) (1877) 3 .Q.B.D. 28.

36003—3
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to account or remit, that fact does not establish the charge
against him. But his innocence is incompatible with a
false account, and, in this case, it was the appropriation of
Roy and Brister’s cheques to the payment of the accounts
which the collector knew had been otherwise satisfied by
money in his hands that constituted the commission of the
crime, and its proof. Rezx v. Hodgson (1).

Therefore I shall proceed upon the view that on 2lst
September, 1922, the collector misappropriated $4,000; on
28th September, 1922, $3,398; and on 30th January, 1923,
$4,303.54, and that the city had, when the action was
brought, sustained the loss of these several amounts.

It is said that, inasmuch as the cheques of Roy and Bris-
ter were actually delivered to the city treasurer, who de-
posited them to the credit of the city in its bank account,
these cheques, having reached their intended and proper
destination, were not misappropriated, and therefore that
the only charges of default and loss alleged by the particu-
lars of the statement of claim fail. It is true that the par-
ticulars are lacking in some allegations which are necessary
fully to explain the nature of the case, but these are sup-
plied by the letter of 1st August, 1923, which I have quoted,
and which preceded the delivery of the particulars by sever-
al months, and, in view of the explanation made by the
letter, I can see no ground to suppose that the defendant
was misled by the plaintiff’s pleading or particulars. The
case as stated by the letter, was proved at the trial, so far
as necessary for the purposes of this action, and the wit-
nesses were cross-examined upon it, and, if it be necessary
to expand the particulars in order to state the ‘additional
facts comprised in the letter, I would see no injustice in
allowing an amendment for the purpose of making the
pleading correspond with the facts in proof. But, in view
of the course of the trial, I am disposed to think that such
an amendment is unnecessary.

Attention is directed to the fact that the Roy cheques
were deposited with the treasurer on 21st and 28th Septem-
ber, 1922, and that, under the terms of the agreement, the .
company is to indemnify the city only with respect to

(1) (1828) 3 C. & P. 422, at p. 424.
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embezzlement or theft of money on the part of the em- 1927

ployee Loxpon
committed during the continuance of this agreement, and discovered dur- GuarRANTEE
. . . & ACCIDENT
ing the continuance of this agreement, Co. Lp
and it is urged that since the agreement, which was in force v.
Crry oF

during the year 1921-22, terminated on 30th September, Hirrax.
1922, before which date the embezzlement or theft, as to,. —
the Roy cheques, had taken place though not discovered Neweombe.
until later, the agreement was not continuing, notwith-

standing the fact that it was renewed for the year begin-

ning 1st October, 1922. That contention is not, however,
consistent with the fair interpretation of the agreement,

which, by its express terms, provides for renewal by con-

sent, and the issuing of renewal receipts. The phrase
committed during the continuance of this agreement and discovered dur-
ing the continuance of this agreement

obviously must refer, not only to the original term of the
agreement, but also to the subsequent years for which it
was renewed in manner provided for by the agreement. In
one of the subsequent provisions, which I have quoted,
there is a clause providing ~
that if the company shall renew this agreement beyond the time herein

limited, and shall issue a renewal receipt to that effect this agreement shall
be continued for the time therein specified.

This describes expressly the condition which existed with
relation to the agreement during the year beginning 1st
October, 1922, and nothing could more clearly -evince an
intention that the continuance of the agreement extended
to that year.

Reference is also made to the questions submitted on
behalf of the company with regard to the proposed guar-
anty. There are two sets of these, the first bearing date
7th October, 1902, signed by Mr. Crosby, the mayor. The
acting manager of the company had submitted a printed
form requesting a reply to questions which were listed, and
stating that

your answers and the declaration hereto will form the basis of the con-
tract between you and this company.

Among the questions were the following, and the answers

quoted were returned:

D. How often do you require him to pay over to you and is he then
allowed to retain a balance in hand? If so, how much? And do you
see that he has that amount in his possession?—Ans. Daily.

E. How often do you inspect the office and balance your cash book,
and check the entries with vouchers and bank pass book?—Ans. Daily.

36003—3%
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F. How often do you balance your books and what are your checks
to discover any irregularity on the part of the proposer?—Ans. Daily.
At the foot of the list is a statement in the following words,
which I take to constitute the declaration referred to in
the printed form with which the questions were submitted:

The above answers are to be taken as the basis of the contract between
the employer and the London Guarantee & Accident Company, Limited.

It will be perceived that these questions are not fully
answered, but the answers were accepted by the company;
and, interpreting D. as a statement that the collector is
required to pay over to the city daily; E. that the cash
book is balanced and the entries checked with vouchers
daily, and F. that the books are balanced daily, the evi-
dence is sufficient to establish a practice to that effect. As to
inspecting the office however, which is one of the subjects
of inquiry in E., if this refer to inspection by the city
auditor, or an individual not employed in the collector’s
office, there is no proof of any, except the inspection which
was carried out monthly by the city auditor. Now it would
seem that question E. taken by itself, with the answer
“ daily,” may involve an assurance that there is a daily in-
spection of the office, but it is necessary to read all the ques-
tions and answers together; and G., question and answer,
reads thus:

When was the office last inspected and were matters all satisfactory
then?—Ans.: 30th September. Yes.

The whole list is dated, as appears at the foot of it, 7th
October, 1902. Afterwards, during the year 1918, further
questions were submitted relative to renewal of the guar-
anty. The last two of these bear upon the point now
under consideration. They are, with their answers:

When were his books or stock last checked and audited and up to
what date?—Ans.: 1st May, 1918.

Were all things found correct?—Ans.: Yes.
This statement is dated 27th May, 1918, showing a lapse
of 26 days since any check and-audit had been made. More-
over there is in evidence a letter of 22nd September, 1921,
from A. M. Jack & Son, the general agents of the company
at Halifax, to Mr. Weir, its general manager at Toronto,
reading as follows:

We duly received your favour of the 12th instant in connection with
Mr. Robert Theakston, City Collector, insured under guarantee bond No.
702075, and in reply thereto beg to state that Mr. Theakston is still able
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to perform his duties satisfactorily and to all appearances enjoys the full 1927

confidence of the city officials. We are advised that Mr. Theakston’s LO:D:N
accounts are audited every month by the City Auditor and we do not GUARANTEE

know of any reason why you should not continue this bond. We might & Accrment
say that although Mr. Theakston is, as you state, over seventy years of Co.Lrp.
age, still he is very active indeed and in full possession of his faculties. v

Mr. Weir’s letter, which is acknowledged in the opening I(I}.EF:;
line, is not produced; but, when it was written, the timeyeweombel.
for renewal of the Theakston guaranty was close at hand. —
It may be inferred that the general manager was inquir-
ing, having regard to the collector’s age, as to the expedi-
ency of renewing the agreement, and as to the auditing of
accounts. He is informed that the accounts are audited
every month by the city auditor. It was in these circum-
stances, and upon the information to which I have alluded,
that the company renewed the agreement for the years be-
ginning 1st October, 1921, and 1922. The question is, how
are these inquiries and answers, which by the stipulations
of the agreement are, so far as material, warranted true,
to be construed? It appears to me not supposable that
the mayor, in his answers of 7th October, 1902, using the
verb in the same sense, intended to say that the city in-
spected the office daily, and also that it had not been in-
spected for a week. Moreover it seems difficult to imagine
that the company was relying upon daily inspection, when
told that, between 30th September and 7th October, 1902,
there had been no inspection, and later, when informed, on
27th May, 1918, that the books had been last checked and
audited on and up to lst May. One must endeavour to
reach a reasonable interpretation, realizing that the ques-
tions were framed by the company; that they are in some
cases not very applicable to a municipality, and that the
company has, without demur, accepted the answers, such
as they are, returned by the city. In considering the ques-
tion,

How often do you inspect the office and balance your cash book and
check the entries with vouchers and bank pass book?

it may be observed, by the way, that the bank pass book
affords no check for the collector’s office, as the collector de-
posited with the treasurer; and it was the latter who carried
on the banking business; the collector had no bank pass
book. The word “inspect "’is used in connection with the bal-
ancing of the cash book and the checking of the entries with
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1927 vouchers, and it may not improbably have been con-
Lonoon sidered that, when the cash book entries were balanced and
g‘j{‘é‘&ﬁﬁ checked, the office was inspected. There is an independent

Co.Lm. question, G., which is confined to inspection, and which
Crry o evidently was answered upon the understanding that it
Haurax.  referred to inspection by the city auditor, which took place
NewcombeJ. at the end of the month, and which, as required by City
" Ordinance, No. 3, sec. 2, was to be made monthly. I think
it reasonable to suppose that “ inspect,” in E., was regard-
‘ed on both sides as affording a general description of which
the particulars are stated in what follows, namely  bal-
ance your cash book and check the entries with vouch-
ers.”” In any case, reading E. and G. together, it is plain
that if “inspect” in E. and “ inspected ” in G., with rela-
tion to the office, refer to the same operation, the office
was not, upon fair construction, represented to have been
inspected daily, unless in the manner which I have indi-
cated; and, having regard to the subsequent information
which the company obtained from the city, it seems appar-
ent that the company either so understood, or did not at-
tach materiality to the use of the word “inspect” in E.
It did not allege any inconsistency between the two ques-
tions, nor did it call for any explanation in order to recon-
cile them. In these circumstances, I do not find it neces-
sary further to consider the effect of the renewals of 1921
and 1922, as based upon the information, which the com-
pany had obtained by special inquiry, that the collector’s
accounts were audited monthly by the city auditor; but,
it seems unlikely that, when the company accepted the
premiums and renewed the contract upon the representa-
tion that the inspection was monthly, it intended to toler-
ate the inequitable contention that the policy was void for
neglect of daily inspection.

Another point arises in this way. Theakston had been
tried and convicted of theft upon indictment, and, by agree-
ment of counsel at the trial of the present action, the de-
fendant introduced some extracts from the notes of the
evidence taken in the criminal cause; among others the
following from Mr. Foster, the city auditor: .

Q. Section 321, page 94 (cap. 67, 1913, of Nova Scotia) says in con-

nection with the duties of the collector: “ He shall every month make a
return to the council: (a) of the amount of rates and taxes, including
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water rates, collected by him, specifying the name of each ratepayer or
taxpayer with the amounts paid by him, and (b) of the aggregate amount
of rates and taxes and of such water rates respectively remaining uncol-
lected.”

Q. Do you as city auditor, and with reference to the term you have
served as such, remember any such statement as that having been made
to the council by the collector?—A. Away back when I first went in it
was done.
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Q. And subsequently to that it was not done?—A. Instead of gettingNewcombelJ.

help he was eased of that amount of work by the council.
Q. The board of control had office during that period, too?—A. 1
will not be sure about the time the easement was given.

and, from Mr. Murphy, the mayor:

Q. Was it within your time as a member of the city council either
as alderman, controller or mayor, that the rendering of the city collector’s
statement as called for by the Charter was dispensed with?—A. Before
my time, during my eleven or twelve years in the council there has never
been such a statement presented; it has been asked for by resolution on
more than one occasion.

Q. And the reply has been that the work cannot be done with the
staff that is there?—A. I don’t know the reply but the request was never
complied with. That would be a reasonable assumption that would be
the reply.

Q. Will you say as a matter of fact you never heard that reply made?
—A. I would not say; probably I have heard it made; it would be the
most reasonable reply that would be expected.

Q. You say all the time you have been there such a statement has
never been presented?—A. No.

Q. Was the advisability considered of giving the collector sufficient
clerical force to enable that statement to be made?—A. I don’t think
the question of lacking sufficient help entered into it except the last two
or three years; I think the requests were entirely ignored.

Q. When were they first made?—A. I think on one occasion I myself,
and I think on a second occasion Alderman Godwin, presented resolutions
asking for information called for under certain sections of the Charter,
to be rendered by the collector. I cannot say just when it was. In Alder-
man Godwin’s case I think it was four or five years ago, not more.

And it is said that here is evidence of dispensation by the
city of duties of office with which the collector was charged
by statute; that the surety was entitled to rely upon the
performance by the city authorities of their statutory
duties, and that, by the license or connivance of the city
council in the neglect of the collector to make monthly
returns to the council, the surety was discharged. In sup-
port of this argument the appellant relies upon the Scotch
case of Mein v. Hardie (1). That, however, as stated in

the leading judgment, was not a case of mere omission, but

of employment of a trustee in a way not sanctioned by the

(1) (1830) 8 Shaw, Court of Session, 346.
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1927 statute. There are also other distinctions, and reasons why
Lozpon this case does not apply, which might be mentioned, but
GuamsNTEE the point must fail for lack of proof, and the other grounds

Co.L. which I am going to mention. Mr. Foster had stated that
Cry or e was city auditor in 1922, and for a long time previously.
Haurax.  He speaks of the occurrence as “ away back when I first
NewcombeJ. went in.” He cannot fix the time. Mr. Murphy had been
T in the service of the city, as alderman, controller or mayor,
for 11 or 12 years, and, if the council ever had dispensed
with the monthly statement, it was before his time. In-
deed during that period, the council had been endeavour-
ing unsuccessfully to obtain such a statement. If, as said
by Mr. Foster, the collector, at an indefinite though remote
time, was eased of the work connected with the monthly
return by the council, one would like to see the evidence
of it. It is unlikely that the council would attempt to
sanction the breach of a statutory requirement. The pre-
sumption is against it. If the council did commit itself, the
decision should have been mentioned in the minutes, but
nothing was produced. Moreover when Mr. Foster gave
the evidence, he was speaking in the criminal case, where
the present issue was not involved, and what he said does
not amount to proof that the council consented to dispense
with the monthly statement. It was amply proved that
there was great neglect in enforcing the provision which
required the monthly return, but I see no evidence to satisfy
the condition to the discharge of a surety affirmed by Lord
Kingsdown in the Privy Council, in Black v. Ottoman

Bank (1):
that there must be some positive act done by him (the employer) to the
prejudice of the surety, or such degree of negligence as in the language

of Wood V.C. in Dawson v. Lawes (2), to imply connivance, and amount
to fraud.

It remains to be said upon this point that there is no evi-
dence that the incident which Mr:. Foster had in mind
occurred after the giving of the guaranty, and that Mr.
Weir, who had been manager of the defendant company
for 10 or 11 years, and who had previously been assistant
for four years, disclaims any knowledge of the requirements
of the legislation relating to the city of Halifax. Evidently,
in fact, these did not influence the making of the agree-

(1) (1862) 6 L.T.N.S. 763. " (2) (1854) Kay 280.
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ment. The suretyship agreement is not conditioned for the = 1927
due performance of the collector’s duties of office. The Lonnox
indemnity is promised only for embezzlement or theft in gg‘:c‘g;mm
connection with the duties referred to in the recitals, but Co.L.
these do not mention or include the statutory duties, and, cCrry or
according to my interpretation of the agreement, the per- Hﬂ“x
formance of these is neither represented not expressly orNewcombel.
impliedly undertaken by the city. Moreover the questions
and answers in the proposals for the policy entirely ignore

the requirements of the statute.

It is suggested that there was suppression of material
facts with relation to the statutory requirements and the
manner in which they.were performed; but, although the
city kept silence as to some facts which I have no doubt
would have been communicated if attention had been
directed to them, I find no evidence of fraudulent conceal-
ment, or of the suppression of any fact which the city was
bound to communicate. Davies v. London and Provincial
Marine Insurance Co. (1).

There is one other clause in the agreement upon which
the appellant relies. It is provided that if the city shall
fail to notify the company
of the discovery of any writ of attachment, execution issued, or judg-
ment obtained against the salary or property of the employee, as soon as
it shall have come to the knowledge of the employer, * * * this agree-

ment shall be void and of no effect from the beginning, and all premiums
paid thereon shall be forfeited to the company.

It is admitted that a judgment was entered on 4th Febru-
ary, 1922, at the suit of Colin C. Tyrer & Co., Ltd., against
the Eureka Lumber Company, Ltd., Robt. Theakston and
Arthur C. Theakston for $42,373.28. Evidently the Robert
Theakston here mentioned was the collector. Mr. Foster,
the city auditor, called by the appellant, gave this evidence:

Q. There was a judgment entered by Mr. Tyrer against Robert
Theakston and others on February 4, 1922; when did you first know about

‘that judgment?—A. Within a month or so we will say probably that is
as near as I can come to it; in the course of business I heard of it.

Q. You knew about the judgment?—A. I knew about the judgment;
the circumstances was told to me.

Q. Within a month or so?—A. Yes.

(1) (1878) 8 Ch. Div. 469.
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Mr. Murphy, the mayor, who was called for the plain-
tiff, gave the following evidence in his cross-examination:

Q. When did you know that there was a judgment entered against
Theakston and others for a large amount?—A. That did not come to my
knowledge I doubt very much until after the break and it then did not
come to me in the form of any acknowledgment of a judgment, but my
recollection in (sic) a statement to the effect that Theakston had paid some
money, if I recollect perhaps $20,000 to adjust some old judgment, but the
information as to the judgment itself I had not heard of at the time.

Q. This judgment was entered in February, 1922; did not Mr. Foster
the auditor tell you about it?—A. No sir, he never exchanged a word
with me respecting it.

And, upon this groundwork, the contention is raised that
the agreement became void under the clause quoted. I
am not satisfied however that the city can be held to have
discovered the judgment merely because the ecity auditor
in' the course of business heard of it; in any case, it does
not appear to have been a judgment obtained against the
salary or property of the employee, and is therefore not of
the description specified in the agreement.

In the conclusion, I am in agreement with the learned
trial judge, and I think the case should be disposed of upon
the principle affirmed by Lord Brougham in the House of
Lords in MacTaggart v. Watson (1), an authority which,
as said by the Divisional Court in Durham v. Fowler (2),
had been regarded as the leading authority for years. Lord
Brougham said, in addressing the house:

The error, however, in the present case arises in supposing that any
want of care on the commissioners’ side, in making the trustee do that
which the surety had covenanted that he should do, was like a postpone-
ment of the surety’s equities, or diminution of his rights at law.

However, we need not discuss such questions in this case, nor deal
with the English decision in Mountague v. Tidcombe (3), which was that
of a positive and express covenant given to the surety by the obligee.
Neither are we called upon to dispute the doctrine of the court below,
laid down here, and in Mein v. Hardie (4), that where any one gives
security for the conduct of another, in a certain office which brings him
in contact with persons also in the office, he has a right to expect that
these persons will, in all things affecting the surety, conduct themselves
according to law and discharge their duties. All this may be generally
true, and yet it cannot avail to discharge a surety who has expressly
bound himself for a person’s doing certain things, unless it can be shown
that the party taking the security has, by his conduct, either prevented

(1) (1835) 3 CL & F. 525, at pp.  (3) (1705) 2 Vern. 518.
542, 543,

(2) (1889) 22 Q.B.D. 3%, at p.  (4) (1830) 8 Shaw, Court of Sess.
419, 346.
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the things from being done, or connived at their omission, or enabled
the person to do what he ought not to have done, or leave undone what
he ought to have done, and that but for such conduct the omission or
commission would not have happened. The present is not such a case;
the facts are not here to govern any such conclusion.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.

AnxcrLin C.J.C. (dissenting).—The material facts are
sufficiently stated in the opinion of my brother Newcombe,
which I have had the advantage of reading. While I agree
with his disposition of most of the points raised by the
appellant, there is one matter on which I find myself un-
able to accept my learned brother’s view—and that is so
fundamental that the contrary opinion which I entertain
upon it leads to the conclusion that this appeal should be
allowed and the action dismissed.

It is quite certain that no part of the moneys received
from the three cheques mentioned in the plaintiff’s par-
ticulars, aggregating $13,445.23, was embezzled or stolen by
the city collector Theakston, or was lost to the city of Hali-
fax. Every cent of the proceeds of those three cheques
went to the city’s credit in its bank account. That fact would
suffice to dispose of the plaintiff’s case upon the record as
it stands before us, because the embezzlement and loss
alleged is in respect of the proceeds of these three cheques.

I agree, however, with my brother Newcombe that the
particulars should, if necessary, be amended so as to make
them broad enough to cover the defalcations pointed to in
the solicitor’s letter of the Ist of August to the appellant
company, which states the nature of the city’s claim. So
amended, the claim may be regarded as based upon the
defalcations, embezzlements or thefts in an effort to conceal
which the collector’s books were falsified in regard to the
proceeds of the three cheques specified in the particulars.

By more or less adroit manipulation in the collector’s
book-keeping, the proceeds of these cheques (except
$1,833.69 credited to Mr. Brister) were credited to other
taxpayers whose cheques had already been similarly dealt
with, or (perhaps) whose cash payments the collector had
appropriated to his own use, i.e., embezzled or stolen. It
may well be that evidence or proof of the embezzlements or
thefts was available to the city only when the three cheques
were so dealt with in Theakston’s books, but the actual
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embezzlements or thefts, which the false entries in his
books were designed to cover up, may have occurred at
some earlier date or dates. Nothing definite as to this is
shewn. I am, with respect, unable to accept the view that
the actual embezzlements or thefts should prima facie be
taken to have occurred when the falsification of the books
took place in respect of the three cheques, or that the proof
of such falsification cast any burden on the defendant com-
pany to show that the actual embezzlements or thefts had
occurred at some earlier date or dates. The plaintiff was
required to establish loss to it by embezzlement or theft
within the terms of the defendant’s guarantee.
One of the stipulations of the bond sued on is that

no more than one claim, and that only in respect of acts of embezzle-
ment or theft of money committed within twelve months prior to the
receipt by the company of the notice of discovery thereof, to be given
as is hereinafter provided, shall be made under this agreement * * *

The required notice was given to the company of the em-
bezzlements or thefts in a letter from the mayor of the 2nd
of June, 1923. To come within the guarantee the embezzle-
ments or thefts claimed for must be shewn to have taken
place not earlier than the 2nd of June, 1922. Assuming the
particulars to be amended as already indicated, there is no
evidence in the record to show at what time or times the
moneys, the theft or embezzlement of which by Theakston
the manipulation of his book-keeping entries in regard to
the three cheques was meant to cover up, were actually
misappropriated or stolen. Nothing appears which is in-
consistent with the idea that the moneys had all been stolen
or embezzled prior to the 2nd of June, 1922. Tt is that the
embezzlement or theft shall have been committed within
12 months prior to the notice of discovery thereof, and not
that the doing or omission of some act shall have made
possible the proof thereof, that the condition of the bond
requires. Without evidence warranting a finding that the
moneys in question were stolen after the 2nd of June, 1922,
the plaintiff, in my opinion, does not bring its loss within
the terms of the defendant company’s guarantee and, there-
fore, cannot recover in this action.

Appeal dismissed with costs.

Solicitor for the appellant: L. A. Lovett.
Solicitor for the respondent: F. H. Bell.
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ON APPEAL FROM THE COURT OF APPEAL FOR BRITISH
COLUMBIA

Constitutional law—Tazation—Direct or indirect—“ First purchaser”—
Validity of Fuel-oil Tax Act, 1923, c. 71—B.N . A. Act, 1867, 8. 92 (2).

The British Columbia Fuel-oil Taz Act, 1923, ¢. 71, which imposes a cer-
tain tax per gallon on purchasers of fuel oil and defines “ purchaser ”
as meaning “any person who within the province purchasss fuel oil
when sold for the first time after its manufacture in or importation
into the province”, is ultra vires. Idington J. dissenting.

Such tax is not a direct tax within s, 92 (2) of the B.N.A. Act, since at
the time of payment its ultimate incidence is uncertain. Idington J.
dissenting. '

Apart from some special circumstances the presumable incidence and the
general tendency of a tax imposed on the “first purchaser” in a pro-
vince of a commodity susceptible of general use is that it will he
passed on to the consumer, who may or may not—and in ordinary
cases will not—be its “first purchaser ”, who is required by section 3
of the Act to.pay the tax.

Judgment of the Court of Appeal ([1926] 3 W.W.R. 154) aff Idington
J. dissenting.

APPEAL from the decision of the Court of Appeal from
British Columbia (1), affirming the judgment of Morrison
J. (2) and dismissing the appellant’s action for taxes under
the Fuel-oil Tax Act, (B.C.) 1923, c. 71.

The material facts of the case and the questions at issue
are stated in the above head-note and in the judgment now
reported.

J. W. de B. Farris K.C. for the appellant.
" E.P.Davis K.C. and J. E. McMullen for the respondent.

*PreseNT :—Anglin C.J.C. and Idington, Duff, Mignault. Newcombe
and Rinfret JJ.

. (1) [1926] 3 W.W.R. 154. (2) (1926) 36 B.C. TRep. 551;
' [1926]1 1 W.W.R. 337.
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The judgment of the majority of the court (Anglin
CJ.C. and Duff, Mignault, Newcombe and Rinfret JJ.)
was delivered by

AngLiN C.J.C.—This action is brought by the Attorney
General for British Columbia, on behalf of His Majesty
the King, for the recovery of taxes on fuel oil from the
defendant as “ first purchaser” and also as holder thereof
for consumption. To the claim made upon it as first pur-
chaser the defendant offers two defences: (a) that it is not
in fact “ first purchaser ” of the oil; (b) that the provincial

legislation imposing the taxation is ultra vires.

It is perhaps difficult, on the evidence in the record, to
say that the Canadian Pacific Railway Co. was the “ first
purchaser ” of the fuel oil for which it is sought to collect
the taxes; but that it was may, for present purposes, be
assumed against it. That the railway company bought
and held the fuel oil for consumption in its own operations
and not for re-sale seems, however, to be abundantly clear.

The material provisions of the British Columbia Fuel-oil
Tax Act, 1923, ¢. 71, read as follows:

2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires:—
* * *

“ Purchaser” means any person who within the province purchases
fuel-oil when sold for the first time after its manufacture in or importa-
tion into the province:

* * *

3. Every purchaser shall pay to His Majesty for the raising of a
revenue for provincial purposes a tax equal to one-half cent per gallon
of all fuel-oil purchased by him, which tax shall be levied and collected
in the manner provided in this Act.

4. Every vendor at the time of the sale of any fuel-oil shall le\ry
and collect the tax imposed by this Act in respect of the fuel-oil and shall
on or before the fifteenth day of the month next following that in which
the sale takes place pay over to the collector of the assessment district
in which the sale takes place the full amount of the tax.

5. Every vendor shall, with each monthly payment, furnicsh to the
collector a return showing all sales of fuel-oil made by him to purchasers
during the preceding month, which return shall be in the form and veri-
fied in the manner prescribed by the regulations.

6. (1) Subject to subsection (3) after the expiration of cne month
from the commencement of this Act, every person who keeps or has in
his possession or under his control for use or consumption by himself,
his family, agent, or employee, or in any business or occupation in which
he is interested or employed, any fuel-oil respecting which no tax has
been paid under this Act shall, prior to the use or consumption of the
fuel-oil, or any part thereof, pay to His Majesty for the raising of a
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revenue for provincial purposes a tax equal to one-half cent per gallon 1927
of the fuel-oil. A
TTORNEY

(2) Subject to subsection (3), after the expiration of one month from GeneraL
the commencement of this Act, no person shall use or consume any fuel- ¥ForB.C.
oil unless a tax has been paid in respect thereof undeér this Act. CP ﬁy Co

(3) No tax shall be payable under this section in respeect of fuel-oil —
imported into the province for use in and which is used in the opera- Anglm
tion of vessels plying between ports in the province and ports outside of CiJ_q
the dominion. ’

(4) Every person who uses or consumes any fuel-oil in violation of
the provisions of this section shall be guilty of an offence against this
Act.

(5) In any prosecution for failure to pay the tax imposed by this
section, the burden of proving that a tax has been paid in respect of the
fuel-oil used or consumed shall be upon the defendant.

Had section 6 been the only provision imposing the tax
it would probably be difficult for the respondent to main-
tain its inapplicability to the fuel-oil in its possession from
time to time, or successfully to challenge its validity. But
it was common ground at bar that s. 6 assumes the valid-
ity of s. 3 and was meant to be operative only if the fuel-
oil in respect of which it is sought to collect the tax was
subject to taxation, under s. 3, in the hands of the “first
purchaser ”; and we are, in effect, asked to dispose of the
appeal before us on that assumption and on the footing
that its outcome should be dependent upon our view as
to the validity or invalidity of s. 3. We accede to this
request.

One ground of objection to the validity of s. 3 pressed at
bar is that this section imposes an excise tax and that its
enactment by the provincial legislature therefore comtra-.
venes s. 122 of the B.N.A. Act and s. 7 of the Terms of .
Union of British Columbia with Canada. This objection,
however, involves considerations so far-reaching in their
application and effect that they should be approached only
in the event of the failure of the other ground of attack on
s. 3, namely, that the tax which it imposes is not a direct
tax within s. 92 (2) of the B.N.A., Act.

It may be that under some circumstances it would be a
proper inference that in its common incidence, and under
the normal operation in ordinary cases of its general ten-
dency, such a tax as that imposed by s. 3 would in reality
be borne by the very persons who are required to pay it
and that it would, therefore, be proper to ascribe to the
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legislature the intention that its incidence should be so
confined. But, apart from such special circumstances, the
presumable incidence and the general tendency of a tax
imposed on the “first purchaser ” in a province of a com-
modity susceptible of general use is that it will be passed
on to the consumer, who may or may not—and in ordinary
cases will not—be its “ first purchaser ” who is required by
s. 3 to pay the tax. The evidence in our opinion falls short
of disclosing such special circumstances as might suffice
to take this tax out of the category of taxes imposed on
marketable commodities, such as customs and excise duties,
which, according to their general incidence, it may be ex-
pected will ultimately be borne by persons other than those
required by the taxing statute to pay them and are, there-
fore, indirect. It may sufficiently clearly appear that in
the particular case of the respondent company all fuel-oil
purchased by it is consumed in its own operations and that
none of it is re-sold. But whether a provincial tax is direct
or indirect, valid, or invalid, cannot depend upon its actual
results in particular cases (Bank of Toronto v. Lambe (1)),
or upon special events which may vary (Attorney General
for Quebec v. Reed (2) ).

The evidence discloses that there is already a very
considerable use made of fuel-oil in British Columbia,
many public and private buildings in the ecity of Van-
couver being heated by it and public and private enter-
prises established in the province using it to generate
power, etc. No doubt comparatively few cases of re-sale
in British Columbia by purchasers from the two large vend-
ing corporations—the Union Oil Co. of Canada and Im-
perial Oil Co., Ltd.—were shown at the trial. But the evi-
dence does disclose re-sales by the Union Steamship Co.—
a purchaser from the Union Oil Co. of Canada—to the
British Columbia Canneries when called: upon to supply oil
for a few isolated points along the coast. Apparently the
Union Steamship Company’s boats make a practice of sell-
ing fuel-oil to persons who may require it at their points
of call up and down the coast. Such persons it is said have
no other source of supply. Moreover, the ‘evidence seems
to make it reasonably clear that the Imperial Oil Co. “ pur-

(1) (1887) 12 AC. 575, at p. 582. (2) (1884) 10 AC. 141, at p. 144.
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chases ” its fuel-oil “ in the ordinary way,” when it can get =~ 1927
it, from the Imperial Oil Co. refineries plant at Toco, B.C., Arronwey
and, when the refineries plant cannot supply its require- g’gfﬁ"é"
ments, in the open market “ from any person from whom it CP. . Co.
can buy.” —

There is also evidence of the prevalence in the United ‘énfgn
States of purchases and re-sales of fuel-oil by middle-men, — -
and that, as the use of fuel-oil increases in British Colum-
bia, there will be a tendency in that province towards such
re-sales of this commodity becoming more prevalent. It
cannot in our opinion be said that a case has been made
out of such special circumstances existing in regard to the
fuel oil business in British Columbia as would justify the
courts in considering that, notwithstanding “the normal
effect and tendency of (a) tax ” on such a marketable com-
modity, the tax imposed by s. 3 is demanded from the very
persons who it is intended or desired should pay it—*“ who
are ultimately to bear the burden of it.” That this is the
test of a direct tax within s. 92 (2) of the B.N.A. Act does
not now admit of question: Attorney General for Manitoba
v. Attorney General for Canada (1). In the absence of proof
of special circumstances establishing that, unless in very
exceptional conditions, the actual normal operation of the
tax on fuel-oil, as the legislature may be assumed to know
it, would not prevail, that test must determine its validity.

Not only does the evidence fall short of establishing the
existence of special circumstances which might negative an
expectation on the part of the legislature that the tax paid
under s. 3 would be passed on, but it rather lends support
to the view implied in its imposition on the “first pur-
chaser ” that there will, or at least may, be subsequent pur-
chasers on whom the burden of it would accordmg to
normal tendencies actually fall.

We are of the opinion that the ]udgment a quo should
be affirmed.

IoineroN J. (dissenting).—This appeal arises out of Aar’x
action brought by appellant to recover from the respond-
ent taxes imposed by virtue of the Fuel-oil Tax Act enacted
by the legislature of British Columbia in 1923, being ¢: 71.

(1) -[1925]1 A.C. 561, at p. 566..
36003—4
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Section 6, subsection 1, thereof, is as follows:

6. (1) Subject to subsection (3), every person who keeps or has in
his possession or under his control for use or consumption by hLimself, his
family, agent, or employee, or in any business or occupation in which he
is interested or employed, any fuel-0il respecting which no tax has been
paid under this Act shall, prior to the use or consumption of the fuel-
oil, or any part thereof, pay to His Majesty for the raising of a revenue
for provincial purposes a tax equal to one-half cent per gallon of the
fuel-oil.

That shews clearly upon what class of purchasing thereof
it is intended to impose the tax.
Subsections (2), (3), (4) and (5), which read as follows:

(2) Subject to subsection (3), no person shall use or consume any
fuel-oil unless a tax has been paid in respect thereof under this Act.

(3) No tax shall be payable under this section in respect of fuel-
oil imported into the province for use in and which is used in the opera-
tion of vessels plying between ports in the province and ports outside of
the dominion.

(4) Every person who uses or consumes any fuel-oil in violation of
the provisions of this section shall be guilty of an offence against this
Act.

(5) In any prosecution for failure to pay the tax imposed by this
section, the burden of proving that a tax has been paid in respect of the
fuel-oil used or consumed shall be upon the defendant.

make it, if possible, more abundantly clear that it is only
fuel-oil intended for use or consumption in that part of
British Columbia which is not travellable upon by vessels
adapted to sailing outside thereof, and that it is only such
other purchasers thereof as intended to so use the fuel-oil
for consumption that are liable to pay the tax.

The reason for exempting the users of fuel-oil mentioned
in said subsection (3), is, I apprehend, to avoid any pos-
sible conflict with, or overstepping the limitations of the
powers of a province to extend any taxation beyond its
own boundaries.

There is, I submit, not a shadow of doubt but that the
claim herein is against the respondent company for the
tax imposed herein upon what it used within the province.

The purview of the entire Act is, I submit, quite clear
that its operation is to be confined within the province,
and to fuel-oil bought with the intention of using it therein
for fuel. A

It is, T submit, conclusively proven that it is only an
occasional, accidental sale, as it were, that is made to any-
one else than a large consumer, or by anyone outside the
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concerns each consisting of two or more separate legal Arrorney

entities co-operating to produce and sell fuel-oil to con-
sumers thereof and both sets directly or 1nd1rect1y involved
in this litigation.
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.
C.P. Ry. Co.

It is alleged that substantially the same situation had Id‘nff"

existed for thirteen years before the passing of the Act,
although an increased amount of business has been pro-
duced. This increase has been proven to shew that there
may be hereafter a different situation created and a change
brought about that would render the tax in question an
indirect, instead of a direct tax.

I submit there is no basis for such fears. Indeed I
strongly suspect they are conjured up to try by some means
to frighten the courts into such a conclusion.

The chief asset the respondent has in support of that
contention is the peculiar frame of the Aect in question,
which begins with an interpretive clause that gives to the
words “ purchaser ” and “vendor” respectively, the fol-
lowing meanings:—

‘“ Purchaser ” means any person who within the province
purchases fuel-oil when sold for the first time after its
manufacture in or importation into the province.

“Vendor ” means any person who within the province
sells fuel-oil for the first time after its manufacture in or
importation into the province.

That is followed by three sections which can be read with
the effect of dominating the whole of the rest of the Act.
Doing so would so obliterate the clear meaning of the rest
of the Act as to come sadly in conflict with that due con-
sideration of the entire purview of the Act, which, in such
cases, it is, I respectfully submit, our duty to appreciate
and observe in reaching our